
 
 

NAPA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION  
Barbara Nemko, Ph.D., Superintendent 

 
The Napa County Board of Education will hold a regular meeting on Tuesday, August 6, 2024, at 
3:30 p.m., at the Napa County Office of Education, 2121 Imola Avenue, Napa, CA. Members of 
the public may attend the meeting in-person or virtually. Please view Public Participation 
information below.  

    
         
This hybrid meeting will be conducted with a mixture of in-person and remote attendance. 
 

https://napacoe.zoom.us/j/85404848681 
 
1. ORGANIZATION              

  
A. Call to Order  
B. Flag Salute  
C. Public Participation    

Members of the public are invited to participate in person or can join by computer, tablet, 
smartphone, or telephone. Remote access can be achieved by following the instructions 
below: 
Join from PC, Mac, Linux, iOS or Android:  
You are invited to a Zoom webinar. 
When: August 6, 2024, 2024 03:30 PM Pacific Time (US and Canada) 
Topic: NCOE August 6 Board Meeting 
 
Join from a PC, Mac, iPad, iPhone or Android device: 

     Please click the link below to join the webinar: 

 https://napacoe.zoom.us/j/85404848681 

 Or One tap mobile :  

     US: +16699006833,,85404848681#  or +16694449171,,85404848681#  

 Or Telephone: 

     Dial(for higher quality, dial a number based on your current location): 

         US: +1 669 900 6833  or +1 669 444 9171  or +1 719 359 4580  or +1 253 205 0468  or 
 +1 253 215 8782  or +1 346 248 7799  or +1 309 205 3325  or +1 312 626 6799  or +1 
 360 209 5623  or +1 386 347 5053  or +1 507 473 4847  or +1 564 217 2000  or +1 646 
 558 8656  or +1 646 931 3860  or +1 689 278 1000  or +1 301 715 8592  or +1 305 224 
 1968  

 Webinar ID: 854 0484 8681 

     International numbers available: https://napacoe.zoom.us/u/kFD1RNcZp 
D. Welcome to Visitors 
E. Approval of Agenda  
F. Approval of Minutes – July 16, 2024 

https://napacoe.zoom.us/j/85404848681
https://napacoe.zoom.us/j/85404848681
https://napacoe.zoom.us/u/kFD1RNcZp


 2 

G. Public Comment 
Members of the public wishing to provide public comment must request to be called upon 
using one of the following options: 

 i. using the chat feature on the web conference to send a request to meeting hosts, or 
ii. using the hand raising feature in the participant panel on the web conference, or hand 
raising if in-person attendance, or, 
iii. emailing a request to jschultz@napacoe.org or smorris@napacoe.org.  
 

Comments by the Public for Items on the Agenda: Anyone may provide public comment 
to the Board in support of, or in opposition to, any item being presented to the Board for 
consideration on the agenda during the Board’s consideration of the item.  Individuals 
shall be allowed up to three minutes for their presentation.  
 
Comments by the Public for Items NOT on the Agenda: Suggestions, comments, and 
requests may be presented to the Board at this time, for items not on the agenda, on those 
subjects over which the Board has jurisdiction. Normally, the Board will take no action on 
any topic at this time. Individuals shall be allowed up to three minutes for their 
presentations.   

 
2. PRESENTATIONS 

 
A. FCMAT Charter Oversight of Mayacamas Countywide Middle School (Carolynne Beno, 

Ed.D., FCMAT)  
 
 3. CORRESPONDENCE, COMMUNICATONS, AND REPORTS 

 
The Superintendent and/or Board members may report miscellaneous items for information 
purposes. 

 
 4. CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS 
 

      Background information on these items is provided to the Board prior to the meeting.  Action 
is taken by a common motion without discussion unless discussion of an item(s) is requested 
by a Board member(s). 

 
A. Temporary County Certificates: Education Code Section 44332 authorizes the issuance of 
 Temporary County Certificates for the purpose of authorizing salary payments to          
 employees whose credential applications are being processed.  (Julie McClure, Associate 
 Superintendent)   

 
B. Approval of Resolution 2024-20: Board Member Compensation. Napa County Board of 

Education Bylaw 9250(a) provides for compensation to its Board members for attending 
meetings.  The Bylaw further provides for compensation to members who miss meetings 
of the Board while performing designated services for the county or absent because of 
illness, jury duty or a hardship deemed acceptable by the Board. (Julie McClure, Associate 
Superintendent)  

 
  5.   ACTION ITEMS 
 

A. Second Reading and Board Approval Board Policy 0410 Nondiscrimination in County 
Office Programs and Activities.  The Board will be asked to approve Board Policy 0410 

mailto:jschultz@napacoe.org


 3 

Nondiscrimination in County Office Programs and Activities.  (Julie McClure, Associate 
Superintendent). 

 
B. Board Approval the Napa County Clear Administrative Services Credential (CASC) 

Induction Program Assurances.  The Board will be asked to approve the Napa County Clear 
Administrative Services Credential (CASC) Induction Program Assurances.  (Ron Eick, 
Program Manager, Continuous Improvement and Academic Support). 
 

C. Board Approval to Change the November meeting date from November 5, 2024 to 
November 12, 2024, and to include a Board Retreat on November 12.  The Board will be 
asked to approve changing the November meeting date from November 5, 2024 to 
November 12, 2024 and to include a Board Retreat on November 12.  (Josh Schultz, Deputy 
Superintendent) 

 
 6.  SCHEDULED MATTER 

   Discussion, review, and direction regarding: 
 

A. Possible motion of support of state and federal legislative updates and positions on 
legislation. (Jennifer Kresge, Board Trustee) 

  

   7.   INFORMATION ITEMS 
 

 

A. Personnel Activity Report: vacancies, listing of personnel appointments, terminations, 
transfers, etc. (Julie McClure, Associate Superintendent)  

 
B. Updated LCAP (Lucy Edwards, Director, Continuous Improvement and Academic 

Support) 
 

C. Teacher Assignment Monitoring Outcomes (TAMO) 2022-2023 Data (Lucy Edwards, 
Director, Continuous Improvement and Academic Support) 
 

D. First Reading Biennial Review of Conflict of Interest Board Bylaw and Exhibit (BB9270 
and E 9270) (Julie McClure, Associate Superintendent) 
 

E. Ad Hoc Committee Report Board Trustee Area 4 Candidate Interview Questions (Jean 
Donaldson, Board Trustee) 
 

F. Review Moderator Options for Board Retreat (Don Huffman, Board President) 
 

G. Napa County Grand Jury Task Force Report 2023-2024 (Barbara Nemko, Superintendent) 
H.  

•  

       
    8. FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS:   
 
 

         9. NEXT MEETING OF THE NAPA COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION   

      The regular meeting of the Napa County Board of Education will be held September 3, 2024. 
 
 
 

 

    10. ADJOURNMENT  
In compliance with the American with Disabilities Act, if special assistance is needed to participate in this meeting, 
contact the Napa County Office of Education (NCOE) at 253-6810.  Notification forty-eight hours prior to the meeting 
will enable the NCOE to make reasonable arrangements to ensure accessibility to this meeting.  I HEREBY CERTIFY 
THE AGENDA FOR THE STATED MEETING WAS POSTED ON THE NCOE WEBSITE AND IN NCOE’S DISPLAY 
CASE AT 2121 IMOLA AVENUE, NAPA, CA 94559, and the Napa Preschool site, Friday, August 2, 2024. Informational 
material is available for review at the NCOE. 

https://www.napa.courts.ca.gov/system/files/general/hitting-reset-button-gangs-napa-county.pdf


 4 

 
 

      NCOE Board of Education       Ellen Sitter, Recording Secretary 
      



MEETING OF THE NAPA COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION                
Tuesday, July 16, 2024  
 
Members present 
Jean Donaldson, Janna Waldinger, Don Huffman, Gerry Parrott, Sindy Biederman 
Remote Attendance:  Jennifer Kresge 
 
 
1. ORGANIZATION  
 
A. CALL TO ORDER 
President Huffman called the meeting to order at 3:35 p.m. 
 
B. FLAG SALUTE 
The salute to the Flag was led by Jean Donaldson. 
 
C. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION  
President Huffman reviewed the instructions for public participation via 
teleconference.    
 
D. WELCOME TO VISITORS  
Visitors were welcomed to the meeting.   
 
E. APPROVAL OF AGENDA   
On a motion by Mrs. Biederman and a second by Mrs. Kresge, the Agenda for the 
July 16, 2024 meeting was approved. Roll Call Vote:  Ayes - Mr. Donaldson, Mrs. 
Biederman, Mr. Parrott, Ms. Waldinger, Mrs. Kresge, Mr. Huffman.  Noes – None.   
 
F. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
On a motion by Mrs. Biederman and a second by Ms. Waldinger, the Minutes from 
the June 18, 2024 meeting were amended to include in Item 6.C. that Mrs. Biederman 
agreed to include a facilitator at the Board Retreat.  Roll Call Vote:  Ayes - Mr. 
Donaldson, Mrs. Biederman, Mr. Parrott, Ms. Waldinger, Mrs. Kresge, Mr. Huffman.  
Noes – None.   
  
G. Public Comment was given.   
 
2. PRESENTATIONS  
 

A. Mrs. Biederman provided a brief history of the Korean War Armistice Day 
Resolution and introduced Dell Pratt, Chief Master Sargent, USAF (Retired), 
Napa County Veterans Services Officer. 

 
 Mr. Pratt presented a brief history of the Korean War and shared with the Board 
 a historical artifact, a piece of the demilitarized zone (DMZ) from the 38th 
 parallel between North Korea and South Korea as well as a story about a local 
 Korean War veteran.    



 3. CORRESPONDENCE, COMMUNICATIONS, AND REPORTS 
 

• Mr. Huffman announced that Ann Cash, Board Trustee, resigned from the 
Board last week.  Mr. Huffman encouraged staff to consider some form of 
proclamation for Mrs. Cash who dedicated more than 25 years of service to 
the Board.   

• Mrs. Kresge noted that we need to provide some level of recognition for Mrs. 
Cash’s years of service.  

• Mrs. Kresge reported that she attended the Museum of Tolerance event in Los 
Angeles recently, and thanked Dr. Nemko for sending the invitation to the 
Board.     

 
4. CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS 

A. On a motion by Mrs. Kresge and a second by Mr. Donaldson, the Board 
approved       Consent Agenda Item 4.A. (Temporary County Certificates).  Roll 
Call Vote:  Ayes - Mr. Donaldson, Mrs. Biederman, Mr. Parrott, Ms. Waldinger, 
Mrs. Kresge, Mr. Huffman.  Noes – None.   
 
B. No action was taken on Consent Agenda Item 4.B. (Board Member 
Compensation). 
 

 5. ACTION ITEMS    
 

A. On a motion by Ms. Waldinger and a second by Mr. Parrott, the Board approved 
Resolution 2024-17:  AmeriCorps VIP 2024-2025 “AmeriCorps Volunteer 
Infrastructure Program” (VIP) AmeriCorps Program Contract.  Roll Call Vote:  
Ayes - Mr. Donaldson, Mrs. Biederman, Mr. Parrott, Ms. Waldinger, Mrs. Kresge, 
Mr. Huffman.  Noes – None. 

 
B. On a motion by Ms. Waldinger and a second by Mr. Parrott, the Board approved 

Resolution 2024-18:  CalSERVES Expanded Learning 2024-2025 “CalSERVES 
AmeriCorps Expanded Learning” AmeriCorps Program Contract. Roll Call Vote:  
Ayes - Mr. Donaldson, Mrs. Biederman, Mr. Parrott, Ms. Waldinger, Mrs. Kresge, 
Mr. Huffman.  Noes – None.    

 
C. On a motion by Mr. Parrott and a second by Mrs. Kresge, the Board approved the 

Consolidated Application and Reporting System (CARS) 2024-2025 Application 
for Funding Categorical Aid Program.  Roll Call Vote:  Ayes - Mr. Donaldson, Mrs. 
Biederman, Mr. Parrott, Ms. Waldinger, Mrs. Kresge, Mr. Huffman.  Noes – None.    

 
D. On a motion by Ms. Waldinger and a second by Mr. Donaldson, the Board 

approved the Arts, Music, and Instructional Materials Discretionary Block Grant 
Plan.  Roll Call Vote:  Ayes - Mr. Donaldson, Mrs. Biederman, Mr. Parrott, Ms. 
Waldinger, Mrs. Kresge, Mr. Huffman.  Noes – None. 

 
E. On a motion by Mrs. Kresge and a second by Mr. Parrott, the Board approved 

Proposition 28:  Arts and Music in Schools Funding Annual Report Fiscal Year 



2023-24.  Roll Call Vote:  Ayes - Mr. Donaldson, Mrs. Biederman, Mr. Parrott, 
Ms. Waldinger, Mrs. Kresge, Mr. Huffman.  Noes – None. 
 

F. On a motion by Ms. Waldinger and a second by Mr. Parrott, the Board approved 
a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) Between NCOE and the Mayacamas 
Countywide Middle School (MCMS).  Roll Call Vote:  Ayes - Mr. Donaldson, Mrs. 
Biederman, Mr. Parrott, Ms. Waldinger, Mrs. Kresge, Mr. Huffman.  Noes – None. 

 
G. On a motion by Mrs. Kresge and a second by Ms. Waldinger, the Board approved 

Pursuing a Provisional Appointment to fill the Board Vacancy in Trustee Area 4.  
Roll Call Vote:  Ayes - Mr. Donaldson, Mrs. Biederman, Mr. Parrott, Ms. 
Waldinger, Mrs. Kresge, Mr. Huffman.  Noes – None. 

 
H. On a motion by Mrs. Kresge and a second by Mrs. Biederman, the Board 

approved Resolution 2024-19 Korean War Armistice Day.  Roll Call Vote:  Ayes 
- Mr. Donaldson, Mrs. Biederman, Mr. Parrott, Ms. Waldinger, Mrs. Kresge, Mr. 
Huffman.  Noes – None. 
  

 6. SCHEDULED MATTER 
 

Mrs. Kresge reported on the Governor’s signed agreement making personal 
financial literacy a required course to graduate high school in California.   

 
Mrs. Kresge reported that the Los Angeles USD has banned cellphones and social 
media use at schools. 
 

  7. INFORMATION ITEMS       
 
A. The Personnel Activity Report was presented.  

 
B. Mr. Schultz reviewed Board Policy 0410 Nondiscrimination in County Office 

Programs and Activities with proposed changes.  A Second Reading of Board 
Policy 0410 Nondiscrimination in County Office Programs and Activities will take 
place at the next meeting.     
 

C. Mr. Schultz reported there were no complaints under the Williams Uniform 
Complaints Procedures Quarterly Report.   
 

D. The Board reviewed possible Board Retreat dates and moderator options.  Mrs. 
Biederman reviewed the role of a moderator noting that she has a suggestion for 
a moderator.  Mrs. Kresge noted that she will also suggest a moderator for the 
Board Retreat.    

 
  8. FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS:  FCMAT Charter Oversight Presentation; Ad Hoc   
Committee Report (Interview Questions for Trustee position); and, Board Retreat 
Moderator options.  

 
  9. NEXT MEETINGS OF THE NAPA COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION 



The next regular meeting of the Napa County Board of Education will be held Tuesday, 
August 6, 2024. 
 
 

  10. ADJOURNMENT 
There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 5:02 p.m. 
 

Respectfully submitted, 
Barbara Nemko, Secretary 
es 
 
 
Approved_______________________    Date   ___________________ 



 

MEETING OF THE NAPA COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION                
Tuesday, June 18, 2024  
 
Members present 
Jean Donaldson, Janna Waldinger, Don Huffman, Ann Cash, Sindy Biederman 
Remote Attendance:  Jennifer Kresge 
Absent: Gerry Parrott 
 
 
1. ORGANIZATION  
 
A. CALL TO ORDER 
President Huffman called the meeting to order at 3:30 p.m. 
 
B. FLAG SALUTE 
The salute to the Flag was led by Julie McClure. 
 
C. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION  
President Huffman reviewed the instructions for public participation via 
teleconference.    
 
D. WELCOME TO VISITORS  
Visitors were welcomed to the meeting.   
 
E. APPROVAL OF AGENDA   
On a motion by Ms. Waldinger and a second by Mrs. Cash, the Agenda for the June 
4, 2024 meeting was approved. Ayes - Mr. Donaldson, Mrs. Cash, Mrs. Biederman, 
Ms. Waldinger, Mr. Huffman.  Noes – None.  Mrs. Kresge did not vote. 
 
F. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
On a motion by Mrs. Biederman and a second by Ms. Waldinger, the Minutes from 
the June 4, 2024 meeting were amended to include Training for the Board in Item 8. 
Future Agenda Items; and, to correct the spelling of Dr. Lisa Chu’s name in Item 2.A. 
Presentations.  Ayes - Mr. Donaldson, Mrs. Biederman,  Ms. Waldinger, Mrs. Cash, 
Mr. Huffman.  Noes – None.  Mrs. Kresge did not vote.  
 
G. Public Comment was given.   
 
2. PRESENTATIONS  
 

A. Veronica Jimenez, Early Childhood Special Education Teacher, and Larisa 
 Kuchta, Physical Therapist, Napa Infant Program presented on the home health 
 care services provided to children and families. 

 
B. Julie McClure, Associate Superintendent, introduced the programs selected for 
 the Golden Bell Nominations:  Napa Infant Program’s Napa Plays; Lead to 



 

 Literacy Program; and, Explore NCOE Program.  Each of the representatives 
 from the nominated programs reported on their program. 
  

 3. CORRESPONDENCE, COMMUNICATIONS, AND REPORTS 
 

• Mrs. Biederman reported that she attended the Camille Creek graduation and 
the American Canyon Middle School graduation.   

• Ms. Waldinger reported that she attended the Camille Creek graduation and 
the Mayacamas 8th grade graduation. 

• Dr. Nemko reported that she attended the Mayacamas graduation and noted 
that the graduates described how grateful they were to find a school where 
they fit. 

• Dr. Nemko reported that she attended the Camille Creek graduation, and  
noted that Camille Creek has once again received the WASC accreditation, 
and the next WASC visit will be in 2027. 

• Dr. Nemko reported that the CDE contracts are moving along.  Dr. Nemko 
further noted disappointment that the funding for IEEEP (Early Childhood 
Special Education) was not approved.   

• Dr. Nemko reported that we have 32 educators from several districts coming 
to the Museum of Tolerance tour on June 24.   

• Dr. Nemko reported that she is part of Pro-Inclusion Napa that meets once a 
month.  Dr. Nemko noted that Stefanie LaMarca, counselor of Valley Oak, is 
also a part of the group, and the group is currently encouraging students to 
design posters with positive messages.  

• Dr. Nemko reported that Lucy Edward’s program is going to be at Chartwell 
in Seaside for literacy training next week.  Dr. Nemko further reported that 
Chartwell will be coming to the NCOE in August for three days of training for 
our local people. 

• Dr. Nemko reminded the Board of the article in the CSBA Bulletin reporting 
that Sonoma County received 9 million dollars in Golden Gate Pathways 
Funding, and Napa County Office of Education and NVUSD received 6.8 million 
dollars in Golden Gate Pathways Funding. 

• Dr. Nemko reported that discussions are happening now about implementing 
Ellyn Elson’s Reading Volunteer Program for 3rd grade at Shearer Elementary 
next year.    

• Dr. Nemko reported that the NCOE had the Juneteenth celebration today and 
that the office will be closed on June 19 to mark the federal holiday. 

• Mrs. Cash reported that she attended the NCOE Pride Day and NCOE Teacher 
of the Year/NCOE Classified Staff of the Year event at the NCOE.   

• Dr. Nemko reported that the new court date for a preliminary ruling initially 
set for June 11 in Napa Superior Court has been moved to June 26 at 8:30 
a.m.   
 

 4. ACTION ITEMS    
 

A. On a motion by Ms. Waldinger and a second by Mrs. Biederman, the Board 
approved the Local Control and Accountability Plan (LCAP) 2024-25 through 



 

2026-27.  Ayes - Mr. Donaldson, Mrs. Biederman, Ms. Waldinger, Mr. Huffman.  
Noes – None. 

 
B. On a motion by Ms. Waldinger and a second by Mr. Donaldson, the Board 

approved the Final 2024-2025 Budget.  Ayes –  Mr. Donaldson, Mrs. Biederman, 
Ms. Waldinger, Mr. Huffman.  Noes – None.    

 
C. On a motion by Ms. Waldinger and a second by Mrs. Biederman, the Board 

approved the Golden Bell Nominations for the Napa Infant Program’s Napa Plays; 
Lead to Literacy Program;, and Explore NCOE Program.  Ayes - Mr. Donaldson, 
Mrs. Biederman, Ms. Waldinger, Mr. Huffman.  Noes – None.    

 
D. On a motion by Ms. Waldinger and a second by Mrs. Biederman, the Board 

approved the 2024-2027 Plan for Providing Educational Services to Expelled 
Pupils.  Ayes - Mr. Donaldson, Mrs. Biederman, Ms. Waldinger, Mr. Huffman.  
Noes – None. 

 
E. On a motion by Mr. Donaldson and a second by Mrs. Biederman, the Board 

approved the Workplace Violence Prevention Plan.  Ayes - Mr. Donaldson, Mrs. 
Biederman, Ms. Waldinger, Mr. Huffman.  Noes – None. 
  

 5. SCHEDULED MATTER 
 

Mrs. Kresge reported on Senate Bill 274 Keep Students in School and  
Senate Bill 291 What Recess Means. 
 

  6. INFORMATION ITEMS       
 
A. Lucy Edwards, Director, Continuous Improvement and Academic Support, and  

Nancy Dempsey, Director, Juvenile Court and Community Schools,  presented 
the annual report on LCFF Local Indicators.  

 
B. Lucy Edwards, Director, Continuous Improvement and Academic Support and 

Nancy Dempsey, Director, Juvenile Court and Community Schools, presented the 
Napa County Office of Education 2024-2025 District Summary Report.   
 

C. Board President Huffman reviewed the Board Self-Evaluation process and 
requested Board feedback regarding points of direction. Mr. Huffman suggested 
a training session or Board retreat.   
 
Mrs. Kresge suggested a Board retreat or training and a facilitator.    

 
 7. FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS:  Board Retreat 
 
 8. NEXT MEETINGS OF THE NAPA COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION 
The next regular meeting of the Napa County Board of Education will be held Tuesday, 
July 16, 2024. 
 



 

 

  9. ADJOURNMENT 
There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 5:38 p.m. 
 

Respectfully submitted, 
Barbara Nemko, Secretary 
es 
 
 
 
Approved_______________________    Date   ___________________ 



NAPA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
Barbara Nemko, Ph.D., Superintendent 

 
    

Items: 2.A.   
August 6, 2024 

 
TITLE:   
 
FCMAT Charter Oversight of Mayacamas Countywide Middle School. 
 
HISTORY: 
 
The Napa County Board of Education (Board) conditionally approved the Mayacamas Countywide 
Middle School (MCMS) countywide charter school petition on March 5, 2024, and subsequently gave 
final approval on May 7, 2024. On July 16, 2024, the Board approved a Memorandum of Understanding 
(MOU) with MCMS setting out operational requirements that the Board, as the charter authorizer, expects 
MCMS to adhere to going forward. 
 
NCOE is contracting with the Fiscal Crisis Management Assistance Team (FCMAT) to conduct oversight 
of MCMS for the 2024-25 fiscal year. FCMAT’s scope of work will be focused on ensuring MCMS 
complies with the MOU and the requirements of the Education Code related to the operation of a charter 
school, and on building NCOE’s staff capacity to conduct charter oversight. Dr. Carolynne Beno will lead 
FCMAT’s oversight team. Dr. Beno will present on the requirements of charter oversight and the 
respective roles of FCMAT, NCOE staff, and the Board in that process. 
 
FUNDING SOURCE: 
 
General Fund. 
 
SPECIFIC RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Information. 
 
Prepared by: Joshua Schultz 
July 30, 2024 
 

 
 

 



1

Charter School Oversight

Presented by:
Carolynne Beno, Ed.D., CFE  - Interim Chief Analyst
August 6, 2024

© Fiscal Crisis & Management 
Assistance Team



2

Fiscal Crisis & Management
Assistance Team 
• External state agency established by Assembly Bill 1200 in 

1992 to help California’s transitional kindergarten through grade 
14 (TK-14) local educational agencies (LEAs) comply with fiscal 
accountability standards.

• Helps LEAs identify, prevent and resolve financial, operational 
and data management challenges by providing management 
assistance and professional learning opportunities.



3

Who is responsible for the oversight of 
charter schools?



4

Oversight Responsibilities
• Charter school – the charter school governing board has the 

first level of oversight responsibility.
• Education Code (EC) 47604(c) gives a charter authorizer 

one representative on the charter’s governing board.
• Authorizing agency – the charter school authorizer may be a 

school district or county office of education (COE).



5

What is the Napa County Board of 
Education’s role in oversight of Mayacamas 

Countywide Middle School?



6

Oversight Monitoring
• The memorandum of understanding (MOU) between Napa COE 

and Mayacamas Countywide Middle School describes Napa 
COE’s oversight obligations. 

• The Napa County Board of Education should receive regular 
updates from Napa COE staff so it can monitor whether the 
MOU’s requirements are being met.



7

FCMAT Support of Oversight
• FCMAT will provide charter school oversight to Mayacamas 

Countywide Middle School and help build the oversight capacity 
of Napa COE through June 30, 2025.

• FCMAT will work with Napa COE staff. For example: 
• FCMAT and the Napa COE will review the school’s Local 

Control and Accountability Plan (LCAP) to identify any 
technical corrections required and determine whether it 
meets the four approval criteria in EC 52070(d).

• FCMAT will write an oversight letter to be reviewed by the 
Napa COE and then the school before it is issued.



8

FCMAT Support of Oversight, Cont.
• FCMAT will provide an oversight activity update to the Napa 

County Board of Education in:
• November 2024 
• December 2024
• February 2025 
• June 2025



9

Charter Renewals
• At the end of a charter’s initial authorization period, the 

authorizer must decide whether to renew the charter. 
• The criteria for renewal are similar to those for approving a new 

charter, with the exception that charter schools seeking renewal 
must demonstrate a minimum level of academic performance.

• The Napa County Board of Education will act on the charter 
school’s petition for renewal.



10

What are the statutory requirements for 
charter oversight?



11

Oversight Requirements – Authorizer
EC 47604.32 states the responsibilities of the authorizing agency:

• Identify at least one staff member as a contact person for the charter school.

• Visit each charter school at least annually.

• Ensure that charter schools under its authority comply with all reports required of 
charter schools by law and all other mandatory reporting requirements.

• Monitor the fiscal condition of charter schools.

• Provide timely notification to the California Department of Education (CDE) when 
a charter renewal is granted, denied, or revoked, and when a charter school 
ceases operation for any reason.



12

Oversight Requirements – Authorizer (cont.)
A charter school must comply with the provisions of its charter 
petition, MOU, and other local agreements.
• Charter petition – written request outlining elements of the 

proposed school’s organizational, educational and operational 
programs (EC 47605 outlines the petitioning process and required 
elements).

• MOU – agreement defining the working relationship between the 
charter school and the authorizing agency; outlines fiscal and 
administrative responsibilities not addressed in the charter petition.

• Other agreements – local agreements defining oversight 
relationship, such as sole occupancy agreements, provision of 
special services, etc.



13

Oversight Requirements – Authorizer (cont.)
• The authorizing agency is responsible for adequate and 

appropriate oversight, including determining if a charter school 
is following prudent business practices and generally accepted 
accounting principles (GAAP) when accounting for revenues 
and expenditures and preparing financial reports.

• To assess and monitor the fiscal condition, the authorizer can 
request any financial or other information needed from the 
charter school.



14

Financial Reports for Oversight
• Education Code addresses the minimum financial information a charter 

school must submit to its authorizing agency.
• Only unaudited actuals financial report has state-mandated format 

(either alternative form or SACS form).
• To assess the charter school’s fiscal condition, the authorizer should 

review and analyze financial information periodically:
• Financial statements (income statement, balance sheet, cash flow).
• Bank reconciliations.
• Accounts payable aging reports.
• Multiyear financial projections.



15

Fiscal Oversight Requirements – Charter 
Schools
Education Code 47604.33 states the charter school must submit to its 
authorizer:
• By July 1, a preliminary budget and Local Control and Accountability Plan 

(LCAP).
• By December 15, an interim financial report. This report shall reflect changes 

through October 31.
• By December 15, an annual independent financial audit report for the 

preceding fiscal year. 
• By March 15, a second interim financial report. This report shall reflect 

changes through January 31.
• By September 15, a final unaudited financial report for the full prior fiscal 

year.



16

How is fiscal oversight of charter 
schools best performed?



17

Healthy Financial Characteristics
• Income-based spending – charter school is committed to a balanced 

budget in which expenditures match revenues.
• Adequate cash flow – have sufficient financial resources to ensure stable 

educational programming.
• Positive fund balances – retain positive fund balances or net assets at 

the end of each year.
• Working capital reserve – establish or plan to establish a working capital 

reserve for cash shortfalls and program growth.

Source: National Association of Charter School Authorizers, Measuring Charter School Financial Health, October 2009



18

Healthy Financial Characteristics (cont.)
• Strong systems – establish adequately staffed financial systems and 

proper internal controls that support the school’s mission.
• Healthy working relationships – maintain healthy relationships with 

external entities — bank, audit firm, and authorizer.
• Responsible governing board – have a governing board that holds 

themselves and the administration responsible for the school’s financial 
stability.

• Financial reporting – provide timely and accurate financial reports geared 
toward the intended audience.

Source: National Association of Charter School Authorizers, Measuring Charter School Financial Health, October 2009



19

Red Flags and Signs of Fiscal Distress
1) Consistently and materially falls short of enrollment/ADA projections.
2) Continually spends more money than it receives in revenue.
3) Leadership is unable to communicate fiscal health in clear and simple language.
4) Payables going unpaid and receivables going uncollected.
5) Regularly dips into reserves or restricted funds.
6) Lack of money has become the focal point of conversation at staff and board 

meetings.
7) Lack of regular board meetings, or board minutes without a financial review.
8) Lack of effective polices and procedures, management tools, metrics, and 

reporting.
Source: National Association of Charter School Authorizers, Measuring Charter School Financial Health, October 2009



20

What tools are available to support 
effective charter oversight?



21

FCMAT Tools for Charter Schools
FCMAT has developed several tools for charter schools and authorizers to 
use in partnership to facilitate the oversight process:

• Charter School Accounting and Best Practices Manual.
• Charter School Annual Oversight Checklist.
• Fiscal Health Risk Analysis (FHRA).
• Indicators of Risk or Potential Insolvency.
• Special Education Efficiency Tool.
• ASB Accounting Manual, Fraud Prevention Guide and Desk Reference.
• Charter Petition Evaluation Matrix.

https://www.fcmat.org/charter-school-manual
https://www.fcmat.org/charter-school-oversight-checklist
https://www.fcmat.org/fiscal-health
https://www.fcmat.org/indicators-risk
https://www.fcmat.org/special-education-efficiency-tool
https://www.fcmat.org/2015-asb-accounting-manual-fraud-prevention-guide-and-desk-reference
https://www.fcmat.org/charter-petition-evaluation-matrix


22

Charter School Annual Oversight Checklist
FCMAT’s Charter School Annual Oversight Checklist provides both authorizing 
agencies and charter schools with a tool to help determine whether adequate 
management controls are in place for the school’s operations, and whether the 
charter school is meeting the requirements of its petition and the MOU between it 
and the authorizing agency.

• Organized into the following areas: general requirements; fiscal and business 
operations; educational program (LCAP); educational program (ongoing 
assessment); facilities, maintenance and operations; governance; personnel; 
student services; other.

• Available on the FCMAT website here. Go to www.fcmat.org, select the “Fiscal 
Tools” menu, then select “Charter School Annual Oversight Checklist.”

https://www.fcmat.org/PublicationsReports/charter-school-oversight-checklist.pdf
http://www.fcmat.org/


23

Charter Oversight Activities 
for 2024-25



24

Summer Oversight Activities
• Review school’s preliminary 

budget.
• Review school’s Local Control 

and  Accountability Plan 
(LCAP).

• Review school’s insurance 
coverage and memoranda of 
understanding.

• Review school’s website.

• Review school’s calendar and 
instructional minute calculation.

• Review school’s staff 
credentials, clearances and 
permits, and background check 
certification.

• School board meeting 
attendance.

• School facility inspection.



25

Fall Oversight Activities
• Review school’s 2023-24 

unaudited actuals.
• Review school’s staff handbook.
• School board meeting 

attendance.
• School visit – student seat count 

and instructional walkthrough.

• Review school’s risk 
management program operation 
report.

• Review school’s 2024 California 
Assessment of Student 
Performance and Progress 
(CAASPP) scores.

• FCMAT to update the Napa 
County Board of Education on 
oversight activities in November.



26

Winter Oversight Activities
• Review school’s first interim 

financial report.
• Review school’s audited 

financial report.
• School board meeting 

attendance.
• Review school’s P-1 report of 

attendance.

• Review school’s School 
Accountability Report Card 
(SARC).

• School visit – instructional 
walk through.

• FCMAT to update the Napa 
County Board of Education on 
oversight activities in 
February.



27

Spring Oversight Activities
• Review school‘ second 

interim financial report.
• Review school’s P-2 report of 

attendance.
• Review school’s Forms 700.
• Review school’s enrollment 

projection report.

• FCMAT to provide a final 
report for the Napa County 
Board of Education on 
oversight activities in June.



28

Questions?



29

Thank you!



DocuSign Envelope ID: A8DD67CD-17CD-495E-A7F7-2C175783E703



DocuSign Envelope ID: A8DD67CD-17CD-495E-A7F7-2C175783E703



DocuSign Envelope ID: A8DD67CD-17CD-495E-A7F7-2C175783E703



DocuSign Envelope ID: A8DD67CD-17CD-495E-A7F7-2C175783E703



DocuSign Envelope ID: A8DD67CD-17CD-495E-A7F7-2C175783E703

7/2/2024



NAPA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
Barbara Nemko, Ph.D. 

  
Item 4-A 

August 6, 2024 
 
 
TITLE: 
Temporary County Certificates 
 
HISTORY: 
Education Code Section 44332 authorizes the issuance of Temporary County Certificates for the purpose of authorizing 
salary payments to certificated employees whose credential applications are being processed. The applicant must make a 
statement under oath that he or she has duly filed an application for a credential and that to the best of his or her 
knowledge no reason exists why a certificate should not be issued.  
 
CURRENT PROPOSAL: 
Consider approval of Temporary County Certificates.  Such certificate shall be valid for not more than one calendar year 
from the date of issuance.  In no event shall a Temporary Certificate be valid beyond the time that the commission either 
issues or denies the originally requested credential or permit.  Therefore, it is necessary to process these certificates in a 
timely manner. This authorization extends to all public-school districts under the Napa County Office of Education 
jurisdiction. 
 
FUNDING SOURCE: 
Not Applicable 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
It is recommended that the Napa County Board of Education approve the issuance of the Temporary County Certificates 
presented at this August 6, 2024 meeting. 
 
 
Prepared by: Sarah White ,Credentials Analyst 
07/30/2024 
 



NAPA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION  
Barbara Nemko Ph.D. 

 
TO: Napa County Board of Education                                                 Item 4-A 

August 6, 2024 
 
FROM:  Sarah White, Credentials Analyst                                                                      
NAPA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION   

NAME TYPE DOJ 
CLEARED 

 
 

 
 

    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    

NAPA VALLEY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT   

NAME TYPE DOJ 
CLEARED 

 

Herrera, Tami STSP Ed Special Mild to Mod 9/16/2011  

Fitzgerald, Charles  CCSD Waiver 5/22/2024  

Cowan, Sara SLP  4/24/2024  

Caton, Darian SLP  6/12/2024  

Bradas, Chrystal SS- Agriculture 6/24/2024  
 



NAPA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
Barbara Nemko, Ph.D., Superintendent 

 
Item: 5.A. 

August 6, 2024 
 
TITLE: 

 
Second Reading Board Policy 0410 Nondiscrimination in County Office Programs and Activities 
 

 
HISTORY: 

 
The Napa County Board of Education is committed to providing equal opportunity for all 
individuals in Napa County Office of Education (NCOE) programs and activities and has 
previously approved BP 0410 Nondiscrimination in County Office Programs and Activities. 
 
This policy has been amended to add additional protected categories including medical condition, 
reproductive health decision making, and political affiliation. 
 
Specifically, SB 523 requires the addition of medical condition and reproductive health decision 
making.  Code of Federal Regulations 1225.1, which NCOE must follow as an AmeriCorps 
grantee, requires the addition of political affiliation. 

 
 
CURRENT  PROPOSAL: 

 
Board Approval changes to Board Policy 0410 Nondiscrimination in County Office Programs 
and Activities. 
 

 
FUNDING SOURCE: 

 
N/A 
 

 
SPECIFIC RECOMMENDATION: 

 
It is recommended that the Board approve Board Policy 0410 Nondiscrimination in County 
Office Programs and Activities.  
 
 

 
 
Julie McClure, Associate Superintendent 
 
July 25, 2024 



County Board Policy 0410: Nondiscrimination In County Office Programs And ActivitiesCounty Board Policy 0410: Nondiscrimination In County Office Programs And Activities Status:Status: DRAFT

Original Adopted Date:Original Adopted Date: 02/18/2021 | Last Revised Date:| Last Revised Date: 05/03/2022 | Last Reviewed Date:| Last Reviewed Date: 05/03/2022

The Napa County Board of Education is committed to providing equal opportunity for all individuals in Napa County
Office of Education (NCOE) programs and activities. NCOE programs, activities, and practices shall be free from
unlawful discrimination, including discrimination against an individual or group based on race, color, ancestry,
nationality, national origin, immigration status, ethnic group identification, ethnicity, age, religion, marital status,
pregnancy, parental status, physical or mental disability, medical condition, reproductive health decision making, sex,
sexual orientation, gender, gender identity, gender expression, or genetic information, veteran or military status, or
political affiliation; a perception of one or more of such characteristics; or association with a person or group with
one or more of these actual or perceived characteristics.

All individuals shall be treated equitably in the receipt of services in NCOE programs and activities. Personally
identifiable information collected in the implementation of any NCOE program, including, but not limited to, student
and family information for the free and reduced-price lunch program, transportation, or any other educational
program, shall be used only for the purposes of that program, except when the County Board or, when applicable,
the Napa County Superintendent of Schools authorizes its use for another purpose in accordance with law.
Resources and data collected by the NCOE shall not be used, directly or by others, to compile a list, registry, or
database of individuals based on race, gender, sexual orientation, religion, ethnicity, national origin, or immigration
status or any other category identified above.

NCOE programs and activities shall be free of any racially derogatory or discriminatory school or athletic team
names, mascots, or nicknames. (Education Code 221.2-221.3)

Periodically, NCOE facilities, programs, and activities shall be reviewed to ensure the removal of any barrier that may
unlawfully prevent an individual or group in any of the protected categories stated above from accessing NCOE
programs and activities, including the use of facilities. Prompt and reasonable actions shall be taken to remove any
identified barrier.

All allegations of unlawful discrimination in NCOE programs and activities shall be investigated and resolved in
accordance with law, Board policy on uniform complaint procedures, and related County Superintendent-approved
procedures. (5 CCR 4600-4670)

Pursuant to 34 CFR 106.9, students, parents/guardians, applicants for admission, and the public shall be notified
about the County Board's policy on nondiscrimination and related complaint procedures. Such notification shall be
included in the annual parental notification distributed pursuant to Education Code 48980 and, as applicable, in
announcements, bulletins, catalogs, handbooks, application forms, or other materials distributed by the NCOE. The
notification shall also be posted on the NCOE's web site and social media and in NCOE program sites and offices,
including staff lounges, student government meeting rooms, and other prominent locations as appropriate.

In addition, the annual parental notification shall inform parents/guardians of their children's right to a free public
education regardless of immigration status or religious beliefs, including information on educational rights issued by
the California Attorney General. Such information may be provided through any other cost-effective means
determined by the County Superintendent or designee. (Education Code 234.7)

The County Board's nondiscrimination policy and related informational materials shall be published in a format that
parents/guardians can understand. In addition, when 15 percent or more of a school's students speak a single
primary language other than English, those materials shall be translated into that other language. (Education Code
48985)

Access for Individuals with Disabilities

NCOE programs and facilities, viewed in their entirety, shall be in compliance with the Americans with Disabilities
Act (ADA) and any implementing standards and/or regulations. (28 CFR 35.150)

The County Superintendent has designated the following ADA Coordinator to receive requests for accommodation
and to receive and investigate complaints regarding access to NCOE facilities, programs, services and activities: (28
CFR 35.107)

Deputy Superintendent
2121 Imola Avenue

County Policy Manual
Napa County Office of Education



Napa, CA 94559
(707) 253-6810
jschultz@napacoe.org

The NCOE shall ensure that it provides appropriate auxiliary aids and services when necessary to afford individuals
with disabilities equal opportunity to participate in or enjoy the benefits of a service, program, or activity. These aids
and services may include, but are not limited to, qualified interpreters or readers, assistive listening devices,
notetakers, written materials, taped text, and Braille or large-print materials. (28 CFR 35.130, 35.160, 36.303)

The NCOE shall develop and update transition plans when necessary to address structural changes that are needed
to provide accessibility to NCOE facilities, activities, services, and programs. (28 CFR 35.150)

The NCOE shall develop a complaint procedure consistent with the Americans with Disabilities Act and with Section
504 of the Rehabilitation Act.

Individuals with disabilities shall notify the ADA Coordinator if they have a disability that requires special assistance
or services. Reasonable notification should be given prior to a county office and school-sponsored functions,
programs, or meetings.



NAPA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
Barbara Nemko, Ph.D., Superintendent 

 
 

Item  5.B.  
 

Date:  8/6/2024 
 

 
TITLE: Napa County Clear Administrative Services Credential (CASC) Induction Program 
Assurances. 
 
 
HISTORY:  The California Clear Administrative Services Credential (CASC) Induction 
Program is designed for educators seeking to clear their Preliminary Administrative Services 
Credential. This program offers a structured, two-year coaching and professional development 
pathway, emphasizing practical leadership skills and on-the-job application. The program also 
aims to support educational leaders in enhancing their effectiveness, ultimately contributing to 
improved student outcomes and school performance. Successful completion of the induction 
program leads to the issuance of a Clear Administrative Services Credential, allowing 
participants to continue their careers in educational administration within California. 
 
 
The Napa County Office of Education has partnered with the Placer County Office of Education 
for the past 2 years to provide a local option for administrative induction.  We have been thrilled 
to offer this opportunity to Napa districts, but based on continuing need we are now developing 
our own accredited CASC Program. To become an accredited program in California, an 
institution must agree to meet the standards set forth by the Commission on Teacher 
Credentialing.    Institutions and their programs must provide a response to each Precondition 
and include appropriate supporting evidence and/or documentation.  We are expecting to submit 
our proposal to the Commission on October 15, 2024 with an expected start date in the Fall of 
the 2025 school year.  
 
 
CURRENT PROPOSAL:  This request is for the Board to approve Assurances that all the 
general and program Preconditions are met for the Napa County Administrative Induction 
Program. These assurances must be board approved to show institutional support during the 
accreditation cycle.  Upon Board approval, these Assurances will be submitted to the 
Commission on October 15, 2024.   
 
FUNDING SOURCE:  Not a budget item 
 
 
SPECIFIC RECOMMENDATION:  Approval of Assurances 
 
 
Prepared by:  Ron Eick 
 
Date prepared:  June 10, 2024 



707.253.6810 
info@napacoe.org 
www.napacoe.org 
@NapaCOE  
 

Innovation. Partnership. Leadership. 
NAPA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION, 2121 IMOLA AVENUE, NAPA, CA 94559 

Barbara Nemko, Ph.D., Superintendent 

 

Napa County Office of Education  

Clear Administrative Services Credential (CASC) Induction Program Assurances 

I, the undersigned Superintendent of Schools for Napa County and unit head for the Napa County Clear 
Administrative Services Credential Induction Program, submit the following to assure our institution will 
adhere to the General Preconditions of the Commission on Teacher Credentialing for ongoing 
accreditation. 

 

General Precondition 1b  
Napa County Office of Education Unit Leadership will continue to support the administrative induction 
program and provide the necessary resources for ongoing operation. Program support occurs through 
regular contact between Unit Leadership and Program Leadership to analyze data, review Advisory 
Board recommendations, and address questions or concerns. The Napa County Board of Education 
members are kept informed during annual presentations and included in program events. 

 

General Precondition 2 – Enrollment and Completion 
Once a candidate applies for and is enrolled in the Napa County Clear Administrative Induction Program, 
the institution will offer the approved program, meeting the adopted standards, until the candidate: 

i. completes the program; 
ii. withdraws from the program; 
iii. is dropped from the program based on established criteria; or 
iv. is admitted to another approved program to complete the requirements, with minimal 

disruption, for the authorization 

In the event a candidate’s enrollment status changes, an Enrollment Status Form will document the case 
and be retained in the institution’s secure files. While NCOE does not anticipate the closing of the 
administrative induction program, should the program close or become inactive, the institution’s teach 
out plan will provide each candidate with a record of completed requirements and documentation for 
transfer to another local program. 

 

General Precondition 3 – Responsibility and Authority 
The Napa County Superintendent of Schools, Dr. Barbara G. Nemko, is responsible for oversight of the 
NCOE Administrative Induction Program and has the authority to designate institutional resources. The 
Program Manager of the Napa County Clear Administrative Induction Program is an administrative 
member of the Continuous Improvement and Academic Services Department and has the primary 
responsibility and authority for program implementation. Upon completion of all program requirements 
candidates are recommended for a CA Clear Administrative Credential by the NCOE Credentials Analyst 
only, who is a current NCOE employee.  



Innovation. Partnership. Leadership. 
NAPA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION, 2121 IMOLA AVENUE, NAPA, CA 94559 

Barbara Nemko, Ph.D., Superintendent 

 

General Precondition 4 – Lawful Practices 
Napa County Office of Education Superintendent Policy 0410 outlines nondiscrimination policy in County 
Office Programs and Activities as it pertains to induction program candidates and coaches.  

“The County Board of Education is committed to providing equal opportunity for all individuals in district 
programs and activities. District programs, activities, and practices shall be free from unlawful 
discrimination, including discrimination against an individual or group based on race, color, ancestry, 
nationality, national origin, immigration status, ethnic group identification, ethnicity, age, religion, 
marital status, pregnancy, parental status, physical or mental disability, sex, sexual orientation, gender, 
gender identity, gender expression, or genetic information; a perception of one or more of such 
characteristics; or association with a person or group with one or more of these actual or perceived 
characteristics.” 

Superintendent Policy 4030 outlines nondiscrimination policy in employment as it pertains to County 
Office employees, district employees, and job applicants. 

 

General Precondition 5 – Commission Assurances 
Napa County Office of Education will (a) assure that the sponsor will fulfill all of the applicable standards 
of program quality and effectiveness that have been adopted by the Commission, (b) assure that all 
candidates participating in public school-based field activities hold a Certificate of Clearance from the 
Commission, (c) assure that the approved program sponsor will cooperate in an evaluation of the 
program by an external team or a monitoring of the program by a Commission staff member, and (d) 
assure that the approved program sponsor will participate fully in the Commission’s accreditation 
system, including the timely submission of documents required for accreditation. 

 

General Precondition 6 – Requests for Data 
The Napa County Clear Administrative Induction Program Manager will respond to all requests from the 
Commission for data within the time limits specified and update institutional contact information 
annually. It is the responsibility of the Napa County Clear Administrative Induction Program Manager to 
update and submit program data via the CTC Accreditation Data System (ADS) annually. 

 

General Precondition 7 – Veracity in all Claims and Documentation Submitted 
The Napa County Clear Administrative Induction Program affirms the veracity of all statements and 
documentation submitted to the Commission on Teacher Credentialing. 

 

General Precondition 11 – Student Records Management, Access, and Security 
Napa County Clear Administrative Induction Program candidate records containing sensitive information 
are housed in a locked file cabinet in the central administrative building at the Napa County Office of 
Education. This area is not accessible to the public and requires approval from department staff for 

http://www.gamutonline.net/district/napacoe/DisplayPolicy/1175490/0
http://www.gamutonline.net/district/napacoe/DisplayPolicy/1178594/4


 
 

Innovation. Partnership. Leadership. 
NAPA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION, 2121 IMOLA AVENUE, NAPA, CA 94559 

Barbara Nemko, Ph.D., Superintendent 

admittance. Candidate records include the application, transcripts, and induction completion forms (41-
4), and any additional sensitive documentation required to confirm eligibility, complete enrollment, or 
record changes in enrollment status.  

Candidates may request access to copies of records containing sensitive information via email or phone 
and induction staff will initiate secure transmission. All other documentation, including the Individual 
Induction Plan, is openly accessible to candidates on an ongoing basis in Google Drive. 

Records remain securely housed at the County Office for a minimum of seven years, beyond which only 
the 41-4 form is retained. If candidate records are scheduled to be destroyed, the candidate will receive 
notification at the email listed on their enrollment application.  

 

General Precondition 12 – Disclosure 
The Napa County Clear Administrative Induction Program does not use any outside entity to provide 
direct educational services to candidates. 

 

 

__________________________________   ______________________ 

Napa County Superintendent of Schools          Date 
Dr. Barbara G. Nemko 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



NAPA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
Barbara Nemko, Ph.D., Superintendent 

 
Item: 5.C. 

August 6, 2024 
 
TITLE: 

 
November 2024 Meeting Date Change 
 

 
HISTORY: 

 
The Napa County Board of Education requested to change the November meeting date from 
November 5, 2024 to November 12, 2024 and to include a Board Retreat on November 12. 

 
 
CURRENT  PROPOSAL: 

 
Board Approval to change the November Board meeting date from November 5, 2024 to 
November 12, 2024 and to include a Board Retreat on November 12. 
 

 
FUNDING SOURCE: 

 
N/A 
 

 
SPECIFIC RECOMMENDATION: 

 
It is recommended that the Board approve changing the November Board meeting date from 
November 5, 2024 to November 12, 2024 and to include a Board Retreat on November 12.  
 
 

 
 
Julie McClure, Associate Superintendent 
 
July 25, 2024 
 
/es 



 
NAPA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 

Barbara Nemko, Ph.D., Superintendent 
 
 
      TO:   Napa County Board of Education     DATE: August 6, 2024 
 
FROM:  John Zikmund, Human Resources                                                                    RE: Personnel Activity 
 
                                                                                                                      BOARD ITEM: 7A 
NEW CERTIFICATED EMPLOYEE 
Tamara Wells – Early Childhood Special Education Teacher, Napa Infant Program, Early Childhood Services  
Heidi Nord – Teacher, Camille Creek 
 
NEW CLASSIFIED EMPLOYEE 
Emma Nyberg - HR Technician (Credentials), Human Resources  
Vanessa Ceballos - HR Assistant, Human Resources 
Nancy Barcala Felix – Program Coordinator I, Community Programs (Welcome Back) 
Alejandro Tinajero – Program Coordinator II, Community Programs 
 
CHANGE IN ASSIGNMENT  
Kyle Lore – Technology Specialist to Technology Coordinator, TTSS 
Summer Ochoa – Payroll/Benefits Specialist, Fiscal to Business Process Analyst, Community Programs 
Odalis Alanis – Program Specialist to Program Coordinator II, College and Career Readiness 
Fernando Bautista - Program Specialist to Program Coordinator II, College and Career Readiness 
Alfonso Martinez - Program Specialist to Program Coordinator II, College and Career Readiness 
 
RESIGNATION 
None 
 
RETIREMENT ANNOUNCEMENTS 
None 
  
TERMINATION  
None 
 
LAYOFF/NON-REELECTS/TEMPORARY RELEASE NOTICES 
None 
 
POSITION VACANCIES                         
Early Childhood Education Assistant (3) – Early Childhood Services       
Child Development Teacher (3), Associate Child Development Teacher (2) – Early Childhood Services                         
Special Education Teacher, School Nurse, Speech and Language Therapist - Early Childhood Services 
CTE Teacher – Crossroads School, Camille Creek 
Instructional Support Specialist II - Camille Creek 
Fiscal Operations Coordinator - Continuous Improvement/Academic Support  
Program Manager - Continuous Improvement/Academic Support 
Early Intervention Assistant – Napa Infant Program, Early Childhood Services 
Admin. Assistant II – College and Career Readiness 
Program Specialist - College and Career Readiness 
Training Manager – RPDC 
Retirement & Payroll Specialist - Fiscal 
 
 
 
 

https://www.edjoinadmin.org/Admin/AppTracking/NewAppTracking.aspx?postingID=1960021
https://www.edjoinadmin.org/Admin/AppTracking/NewAppTracking.aspx?postingID=1960021


NAPA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
Barbara Nemko, Ph.D., Superintendent 

 
 

Item  # 7.B 
DATE: August 6, 2024 

 
 
TITLE: Update on changes to Napa COE’s Annual Update and the 2024-2027 Local Control and 
Accountability Plan (LCAP)  
 
 
 
HISTORY: The LCAP is a three-year plan that describes the goals, actions, services, and 
expenditures to support positive student outcomes that address state and local priorities. The LCAP 
provides an opportunity for local educational agencies (LEAs) to share their stories of how, what, 
and why programs and services are selected to meet their local needs.  The LCAP serves an 
important accountability function because aspects of the LCAP template require LEAs to show 
that they have complied with various requirements specified in the LCFF statutes and regulations, 
most notably: 

o Demonstrating that LEAs are increasing or improving services for foster youth, 
English learners, and low-income students in proportion to the amount of additional 
funding those students generate under LCFF (EC 52064(b)(4-6)). 

o Establishing goals, supported by actions and related expenditures, that address the 
statutory priority areas and statutory metrics (EC 52064(b)(1) & (2)).  

o Annually reviewing and updating the LCAP to reflect progress toward the goals 
(EC 52064(b)(7)). 

 
 
CURRENT PROPOSAL: Share updates and edits to the 2024-2027 LCAP per CDE requests 
since the adoption in June 2024. 
 
FUNDING SOURCE: No funding  
 
 
SPECIFIC RECOMMENDATION: This is an informational item; no action required. 
 
 
Prepared by: Lucy Edwards, Director of Continuous Improvement and Academic Support 
 
 
DATE HERE: August 1, 2024 



 
 

LCFF Budget Overview for Parents 
 

Local Educational Agency (LEA) Name: Napa County Office of Education 
CDS Code: 28102800000000 
School Year: 2024-25 
LEA contact information: 
Joshua Schultz 
Deputy Superintendent 
jschultz@napacoe.org 
(707) 253-6832 
School districts receive funding from different sources: state funds under the Local Control Funding 
Formula (LCFF), other state funds, local funds, and federal funds. LCFF funds include a base level of 
funding for all LEAs and extra funding - called "supplemental and concentration" grants - to LEAs based 
on the enrollment of high needs students (foster youth, English learners, and low-income students). 

Budget Overview for the 2024-25 School Year 

 
This chart shows the total general purpose revenue Napa County Office of Education expects to receive 

in the coming year from all sources. 



 
The text description for the above chart is as follows: The total revenue projected for Napa County Office 
of Education is $10,265,779, of which $9,077,154 is Local Control Funding Formula (LCFF), $46,942 is 
other state funds, $1,141,683 is local funds, and $0 is federal funds.  Of the $9,077,154 in LCFF Funds, 
$556,418 is generated based on the enrollment of high needs students (foster youth, English learner, and 
low-income students). 
  



LCFF Budget Overview for Parents 
 
 
 
The LCFF gives school districts more flexibility in deciding how to use state funds. In exchange, school 
districts must work with parents, educators, students, and the community to develop a Local Control and 
Accountability Plan (LCAP) that shows how they will use these funds to serve students. 
 

 
This chart provides a quick summary of how much Napa County Office of Education plans to spend for 

2024-25. It shows how much of the total is tied to planned actions and services in the LCAP. 
 
The text description of the above chart is as follows: Napa County Office of Education plans to spend 
$13,034,633 for the 2024-25 school year. Of that amount, $$3,506,892 is tied to actions/services in the 
LCAP and $9,527,741 is not included in the LCAP. The budgeted expenditures that are not included in the 
LCAP will be used for the following: 
 
 
NCOE's LCAP focuses on actions/services and related expenditures to meet the educational needs of 
students in NCOE's Juvenile Court and Community School program (JCCS). The LCAP describes how 
JCCS is addressing gaps in students' learning, providing access to technology and connectivity, and 
attending to the social-emotional needs of students and staff. The rest of the budgeted expenditures not 
included in the LCAP will be used in the following ways to continue to support our educational programs. 
NCOE has obligations for programs that provide services to school districts in Napa County (e.g. career 
technical education classes, after school programs, preschool and special education preschool); for 
administrative functions such as fiscal and LCAP oversight and support for school districts in the county; 
and for programs providing support to school districts and nonprofits statewide under contract with CDE or 
other state and federal agencies. NCOE is also responsible for the countywide coordination of educational 
services for students who are expelled, and for foster youth. The 2024-2025 budget for countywide 
coordination of services for foster youth is $220,060. 
NCOE’s estimated total Alternative Education Grant for 2024-2025 is approximately $1,923,839 including 
approximately $556,418 in supplemental and concentration grant funding. In addition, the JCCS program 
receives Equity Multiplier (EM) funding of $219,996 and Student Support and Enrichment Block Grant 
funding of $287,070. For 2024-2025, NCOE is projecting an additional unrestricted contribution to the 
JCCS budget beyond the Alternative Education Grant, SSEBG, and EM of 1,076,769, for a total 
unrestricted expenditure budget of approximately $3,507,671. 
        
 



LCFF Budget Overview for Parents 
 

Update on Increased or Improved Services for High Needs Students in 2023-24 

 
This chart compares what Napa County Office of Education budgeted last year in the LCAP for actions 

and services that contribute to increasing or improving services for high needs students with what  Napa 
County Office of Education estimates it has spent on actions and services that contribute to increasing or 

improving services for high needs students in the current year. 
 
The text description of the above chart is as follows: In 2023-24, Napa County Office of Education's LCAP 
budgeted $$985,775.00 for planned actions to increase or improve services for high needs students. 
Napa County Office of Education actually spent $$522,100 for actions to increase or improve services for 
high needs students in 2023-24. 
 
 
The difference between the budgeted and actual expenditures of $463,675 had the following impact on 
Napa County Office of Education’s ability to increase or improve services for high needs students: 
 
All of the planned actions and services were implemented and targeted towards our high-needs or 
unduplicated students. JCCS met the minimum expenditure requirement in 2023-2024 for our 
unduplicated students at $522,100 using LCCF funds. The remaining expenditures of $463,675 ( 
$985,775 - $522,100) were covered by other, various one-time funds that were expiring. Those one-time 
funds were used in addition to our LCFF funds in 2023-2024 to cover the costs of services for the 
unduplicated students above the $522,100 amount. All of the actions and services directed toward our 
unduplicated students were carried out through a combination of LCFF and various one-time funds.        
 



 

2024 LCAP Annual Update for the 2023-24 LCAP for Napa County Office of Education Page 1 of 31 

 
 

2023–24 Local Control and Accountability Plan Annual Update 
 
The instructions for completing the 2023–24 Local Control and Accountability Plan (LCAP) Annual Update follow the template. 
 
Local Educational Agency (LEA) Name Contact Name and Title Email and Phone 
Napa County Office of Education            Joshua Schultz           

Deputy Superintendent 
jschultz@napacoe.org           
(707) 253-6832 

 



 

2024 LCAP Annual Update for the 2023-24 LCAP for Napa County Office of Education Page 2 of 31 

Goals and Actions 
 
Goal 
 

Goal # Description 
1 To understand the unique needs of our individual students through interviews, assessment, and relationship while always 

using a trauma informed approach to help address the barriers preventing the students from thriving. (LCFF Priorities 1, 3, 
5, 6, and 7)         

 

Measuring and Reporting Results 
 

Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Year 3 Outcome 
Desired Outcome for 

2023–24 

              

PHQ-9 Screener a 
Biopyschosocial 
assessment 
 
% of students 
completing the 
universal mental 
health screener (PHQ-
9) 
 
Of those students 
needing a follow up 
PHQ-9 (because they 
scored a 10 or higher) 
track % of students 
who improved. 
        

In 2020-2021: 
95% completed the 
PHQ-9 
 
Minimal = 57% 
Mild = 26% 
Moderate = 12% 
Moderately Severe = 
4% 
Severe = 1% 
 
71% improved on the 
PHQ-9 
 

(As of LCAP adoption, 
not all the data has 
been collected). At the 
beginning of June 
2022: 
 
90% of students 
(enrolled at least 32 
days) received the 
PHQ-9 Screener. 
 
Minimal = 57% 
Mild = 23% 
Moderate = 10% 
Moderately Severe = 
9% 
Severe = 1% 
 
64% improved on the 
PHQ-9, 12% got 
worse, 20% are 
pending, and 4% 
returned to district. 15 
student referrals to 

(As of LCAP adoption, 
not all data has been 
collected. Data 
received through April 
2023.) 
 
95% of students 
(enrolled at least 32 
days) received the 
PHQ-9 Screener. 
 
Minimal = 69% 
Mild = 17% 
Moderate = 9% 
Moderately Severe= 
3% 
Severe = 2% 
 
Post test administered 
in June. 
 
 

96% of students have 
completed the PHQ- 9 
as of May 2024. 
 
Of the 14 identified for 
follow-up, 79% of the 
students had 
improved scores. 
 
Minimal = 37% 
Mild = 27% 
Moderate = 9% 
Moderately Severe= 
4% 
Severe = 0% 
 

100% of students 
complete the PHQ-9 
screener 
 
Of those students 
needing a follow up 
PHQ-9 (because they 
scored a 10 or higher) 
75% of students will 
improve (scores will 
decrease) 
 

http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/23LCAP/Instructions/23LCAPInstructions.htm#GoalsandActions
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/23LCAP/Instructions/23LCAPInstructions.htm#goalDescription
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/23LCAP/Instructions/23LCAPInstructions.htm#MeasuringandReportingResults


 

2024 LCAP Annual Update for the 2023-24 LCAP for Napa County Office of Education Page 3 of 31 

Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Year 3 Outcome 
Desired Outcome for 

2023–24 

              

Mental Health 
services. 
 

Classroom Size 
Count- 
Maintain small 
classroom sizes to 
help support 
unduplicated students 
and those with 
exceptional needs 
        

21-22 students 
assigned to classes in 
2020-2021 

12 students enrolled 
per class 

There is an average of 
19 students enrolled 
per class. The model 
to maintain class size 
at 15 was not 
sustainable due to 
teacher shortage. Due 
to CTE and elective 
offerings, the number 
of students physically 
present in the 
classroom at one time 
rarely exceeded 16. 

Class size average 
was 12 students. 
Homeroom classes 
may enroll up to 21 
students but 
scheduling with CTE 
and PE allows us to 
keep low numbers in 
each classroom space 
providing more 
support to our 
unduplicated students. 

Limit class size to <15 

Number of Students 
with Multiple Referrals 
to the Refocus Room 
Referrals - Track the 
number of students 
with a reduction in 
their referrals to the 
Refocus Room        

Number of on-campus 
students (during 2020-
2021) with multiple 
referrals to Refocus 
Room: 6 students 
(with more than 3 
referrals a week) 

There were 8 students 
with more than 8 
referrals in a month. 
 
Of those 8, after 
interventions were put 
into place, 7 showed a 
decrease in referrals 
whereas one 
increased the number 
of referrals. 
 

TBD No students with 12 
per month. Students 
with 10 or more 
referrals a semester 
were tracked. 11 
students - 5 had a 
reduction in referrals, 
3 did not decrease, 
and 3 were moved to 
different school. 
We do not have 
students who have 
more that 3 referrals a 
week or 8 in one 
month as seen in 20-
21 and 21-22 
 

Of the students who 
are referred to the 
Refocus Room more 
than 3 times a week 
(12 times a month), 
their referrals will 
decrease after a 
semester of 
interventions 



 

2024 LCAP Annual Update for the 2023-24 LCAP for Napa County Office of Education Page 4 of 31 

Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Year 3 Outcome 
Desired Outcome for 

2023–24 

              

Attendance Rate        For 2020-2021: 
All students = 86.53% 
Hispanic = 87.34% 
White = 85.35% 
Black/AA = 92.12% 
Asian = 100% 
 

For 2021-2022: 
 
All students = 87.04% 
Hispanic = 87.82% 
White = 86.65% 
Black/AA =80.07% 
Asian = 100% 
 
Low SED = 86.24% 
ELs = 87.91% 
SPED = 84.72% 
Homeless = 85.52% 
 

For 2022-2023: 
 
All students=  80.78 
Hispanic = 80.53% 
White = 82.72% 
Black/AA = 78.15% 
Multiple = 83.61% 
 
Low SED = 80.% 
EL = 78.46% 
SPED = 80.96% 
Homeless = 75.50% 
 

Current attendance 
rate is 84% This is a 
significant 
improvement from last 
year. 
 
(Update 7/31/24) 
All students=  87% 
Hispanic = 85.8% 
White = 87.7% 
Black/AA = 92.2% 
Multiple = 97.4% 
 
Low SED = 86.1% 
EL = 89.9% 
SPED =83.7% 
Homeless = 82.3% 
 

All students = (>88%) 
Hispanic (>88%) 
White (>88%) 
Black/AA (>94%) 
Asian = Maintain 
 
Updated Outcomes 
(spring 2022): 
Low SED >88% 
ELs >88% 
SPED >85% 
Homeless >85.52% 
 

The number of Credits 
Attempted versus 
Credits Earned        

Students completed 
78% of credits by the 
end of the 2021-2021 
school  year. Students 
entered the 2020-
2021 school year with 
40% credits 
completed. 

for 2021-2022 credits 
attempted vs credits 
earned 87% 

2022-2023 credits 
earned vs credits 
attempted was 78% 

For 2023 Fall 
Semester 98.5% 
This semester 
students took the 
opportunity to earn 
extra credit through 
internships, after 
school program, and 
the online credit 
recovery system 
Bright Thinker. 
 
Update 7/31/2024 
Credit completion 
89%. During the 
spring semester, a 

Students will complete 
80% of credits 



 

2024 LCAP Annual Update for the 2023-24 LCAP for Napa County Office of Education Page 5 of 31 

Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Year 3 Outcome 
Desired Outcome for 

2023–24 

              

significant number of 
new students enrolled 
and began acclimating 
to a new school 
environment, along 
with receiving support 
for attendance and 
completing 
assignments. 
 

Suspension Rate        For 2020-2021: 
18.1% suspension 
rate in 2019-2020 
 

2021-2022: 
All Students = 19% 
Hispanic = 21% 
White = 12% 
ELs =6% 
Low SED = 19% 
 
 

2022-2023 
All students = 36.14% 
Hispanic = 33.82% 
White = 45.45% 
ELs = 44.83% 
Low SED = 36.23% 
 
 

22% - nearly 15% 
lower than last year. 
Wellness center 
opened in January 
with the goal of 
providing students 
with a safe place to 
self regulate. 

Decrease to 15% 
suspension rate 

Expulsion Rate        For 2020-2021: 
0 expulsions in 2020-
2021 
 

0 students 0 students 0 students Maintain low 
expulsion rate 

Family Engagement 
Surveys (input for 
decision-making) 
% of families satisfied 
% of families feeling 
supported 
 
        

For 2020-2021: 
89 people complete 
the surveys in June 
and August 2020 
 
Out of 89 responses, 
100% of families felt 
that the support 
received from the 
school was very 

TBD For 2022-2023 data 
currently being 
reviewed 
 
 

Fall survey - 50 
families responded - 
100% feel welcome at 
the school and 
understand their role 
in helping their 
student thrive. 98% 
see the school as 
allies. 
 

% of parents satisfied 
= >80% 
% of parents feeling 
supported = >80% 
 
Maintain weekly 
contact with 100% of 
families 
 



 

2024 LCAP Annual Update for the 2023-24 LCAP for Napa County Office of Education Page 6 of 31 

Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Year 3 Outcome 
Desired Outcome for 

2023–24 

              

supportive or 
somewhat supportive 
 
Out of the 89 
responses, 100% of 
families felt satisfied 
or very satisfied with 
the school services 
 
100% of families are 
contacted weekly 
 

Spring survey: 47 
Families responded 
100% of parents 
surveyed stated they 
had weekly contact 
with the school. 
 

CA Healthy Kids 
Survey (CHKS) 
% of students feeling 
connected 
% of students feeling 
safe at school 
        

For 2020-2021: 
% of students feeling 
connected: 
All students = 36% 
Hispanic/Latinx = 36% 
White students = 49% 
 
% of students feeling 
safe: 
All students = 49% 
Hispanic/Latinx = 49% 
White students = 50% 
 

Administered in March 
2022 
% of students feeling 
connected: 
All students= 42% 
 
% of students feeling 
safe: 
All students = 67% 
 

Administered March 
2023 
% feeling connected - 
50% - highest in 6 
years 
% feeling safe at 
school- 58% 
 
 

Administered in the 
spring 
% of students feeling 
connected 
All students = 46% 
Hispanic/Latinx = 49% 
 
% of students feeling 
safe 
All students = 65% 
Hispanic/Latinx = 64% 
 

% of students feeling 
connected: 
All students = >50% 
Hispanic/Latinx = 
>50% 
White students = 
>50% 
 
% of students feeling 
safe: 
All students = >50% 
Hispanic/Latinx = 
>50% 
White students = 
>55% 
 

SEL Student Survey        This is a new metric 
so there is no data 
available yet. Baseline 
will be determined in 
the 2021-2022 school 
year. 

High School Students: 
 
Highest Domains: 
#1) Self-Awareness - 
Future = 62 students 
feel strong 

Administered May 
2023 
 
Lucy - I have 
questions about how 

The DataZone SEL 
survey was 
discontinued as we 
have CHKS data 
which is very 
comprehensive. 

Outcome target will be 
based on the results 
of the survey given in 
2021-2022. 
 



 

2024 LCAP Annual Update for the 2023-24 LCAP for Napa County Office of Education Page 7 of 31 

Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Year 3 Outcome 
Desired Outcome for 

2023–24 

              

Will implement the 
SEL survey in fall of 
2021 
 
Updated baseline data 
(spring 2022): 
 
High School Students: 
 
Highest Domains: 
#1) Self-Awareness - 
Future = 62 students 
feel strong 
#2) Social Awareness 
- Classroom Setting = 
50 students feel 
strong in this area 
#3) Social Awareness 
- School Setting = 49 
students feel strong in 
this area 
 
Lowest Domains: 
#1) School setting = 
27 students feel they 
are not strong in this 
area 
#2) Self-Awareness - 
Learning = 21 
students feel they are 
not strong in this area 
#3) Relationship Skills 
= 19 students feel 
they are not strong in 
this area 

#2) Social Awareness 
- Classroom Setting = 
50 students feel 
strong in this area 
#3) Social Awareness 
- School Setting = 49 
students feel strong in 
this area 
 
Lowest Domains: 
#1) School setting = 
27 students feel they 
are not strong in this 
area 
#2) Self-Awareness - 
Learning = 21 
students feel they are 
not strong in this area 
#3) Relationship Skills 
= 19 students feel 
they are not strong in 
this area 
 

this data was 
collected 
 

 
School created EOY 
student survey was 
administered. The 
majority of data is 
qualitative and 
indicates what is 
working for and 
engaging students 
and what they would  
like to see change. 
 
Notable metrics 
Interest in school 
since coming to 
Camille Creek = 35% 
increase interest 
Increase of 
confidence in 
workplace since 
coming to Camille 
Creek = 76% 
Improved self 
regulation = 79% 
 
 
 

Updated Outcomes 
(spring 2022): 
 
Lowest Domains: 
#1) School setting = 
reduce the number of 
students who feel they 
are not strong in this 
area to fewer than 15 
#2) Self-Awareness - 
Learning = reduce the 
number of students 
who feel they are not 
strong in this area to 
fewer than 10 
#3) Relationship Skills 
=  reduce the number 
of students who feel 
they are not strong in 
this area to fewer than 
10 
 
 



 

2024 LCAP Annual Update for the 2023-24 LCAP for Napa County Office of Education Page 8 of 31 

Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Year 3 Outcome 
Desired Outcome for 

2023–24 

              

 

Percentage of staff 
receiving Restorative 
Justice and SEL 
training to help 
support unduplicated 
students and those 
with exceptional 
needs.        

For 2020-2021: 
100% staff trained and 
supported 
 

For 2021-2022: 
100% staff were 
trained and supported 
 

For 2022-2023: 
100% of staff trained 
in Trauma informed 
practices to support 
unduplicated students 
and those with 
exceptional needs. 
100% of staff also had 
2 one hour trainings 
on De-escalating 
behavior. 
 

100% of staff attended 
4 online modules of 
training in Restorative 
Justice Community 
Circles. 100% of staff 
attended QPR training 
related to suicide 
prevention. 
90% of staff attended 
CPS Q and A to 
support understanding 
of the grey areas in 
mandated reporting. 
 

Maintain RJ and SEL 
follow-up training 
opportunities for 100% 
of staff 
 
100% of staff will 
continue to be trained 
and supported. 
 

Percentage of 
teachers fully 
credentialed, 
compliant, and 
appropriately 
assigned        

For 2020-2021: 
100% percent of our 
teachers were 
credentialed, 
compliant, and 
appropriately 
assigned. 
 

For 2021-2022: 
100% percent of our 
teachers were 
credentialed, 
compliant, and 
appropriately 
assigned. 
 

For 2022-2023: 
80% of our teachers 
were credentialed, 
compliant, and 
appropriately 
assigned. One 
classroom was served 
by long term 
substitutes and 
supervised by 
administration. There 
are currently 2 open 
teaching positions for 
the 23-24 school year. 
 

For 2023-2024 
100% of teachers are 
credentialed, 
compliant, and 
appropriately 
assigned. 
 

Maintain 100% of 
teachers credentialed, 
compliant, and 
appropriately 
assigned. 

Chronic Absenteeism 
- % of students 

The Chronic 
Absenteeism rate 
from August through 

The chronic 
absenteeism rate for 
2021-2022 was: 

The chronic 
absenteeism rate for 

The chronic 
absenteeism rate for 
2023-2024 is 

Decrease chronic 
absenteeism to 20% 



 

2024 LCAP Annual Update for the 2023-24 LCAP for Napa County Office of Education Page 9 of 31 

Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Year 3 Outcome 
Desired Outcome for 

2023–24 

              

missing more than 
10% of school        

mid-March in 2019-
2020 was 
All students: 27% 
Low-Income: 31.66% 
English learners: 25% 
 
The chronic 
absenteeism rate for 
2020-2021 was: 
All students: 56.52% 
(65 students) 
Low-Income:54.37% 
(56 students) 
English learners: 50% 
(15 students) 
 
 

All students: 47.32% 
Low-Income:50.59% 
English learners: 40% 
SPED: 46.67% 
Hispanic: 56% 
White: 53.3% 
 

2022-2023 to date 
was: 
All students: 66.27% 
Low-income: 69.57% 
English Learners: 
61.9% 
SPED: 64.29% 
Hispanic: 69.23% 
White: 75% 
 

established in EOY 
CALPADS reporting - 
TBD 
 
7/31/2024 
 
Students 6-12 grade = 
26% 
Students 6-8 grade = 
22% 
 
 

Middle school drop-
out rate 
 
High School drop-out 
rate 
        

10 students or 28% 
drop-out rate 
by the state's metrics 
in spring of 2020 but 
there are two who 
graduated in 2021 
 

The dropout rate for 
8th grade is 0% 
 
High school is 13.5% 
 

The dropout rate for 
8th grade is 0% 
 
High school is  TBD 
 

Dropout rate for 8th 
grade is 0% 
 
High School TBD 
 

Maintain middle 
school drop-out rate of 
0 
 
Decrease drop-out 
high-school drop-out 
rate (<20%) 
 

Facilities Inspection 
Tool (FIT) Reports: 
Basic school facilities 
will be maintained in 
good repair        

For 2020-2021: 
Our facilities remain in 
good condition as 
reported on the 
Facilities Inspection 
Tool 
 

For 2021-2022: 
Our facilities remain in 
good condition as 
reported on the 
Facilities Inspection 
Tool 
 

For 2022-2023: 
Our facility is in good 
condition according to 
FIT report dated 
10/31/2022 
 

For 2023-2024 
Our facility is in good 
condition as reported 
on the FIT report 
dated 9/15/2023 
 

Maintain facilities in 
good condition as 
reported on the FIT 



 

2024 LCAP Annual Update for the 2023-24 LCAP for Napa County Office of Education Page 10 of 31 

Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Year 3 Outcome 
Desired Outcome for 

2023–24 

              

Percentage of 
parental participation 
in programs for 
unduplicated students 
 
Percentage of 
parental participation 
in programs for 
students with 
exceptional needs 
        

For 2020-2021: 
100% of parents 
participated in 2 hour 
intake meetings with 
Licensed Clinical 
Social Worker for a 
biopsychosocial 
assessment. 
 
100% of parents of 
unduplicated students 
and those with 
exceptional needs 
participate in meetings 
and/or phone calls 
and home visits 
throughout the year. 
 

2021-2022: 
100% of parents 
participated in 2 hour 
intake meetings with 
Licensed Clinical 
Social Worker for a 
biopsychosocial 
assessment. 
 
100% of parents of 
unduplicated students 
and those with 
exceptional needs 
participate in meetings 
and/or phone calls 
and home visits 
throughout the year. 
 

2022-2023: 
100% of parents 
participated in 2 hour 
intake meetings with 
Licensed Clinical 
Social Worker for a 
biopsychosocial 
assessment. 
 
100% of parents of 
unduplicated students 
and those with 
exceptional needs 
participate in meetings 
and/or phone calls 
and home visits 
throughout the year. 
 

2023-2024 
61% of parents 
participated in 2 hour 
intake meetings with 
Licensed Clinical 
Social Worker for a 
biopsychosocial 
assessment. These 
are still in process due 
to numerous recent 
referrals. Update on 
June 18th. 
 
100% of parents of 
unduplicated students 
and those with 
exceptional needs 
participate in meetings 
and/or phone calls 
and home visits 
throughout the year. 
 

Maintain 100% of 
parents participating 
in 2 hour intake 
meetings with 
Licensed Clinical 
Social Worker for a 
biopsychosocial 
assessment. 
 
Maintain 100% of 
parents of 
unduplicated students 
and those with 
exceptional needs 
participate in meetings 
and/or phone calls 
and home visits 
throughout the year. 
 

Measure and track the 
number of 
contacts/interactions 
and time spent with 
families and students 
via the JCCS program 
spreadsheet        

August-December 
2020 = 1,017 contacts 
with families & 
students; 145 hours. 
 
 

2411 contacts with 
Parents, Guardians, 
Caregivers 
 
1313 student contacts 
 

2022-2023 School 
year 
1863 Total contacts 
parents, guardians, 
caregivers 
 
1882 student contacts 
 

August to May 2024 
1290 Contacts with 
parents, guardians, 
and caregivers 
 
902 student contacts 
 
New log entry system 
changed this year. 
Multiple entries for 
one meeting are no 
longer occurring. 

Maintain high number 
of 
contacts/interactions 
with families and 
students 



 

2024 LCAP Annual Update for the 2023-24 LCAP for Napa County Office of Education Page 11 of 31 

Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Year 3 Outcome 
Desired Outcome for 

2023–24 

              

 

 
Goal Analysis 

 
  

An analysis of how this goal was carried out in the previous year. 
A description of any substantive differences in planned actions and actual implementation of these actions. 
 

Our goal to support students and families through a holistic lens is a large part of the JCCS work. Our Bilingual Family Service Team consists 
of a School Social Worker, Interventions Coordinator, and 2 Family Liaisons. They serve as a bridge between parents and the school, 
ensuring that important information is conveyed clearly and timely to support student success. They also serve to connect families with 
community resources and support services, such as health care, counseling, parenting classes, and social services. Our fall survey showed 
of the 50 families responding, 100% feel welcome at the school and understand their role in helping their student thrive and 98% see the 
school as allies. In our spring survey, 100% of parents surveyed stated they had weekly contact with the school. The number of parent 
contacts has decreased steadily since it's height during the pandemic when much more student support and family access to resources was 
needed. We have also fewer student contacts with our Social Worker and Interventions Coordinator as we have a dedicated therapist 
providing services 9:00am - 5:00pm Thursdays as well as the opening of the new Wellness Center in January 2024. The Wellness Center is 
a collaboration between the JCCS and VOICES/On the Move and provides a calming and supportive environment for students to access a 
brain break and obtain basic personal care resources. 
 
Students input is given via the California Healthy Kids Survey (CHKS), Focus Groups, and the end of year student survey. Students feeling 
the school is safe was 65% this year and school connectedness was 46%. Of note was a 16% decrease in the number of students feeling 
that school is boring (a three year trend). Chronic sadness is trending lower than the past 3 years at 25%, but suicide ideation remains at an 
alarming 18%. Through the MSHAA and SBHIP grants, we were able to employ a .2FTE LMFT to engage students in weekly therapy, adding 
to the number of unduplicated students we were able to serve. Our School Social Worker continues to provide depression screening (PHQ9) 
for all students and follows up with any student with a score of 10 or higher, as well as students who self refer or are referred by staff or 
parents throughout the school year. Mental health services are provided in collaboration with Napa County Mental Health, so that all 
identified students have access to meeting their therapist during the school day in a private space on campus, decreasing not only barriers to 
access, but increasing the de-stigmatization of mental heath services. Further incites include the students preferring hands-on learning and a 
desire to expand CTE programming on the campus. They also are interested in more college and career readiness activities, internships, 
mentorships, and an increase in field trips. 80% of students report that they have improved in their self regulation skills and 76% have 
increase confidence in being successful at a workplace since attending the Community School. 
 
All staff Professional Development centered around Building Restorative Practices through Community Circles. This was in response to the 
overall increase in student verbal altercations in the previous school year and the increase in gang tensions on the school campus. 71% of 

http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/23LCAP/Instructions/23LCAPInstructions.htm#GoalAnalysis


 

2024 LCAP Annual Update for the 2023-24 LCAP for Napa County Office of Education Page 12 of 31 

the staff found the training effective in helping them build community and provide restorative practices. Our suspension rate has decreased, 
but is still not yet at our goal of 15%. We understand that students should be in school and only sent home on suspension if their behavior 
impacts campus safety. 
 
The attendance rate has improved over the last school year but has still not met the pre-pandemic levels we are hoping to see. Our goal is to 
continue to expand on our hands-on learning activities not only in the classroom, but in the project room on the second floor. We have 
purchased College and Career exploration labs from Paxton Patterson which combines real world activities with an online learning 
management platform. We have purchased and will launch Carolina Scientific Labs in the fall of 2024. Our new CTIG Plasma Cutter in the 
Welding Shop will expand the skill set of students in our Welding Program as well as introduce them to CAD programming. We have 
purchased a Direct to Garment Printer and a Large Format Digital printer to support the work of our Digital Media Club. 
        
 

 
An explanation of material differences between Budgeted Expenditures and Estimated Actual Expenditures and/or Planned Percentages of 
Improved Services and Estimated Actual Percentages of Improved Services. 
 

No material differences.        
 

 
An explanation of how effective or ineffective the specific actions were in making progress toward the goal during the three-year LCAP cycle. 
 

The past three years have been filled with the most significant changes in programming and policy in the recent JCCS history. Students were 
just returning to school after learning at home for one and a half years. Within 2 months, they were moved from older portables to the new 
facility. This provided them with expanded opportunities to learn in both the state of the art culinary kitchen and later in the spring, the new 
2400 sq foot construction and welding shop. They were no longer in self-contained classrooms, but were able to move from class to class on 
a larger campus. Our experience from the pandemic provided the leadership team with the knowledge that working more holistically with our 
families was key to reintegrating students back to school, as we saw an uptick in behaviors as well as a decrease from the norm in 
attendance. 
 
JCCS continues to have success with making connections and strengthening relations with parents via the bilingual parent liaisons, school 
social worker, and the interventions coordinator because the communication has been so frequent. In addition to communicating through 
ParentSquare, Facebook, and Instagram, these roles check in with designated families every week. The regular communication gives 
families an opportunity to share their needs, including basic needs, transportation, and schooling needs. Data highlights the areas where our 
families are in need of outreach and support. 14% of families are in need of food/meals which is down significantly from the pandemic levels. 
28% are in need of mental health/counseling, 28% are in need of transportation to school services, and 36% are stating they have significant 
financial concerns. If deep challenges exist for families, this flags a social worker contact. The social worker will then conduct follow-up 
check-ins with the family. Parents have reported that they see school staff as allies (98%). The amount of communication and weekly 
outreach to families have changed some parents' minds and increased their comfort level with sending students to campus. JCCS was able 



 

2024 LCAP Annual Update for the 2023-24 LCAP for Napa County Office of Education Page 13 of 31 

to have 902 interactions (i.e. check-in’s, crisis, intakes, job support) with students, and 1290 contacts with Parents, Guardians, and 
Caregivers. 
 
In response to an uptick in campus behavior, JCCS reduced the class size (to no more than 16) so that students could easily interact with 
their teachers and teachers could gain a sense of how each of the students are functioning. Students are more willing to talk about their 
mental health needs now. Our data shows that 52 students have received mental health services during the 2023-2024 school year. As of the 
beginning of June 2023, 92% of students received the PHQ-9 Screener. We have been able to build a strong school culture where students 
are safe accessing services on the campus and have made headway into the de-stigmatization of mental health services. 
 
Classes have team meetings where every student is discussed every three weeks. Every student/family is assigned a parent liaison to check-
in with them weekly to share student successes and setbacks and to ascertain what support might be needed. If students are not completing 
work, are absent from class, struggling behaviorally, or if depression is suspected (based on self-reporting or demeanor) the Family Service 
Team will set up a Student Success Team meeting. These meetings allow the team, admin, teacher and counselors to come together and 
brainstorm supports for the student to get back on track. 
 
Our current data shows that our attendance rate of 84% (Updated 7/31/24 - 87%) is up from last year's rate of 80.78%.  Unfortunately, our 
chronic absenteeism rate (35%) (Updated 7/31/24 - 26%) is higher than pre-pandemic with 43 students missing more than 10% of the school 
days to date. Even with the increased communication and connection with families, many students are not attending school as much as 
needed. This trend seems to be across California too. Going forward, JCCS is committed to increasing outreach through contact to families 
and to reviewing other root causes that might be contributing to our lower attendance rate. 
        
 

 
A description of any changes made to the planned goal, metrics, desired outcomes, or actions for the coming year that resulted from 
reflections on prior practice. 
 

The work of our Family Service team the past three years has paid off in the increase of parent connection to the school and the 
understanding of how to better support their student success at school. As such, we are discontinuing the parent connection goal and will 
continue to monitor via parent interaction and surveys. 
 
A new goal #4 will be created to increase opportunities for shared leadership with the parent body supporting the creation and execution of 
our family events at the Community School.  In unison with our community partner VOICES/OntheMove, we will provide a Wellness center for 
students to seek a place for a brain break, and to access basic needs. Baseline data will be the number of students accessing the center, but 
the metric may shift to attach those visits to outcomes such as suspension rate, SEL data, and attendance rate. Lastly, a new partnership 
with the Verizon Innovative Learning Schools Program will see a goal regarding teacher professional development to increase digital equity 
both in the classroom and at home. 
 



 

2024 LCAP Annual Update for the 2023-24 LCAP for Napa County Office of Education Page 14 of 31 

Goal #1 in 2024-2025 will focus on all students making academic progress in ELA and Math through targeted intervention and all English 
Learners will make progress towards developing literacy proficiency. All actions and services regarding the academic program for JCCS 
students will move to Goal #1. 
 
        
 

 
A report of the Total Estimated Actual Expenditures for last year’s actions may be found in the Annual Update Table. A report of the 
Estimated Actual Percentages of Improved Services for last year’s actions may be found in the Contributing Actions Annual Update 
Table. 
 



 

2024 LCAP Annual Update for the 2023-24 LCAP for Napa County Office of Education Page 15 of 31 

Goals and Actions 
 
Goal 
 

Goal # Description 
2 To assist our students to develop a plan and the skills to successfully enter the workforce or pursue further education or 

training. (LCFF Priorities 1, 2, 4, 5, 7, 8)         
 

Measuring and Reporting Results 
 

Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Year 3 Outcome 
Desired Outcome for 

2023–24 

              

% of students entering 
workforce or 
college/training 
program        

This is a new metric 
so no data is 
available. JCCS will 
begin tracking this 
information and 
baseline data will be 
set based on 
percentage in 2021-
2022. 
 
Updated Baseline: 
21% of students 
participating in a 
workforce training 
program (spring 2022) 
 

23 (out of 110) or 21% 
of students 
participating in a 
workforce training 
programs. 
 
No students were dual 
enrolled this year. 
 

21 students  or 25% 
participated in a 
workforce training 
program. 
One student was dual 
enrolled in the Napa 
Valley College this 
year. 
 
 

For 2023-2024 
. 
26% of  high school 
students entered 
workforce or 
college/training 
program. 
 
 
 

The outcome target 
will be set based on 
percentage of 
students entering 
workforce or 
college/training 
program in 2021-
2022. 
 
Updated Outcome 
(spring 2022): 30% of 
students will 
participate in a 
workforce training 
program 
 

Graduation Rate - 5 
year cohort        

For 2019-2020: 
All students = 69.2% 
Hispanic students = 
81% 
White students = 
41.7% 
 

For 2020-2021: 
All students = 61.1% 
Hispanic students = 
66.7% 
White students = 
group too small to 
report 
 

For 2021-2022 
All students = 59% 
 
 

For 2022-2023 
All students = 51.3% 
Hispanic students = 
45.2% 
 
Differentiated 
assistance process 
informed a shift in 

5 Year Cohort: All 
students = >70% 
Hispanic students = 
>85% 
White students = 
>43% 
 

http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/23LCAP/Instructions/23LCAPInstructions.htm#GoalsandActions
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/23LCAP/Instructions/23LCAPInstructions.htm#goalDescription
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/23LCAP/Instructions/23LCAPInstructions.htm#MeasuringandReportingResults


 

2024 LCAP Annual Update for the 2023-24 LCAP for Napa County Office of Education Page 16 of 31 

Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Year 3 Outcome 
Desired Outcome for 

2023–24 

              

2022 - Anticipated: 
24 students on track 
to graduate in June 
2022 
3 more students are 
on track to graduate 
by August 2022 
 

certain school 
practices during the 
2023-2024 school 
year. 
 
2023-2024 
All students = 68.7% 
 
 

1 Year Cohort:  All 
students = >70% 
 

A-G courses are now 
offered for all students 
including unduplicated 
and those with 
exceptional needs. 
Due to the small 
school population, the 
lack of any laboratory 
facility, and the lack of 
students performing at 
grade level, there will 
be a limited A-G 
course metric        

0 students took A-G 
courses in 2020-2021 

18 students enrolled 
in A-G coursework 

21 students enrolled 
in A-G coursework 
this school year. 

34 students enrolled 
and completing credits 
in our online A-G 
classes. 

The number of 
students taking A-G 
will be > 1 each year 

Advanced Placement 
courses are now 
offered to all students 
including unduplicated 
and those with 
exceptional needs; 
due to the small 
school population and 
the lack of students 
performing at grade 
level there will be a 
limited AP metric.        

0 students took an AP 
course or test in 2020-
2021 

0 students 0 students 0 students 3 students take an AP 
course 
1 student takes an AP 
test 
 



 

2024 LCAP Annual Update for the 2023-24 LCAP for Napa County Office of Education Page 17 of 31 

Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Year 3 Outcome 
Desired Outcome for 

2023–24 

              

CAASPP ELA        2018-2019 results 
ELA: 11.54% of 11th 
grade students who 
took the CAASPP met 
or exceeded standard 
 

CAASPP was not 
administered in 2021 

CAASPP 2022 data 
ELA: 13.64% of 11th 
grade students who 
took the CAASPP met 
or exceeded standard. 
 

CAASPP 2023 data 
ELA: 6.25%  of 11th 
grade students who 
took the CAASPP met 
or exceeded standard. 
 

Students enrolled one 
semester or more will 
improve scores by 3% 
in ELA 

CAASPP Math        2018-2019 results 
Math: 3.84% of 11th 
grade students who 
took the CAASPP met 
or exceeded the 
standard 
 

CAASPP was not 
administered in 2021 

CAASPP 2022 data 
Math: 0% of 11th 
grade students who 
took the CAASPP met 
or exceeded the 
standard 
 

CAASPP 2023 data 
Math: 0% of 11th 
grade students who 
took the CAASPP met 
or exceeded the 
standard 
 

Students enrolled one 
semester or more will 
improve scores by 3% 
in Math 

Percentage of 
students whose 
reading level on STAR 
Renaissance shows 
growth in reading over 
time        

This is a new metric 
so no data available. 
Baseline will be set 
based on percentage 
of students showing 
growth in reading in 
2021-2022. 
 
New Baseline Data: 
61% students grew in 
Lexile reading levels 
42% (out of 96 
students) grew more 
than one grade level 
in reading 
 
 

61% students grew in 
Lexile reading levels 
 
42% (out of 96 
students) grew more 
than one grade level 
in reading 
 

63% students showed 
growth on the reading 
interim assessments. 
 
38% student showed 
one year or more of 
growth. 
 

68% students showed 
growth on the reading 
assessments. 
 
35% student showed 
one year or more of 
growth. 
 

70% of students will 
meet their growth 
target in ELA 
 
Updated Outcomes 
(spring 2022): 
70% students will 
show growth on the 
ELA interim 
assessments. 
 
50% students will 
show one year or 
more of growth 
 

Percentage of 
students whose math 
performance on STAR 

This is a new metric 
so no data available. 
Baseline will be set 

57% students showed 
growth on the math 
interim assessments. 

63% students showed 
growth on the math 
interim assessments. 

61% students showed 
growth on the math 
assessments. 

70% of students will 
meet their growth 
target in Math 



 

2024 LCAP Annual Update for the 2023-24 LCAP for Napa County Office of Education Page 18 of 31 

Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Year 3 Outcome 
Desired Outcome for 

2023–24 

              

Renaissance shows 
growth in math over 
time        

based on percentage 
of students showing 
growth in math in 
2021-2022. 
 
New Baseline Data: 
57% students showed 
growth on the math 
interim assessments. 
 
38% student showed 
one year or more of 
growth 
 

 
38% student showed 
one year or more of 
growth. 
 

 
39% student showed 
one year or more of 
growth. 
 

 
39% student showed 
one year or more of 
growth. 
 

 
Updated Outcomes 
(spring 2022): 
 
70% students will 
show growth on the 
math interim 
assessments. 
 
50% student will show 
one year or more of 
growth 
 

CTE 
% of students enrolled 
in one of two 
Pathways 
        

0 percent of students 
enrolled as program 
will begin in 2021-
2022 

8 students enrolled in 
a culinary CTE 
pathway 
 
15 students enrolled 
in a welding CTE 
pathway 
 
100% of slots filled for 
the two CTE pathways 
 

8 students enrolled in 
a culinary CTE 
pathway 
 
22 students enrolled 
in a welding CTE 
pathway 
 
100% of slots filled for 
the two CTE pathways 
 

39 students enrolled 
in a CTE pathway 
during the 2023-2024 
school year or 35% of 
the student body. 
 
9 students will earn 
college credit in 
Culinary 
 

30% students will 
enroll in one of two 
pathways (spring 
2022: this outcome 
really isn't feasible as 
there are only 24 slots 
available for the two 
CTE pathways) 
 
Updated Outcome 
(spring 2022): 100% 
of slots will be filled for 
CTE pathway courses 
 

Percentage of 
students earning 
Workforce Certificates        

This is a new metric 
so no data available. 
Baseline will be set 
based on the 
percentage of 
students earning 

CTE Director is 
working on getting 
workforce certificates 
for JCCS students 

TBD 0 Students earned 
workforce certificates, 
moved goal to new 
LCAP. 

30% of juniors and 
seniors will earn a 
workforce certificate 



 

2024 LCAP Annual Update for the 2023-24 LCAP for Napa County Office of Education Page 19 of 31 

Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Year 3 Outcome 
Desired Outcome for 

2023–24 

              

workforce certificates 
in 2021-2022 

Percentage of 
students college ready 
on the Early 
Assessment Program 
(EAP) 
 
        

EAP for the 2018-
2019 school year: 
ELA: 11.54% of 11th 
grade students who 
took the CAASPP 
demonstrated college 
readiness. 
 
Math: 3.84% of 11th 
grade students who 
took the CAASPP 
demonstrated college 
readiness. 
 

CAASPP was not 
administered in 2021 

EAP for the 2021-
2022 school year: 
ELA: 13.64% of 11th 
grade students who 
took the CAASPP 
demonstrated college 
readiness. 
 
Math: 0% of 11th 
grade students who 
took the CAASPP 
demonstrated college 
readiness. 
 

EAP for the 2022-
2023 school year: 
ELA: 6.25% of 11th 
grade students who 
took the CAASPP 
demonstrated college 
readiness. 
 
Math: 0% of 11th 
grade students who 
took the CAASPP 
demonstrated college 
readiness. 
 

1% growth over 2018-
2019 EAP results. 

College/Career 
Readiness (CCR) 
Indicator on the CA 
Dashboard        

Red Performance 
Level on Ca School 
Dashboard in 2019 - 
0 percent of students 
were prepared for 
College or Career 
 

The CA Dashboard 
was not operational 
from 2020-spring 
2022 

The CCI was not 
operational on the 
Dashboard in 2022 

For 2023-2024 
0% prepared; 9.4% 
approaching prepared 
 

Orange performance 
level on CA School 
Dashboard. 
10% of seniors will 
graduate 
college/career ready 
 

Access to Broad 
Course of Study as 
measured by the 
JCCS master 
calendar.        

For 2020-2021: 
100% of students, 
including unduplicated 
and those with 
exceptional needs 
have access to broad 
course of study in 
subject areas 
described in section 
51210 and 51220 

For 2021-2022: 
100% of students, 
including unduplicated 
and those with 
exceptional needs had 
access to a broad 
course of study. 
 

For 2022-2023: 
100% of students, 
including unduplicated 
and those with 
exceptional needs had 
access to a broad 
course of study. 
 

For 2023-2024: 
100% of students, 
including unduplicated 
and those with 
exceptional needs had 
access to a broad 
course of study 
 

100% of students, 
including unduplicated 
and those with 
exceptional needs 
have access to broad 
course of study in 
subject areas 
described in section 
51210 and 51220 



 

2024 LCAP Annual Update for the 2023-24 LCAP for Napa County Office of Education Page 20 of 31 

Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Year 3 Outcome 
Desired Outcome for 

2023–24 

              

 

Maintain Middle 
School completion 
rates for students who 
are enrolled 90 days 
or longer at 95% or 
greater.        

For 2020-2021: 
100% of students 
completed 
 

For 2021-2022: 
100% of students 
completed 
 

For 2022-2023: 
100% of students 
completed 
 

For 2023-2024 
100% of students 
completed 
 

Maintain 100% 

Percentage of 
teachers 
implementing the 
State Standards 
 
Percentage of 
students provided with 
the required 
instructional materials 
(the program is 
transitioning to a 
digital curriculum – 
license will be 
obtained for all 
students). 
        

For 2020-2021: 
100% of teachers 
implement state 
standards 
 
100% of students 
continue to be 
provided with all 
standards-aligned 
required instructional 
materials, including 
ELD. 
 

For 2021-2022: 
100% of teachers 
implemented state 
standards 
 
100% of students 
continued to be 
provided with all 
standards-aligned 
required instructional 
materials, including 
ELD. 
 

For 2022-2023: 
100% of teachers 
implemented state 
standards 
 
100% of students 
continued to be 
provided with all 
standards-aligned 
required instructional 
materials, including 
ELD. 
 

For 2023-2024: 
100% of teachers 
implemented state 
standards 
 
100% of students 
continued to be 
provided with all 
standards-aligned 
required instructional 
materials, including 
ELD 
 

Maintain 100% 
teachers 
implementing state 
standards 
 
Maintain 100% of 
students provided with 
all standards-aligned 
required instructional 
materials including 
ELD 
 

EL Re-designated 
rate; EL proficiency on 
ELPAC        

ELPAC summative 
testing was 
interrupted in the 
spring of 2019-2021 
due to campus 
closures from COVID. 
 
Only 19 out of 37 
students completed 
the ELPAC 

1 student has been re-
designated in 2021-
2022. 
 
1 student making 
progress (or 
advancing one 
proficiency level) on 
the ELPAC. 
 

0 students will be 
redesignated  this 
school year. 
 
X students making 
progress (or 
advancing one 
proficiency level) on 
the ELPAC. 
 

For 2023 
0 Students Re-
designated 
 
50% of students 
progressed one 
proficiency level. 
 

For students enrolled 
180 days or more, 
70% will advance one 
proficiency level on 
ELPAC. 
 
Re-designate at least 
20% of students 
enrolled 180 days or 
longer 



 

2024 LCAP Annual Update for the 2023-24 LCAP for Napa County Office of Education Page 21 of 31 

Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Year 3 Outcome 
Desired Outcome for 

2023–24 

              

summative and 0 
students scored an 
overall performance of 
4 so 0 percent of 
students were re-
designated as English 
proficient in 2019-
2020. 
 

 

 
Goal Analysis 

 
  

An analysis of how this goal was carried out in the previous year. 
A description of any substantive differences in planned actions and actual implementation of these actions. 
 

NCOE's Juvenile Court and Community School (JCCS) programs have learned much about student needs and what works best for their 
educational success. In an effort to provide students a pathway to post secondary education and training, there has been an emphasis on 
English and math skills acquisition. In addition to targeted classroom instruction, all teachers hold office hours for student support and there is 
homework help four days a week. All teachers have been trained in Reading with Relevance, a California State standards based literacy 
program where teachers guide students through the process of reading relevant, culturally diverse, socially and emotionally rich literature. 
Other curricula includes Freckle ELA and Math. These programs help target individualized instruction with scaffolding and embedded 
assessments which align with the individual student's needs. ELA and math assessments are administered three times over the course of the 
year to ascertain progress and help target interventions. Students with IEPs receive additional instruction from their Resource teacher and 
instructional support specialist. Our ELL designated students receive additional support through the Freckle's specialized ELL program 
addressing phonics, language development, and fluency. All students have access to A-G courses through the online program (and there are 
now 34 students taking A-G courses), Bright Thinker 
 
Every three weeks, the classroom team (teacher, instructional support personnel, and parent liaison) meet to review every individual 
student's attendance, academic progress, and social/emotional well being. If students are not fully participating or not making progress, 
interventions are put in place, such as: additional instructional time with teachers; SST meetings; referrals to counselors; home visits. 
Teachers work together one hour every other week for professional development and to discuss and evaluate student work. Together, staff 
evaluate curriculum, programs, and strategies to determine what to continue, discontinue and to make changes where needed. In addition to 
two CTE pathways (Welding and Culinary) the following are also available to engage students in schooling: School Garden, Visual Arts, PE, 
Culinary and Digital Media Clubs, Mariposa/Men's Group, Equine Therapy, and Work Experience. Also included in our community school 

http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/23LCAP/Instructions/23LCAPInstructions.htm#GoalAnalysis


 

2024 LCAP Annual Update for the 2023-24 LCAP for Napa County Office of Education Page 22 of 31 

enrollment numbers is an Independent Study program where students meet with their teacher twice weekly. We have a full-time bilingual 
social worker and bilingual interventions coordinator who is also our SARB supervisor as well as two bicultural bilingual parent liaisons. 
During regular operations, the school day runs from 9:00 to 2:00 PM. We run a 3 hour after school program with a grant from 21st Century 
High School After School Safety and Enrichment for Teens (ASSETs). We partner with community agencies to provide our students on site, 
as well as off site, mental health services, drug and alcohol treatment, enrichment activities and community service opportunities. 
 
New initiatives started in the 2023-2024 school year include a partnership with Career Point to provide paid internship opportunities, 
articulation with the Napa Valley College with the Culinary Pathway so students can earn college credit through their high school class, and 
increased opportunities to explore post secondary education and career goals with more guest speakers, field trips to local colleges, trade 
school visits, and field trips to local industries both in the field of hospitality and manufacturing. We have a partnership with the Lead to 
Literacy Grant and students who struggle the most with literacy have one to one coaching 3 times weekly with an instructor trained in the 
science of reading. 
        
 

 
An explanation of material differences between Budgeted Expenditures and Estimated Actual Expenditures and/or Planned Percentages of 
Improved Services and Estimated Actual Percentages of Improved Services. 
 

No notable material differences between Budgeted Expenditures and Estimated Actual Expenditures.        
 

 
An explanation of how effective or ineffective the specific actions were in making progress toward the goal during the three-year LCAP cycle. 
 

JCCS has had a long history of addressing the needs of at risk youth. These very high-need students face many challenges, including 
poverty, poor academic achievement, and low resiliency factors. The social, emotional, behavioral, and academic supports and interventions 
we provide to both students and families helps with maintaining a strong attendance rate (for alternative education programs) and helps with 
reducing behavior challenges. JCCS is exceptionally proud of our newer CTE pathways we offer with our new facilities. We are seeing 
students becoming very engaged with the welding and culinary programs and they are learning life skills that will benefit them post high 
school. 100% of our slots have been filled again this school year with 35% of our student body enrolled in a CTE class and 9 students 
earning college credit via the articulation agreement between the Napa Valley College and the JCCS Culinary program.  For additional career 
readiness, JCCS is excited that 26% of students have been participating in the workforce training program. 
Even with all of the supports though, students still struggle with their basic math and language arts concepts. In 2023, only 6.25% of 11th 
grade students who took the CAASPP met or exceeded standards in language arts and 0% of students meet standards for math. It is 
incumbent upon us to do all we can to rectify our students learning gaps in the short time we have them (our students are with us for an 
average of 18-22 months.) With the actions and services targeted for 2023-2024, we are starting to see some more engagement in academic 
programs as 34 students have been enrolled in A-G courses. Our interim data shows that we have over 90% work completion and we believe 
this can be partially attributed to a new and more engaging and adaptive online A-G program. We have also seen growth on the  language 
arts and math assessments. Assessment data to date shows 68% of students progressed on the reading and 61% of students progressed in 
math. 



 

2024 LCAP Annual Update for the 2023-24 LCAP for Napa County Office of Education Page 23 of 31 

 
        
 

 
A description of any changes made to the planned goal, metrics, desired outcomes, or actions for the coming year that resulted from 
reflections on prior practice. 
 

Moving forward with the new LCAP, we will make some changes to Goal #2. The new Goal #2 will be expanded to read: To provide our 
students the opportunity to explore their interests and develop a post-secondary plan and to provide the skills to successfully enter the 
workforce or pursue further education or training. All actions/services and metrics related to workforce, graduation and college and career 
readiness, internships, and pursuing further education and training will live under the new Goal #2. 
 
We have been trying to better assess if engagement in certain programs can support an increase in the graduation rate.  As stated earlier, 
JCCS has learned much about what works and doesn't work well for our students. Going forward, we want to continue to focus energies on 
practices that will really change the course of our students' lives. JCCS is committed to having fewer students in a class so students 
encounter fewer distractions and have more focus, so they can maximize learning time and get more of their work completed. JCCS wants to 
make the learning conditions optimum for students on campus. The updated instructional schedule will provide 2.5 hours of academics 
broken up across the school day. All students will have 90 minutes for homeroom instruction in the morning followed by a break. Math 
instruction for all students will be at a common time in the morning where instructional support staff will push into classrooms to increase 
engagement and address diverse learning needs. There will be a common lunch where students can socialize and then students return to 
targeted academics based on needs. Electives will be offered in the afternoon and hands-on learning will be emphasized throughout the day. 
 
        
 

 
A report of the Total Estimated Actual Expenditures for last year’s actions may be found in the Annual Update Table. A report of the 
Estimated Actual Percentages of Improved Services for last year’s actions may be found in the Contributing Actions Annual Update 
Table. 
 



 

2024 LCAP Annual Update for the 2023-24 LCAP for Napa County Office of Education Page 24 of 31 

Goals and Actions 
 
Goal 
 

Goal # Description 
3 Improve the coordination of services for foster youth among Child Welfare, Probation, and LEAs. (LCFF Priority 10)         

 

Measuring and Reporting Results 
 

Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Year 3 Outcome 
Desired Outcome for 

2023–24 

              

Advisory Council 
Attendance -Measure 
membership 
attendance 
(5 meetings/year) 
        

For 2020-2021: 
70% of council 
members attended 
regularly 
 

Mid Year 2022- Avg. 
80% 
 
Year End Total - Avg. 
74% of council 
members attend 
regularly 
 

The Executive 
Advisory Council 
Meeting average 
attendance for 2022-
2023 was: 79%. 
 
 

67% of council 
members are 
attending regularly 
 
 

85% of council 
members will attend 
90% meetings 

Completion of Council 
Meeting Surveys - 
percentage of council 
members completing 
surveys        

For 2020-2021: 
50% of Advisory 
Council members 
completed the surveys 
 

50% of council 
members completed 
surveys 
 
70% rated the council 
meetings as effective 
or highly effective 
 

TBD as new assistant 
director is currently 
sending a survey to 
collect this data. 

70% of council 
members completed 
the survey. 85% of 
members rated the 
council meetings as 
highly effective 
 
 

75% of council 
members will 
complete surveys 
80% of members will 
rate the council 
meetings as highly 
effective 
 

Post Grad Data: 
Percent of students 
who qualify for 
graduation 
Percentage of 
students who 
complete the FAFSA 
        

For 2020-2021: 
Foster rights have 
been shared with 
students but we do 
not yet have student 
confirmation of those 
who graduated 

Year End - Out of 9 
seniors, 7 qualify to 
graduate - 4 
completed FAFSA 
(57%) 
 
Youth were not 
surveyed about 

Out of 11 seniors, 9 
qualify to graduate. 
 
TBD: TBD percentage 
of students completed 
the FAFSA. 
 
 

11 seniors qualify to 
graduate. 3 seniors 
have submitted 
FAFSA applications 
 
 

80% of students 
report that they know 
about their Foster 
rights pertaining to 
graduation 
Of those students 
interested in attending 

http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/23LCAP/Instructions/23LCAPInstructions.htm#GoalsandActions
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/23LCAP/Instructions/23LCAPInstructions.htm#goalDescription
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/23LCAP/Instructions/23LCAPInstructions.htm#MeasuringandReportingResults


 

2024 LCAP Annual Update for the 2023-24 LCAP for Napa County Office of Education Page 25 of 31 

Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Year 3 Outcome 
Desired Outcome for 

2023–24 

              

2 students (4%) 
completed the FAFSA 
 

knowing their rights; 
will complete in 2022-
23 
 

 college, 100% 
complete the FAFSA 
 

Transition to TK-K 
Data: 
Flagging the 
percentage of early 
childhood students 
transitioning to TK-K 
        

This is a new metric 
so no data is 
available. We will 
begin to track this 
information and 
baseline will be set 
based on 2021-2022 
data. 

4 students have been 
identified in state 
preschool program 
and 100% flagged for 
potentially 
transitioning to TK/K 

4 students have been 
identified in state 
preschool program 
and 100% flagged for 
potentially 
transitioning to TK/K 

1 FY attending NCOE 
pre-school 
1 TK will transition to 
K 
 
 

Of all FY attending 
early childhood 
programs, flag 90% of 
them prior to the start 
of their TK-K school 
year 

Training Data to 
Track: 
Percentage of 
agencies that attend 
trainings offered 
Effectiveness of 
trainings (post survey) 
        

For 2020-2021: 
35% of partner 
agencies and districts 
regularly attend the 
trainings 
 
85.7% of participants 
rated the trainings as 
helpful 
 

10 Trainings were 
provided 
 
AVG - 80% of districts 
participated 
 
AVG - 85% of 
participants rated the 
trainings as effective 
or highly effective 
 

5 Trainings were 
provided during the 
2022-2023 SY 
 
AVG - 87% of districts 
participated 
 
AVG - 75% of 
participants rated the 
trainings as effective 
or highly effective 
 

3 countywide trainings 
5 countywide 
presentations 
86% of district & 
agencies participate in 
the countywide 
trainings. 
91% of participants 
rated trainings as 
effective or highly 
effective 
 
 

100% of districts and 
agencies participate in 
the countywide 
trainings 
 
90% of participants 
will rate the trainings 
as effective or highly 
effective 
 

 
Goal Analysis 

 
  

An analysis of how this goal was carried out in the previous year. 
A description of any substantive differences in planned actions and actual implementation of these actions. 
 

There was a staffing vacancy for the role of Education Liaison which created a slight change in the implementation of planned actions. The 
FYSCP coordinator also served as the role of Education Liaison until the position was filled in January.  With the support of the assistant 
director, the coordinator continued to support Child Welfare with their case management for FY in the county. The team also coordinated & 

http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/23LCAP/Instructions/23LCAPInstructions.htm#GoalAnalysis


 

2024 LCAP Annual Update for the 2023-24 LCAP for Napa County Office of Education Page 26 of 31 

facilitated 3 county wide trainings, 5 advisory council meetings and 5 agency presentations for Child Welfare, probation, and LEAs. There 
was also the continued collaboration of the subcommittee to ensure high school students received post grad support & outreach for FAFSA 
completion.        
 

 
An explanation of material differences between Budgeted Expenditures and Estimated Actual Expenditures and/or Planned Percentages of 
Improved Services and Estimated Actual Percentages of Improved Services. 
 

All budgeted funds were used to implement the planned actions and services for this goal.        
 

 
An explanation of how effective or ineffective the specific actions were in making progress toward the goal during the three-year LCAP cycle. 
 

Our partnership with Child Welfare, probation and LEAs was strengthened in the 2023-2024 year. We were able to facilitate trainings in 
partnership with Child Welfare and 91% of participants surveyed found the trainings highly effective or effective. Our LEAs participation rate 
was at 83% for trainings, meetings, and presentations regarding topics such as school stability, college and career readiness and student 
welfare & attendance. Post-secondary outreach and support also proved effective in partnerships with Child welfare, probation, and VOICES.        
 

 
A description of any changes made to the planned goal, metrics, desired outcomes, or actions for the coming year that resulted from 
reflections on prior practice. 
 

We plan to increase our collaboration with LEAs & Child Welfare to streamline procedures and logistics to better serve our FY. The FYSCP 
coordinator will facilitate and lead all trainings, meetings and presentations for district liaisons, Child Welfare and probation. The use of Title 
IV-E will continue to fund the educational liaison position which will ensure foster youth’s rights are upheld and procedures are followed. The 
FYSCP coordinator will continue to use data to inform the Advisory Council on decisions and support impacting FY students. In the coming 
year the FYSCP coordinator will also use data to provide tracking of early childhood FY population and give technical assistance to provider 
agencies. 
 
For the 2024-2025 LCAP, this goal is moving to Goal #5 as NCOE is adding two new goals, including a specific Focus Goal and an Equity 
Multiplier goal.  The new Goal #3 is an important focus goal to increase the attendance rate and decrease the suspension rate for low-income 
students by implementing actions that promote self-regulation and student connectedness. Students need to be at school to benefit from the 
academic program and wrap around services JCCS provides. Our aim is to increase attendance for our students with a set of specific 
investments that bolster connectedness and promote student self-regulation. Actions, services, and metrics related to increasing the 
attendance rate and decreasing the suspension rate will be moved to the new Goal #3. 
 



 

2024 LCAP Annual Update for the 2023-24 LCAP for Napa County Office of Education Page 27 of 31 

The new Goal #4, or the Equity Multiplier (required) goal, will be for students to develop the necessary confidence and soft skills to 
successfully navigate and thrive in professional environments. This includes effective communication, teamwork, problem-solving, time 
management, and emotional intelligence. All actions, services, and metrics related to this will be moved to Goal #4. 
 
        
 

 
A report of the Total Estimated Actual Expenditures for last year’s actions may be found in the Annual Update Table. A report of the 
Estimated Actual Percentages of Improved Services for last year’s actions may be found in the Contributing Actions Annual Update 
Table. 
 



 

2024 LCAP Annual Update for the 2023-24 LCAP for Napa County Office of Education Page 28 of 31 

Goals and Actions 
 
Goal 
 

Goal # Description 
4 Coordinate the instruction of expelled pupils with the districts in the county so that all students can be places in an 

appropriate educational setting. (LCFF Priority 9)         
 

Measuring and Reporting Results 
 

Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Year 3 Outcome 
Desired Outcome for 

2023–24 

              

Maintain Community 
School program as an 
option for expelled 
pupils. Maintain and 
update AB922 plan as 
needed.        

For 2020-2021: 
The Community 
School program was 
maintained as an 
option for expelled 
pupils. The AB922 
plan was maintained 
and updated as 
needed. 
 

For 2021-2022: 
The Community 
School program was 
maintained as an 
option for expelled 
pupils. The AB922 
plan was maintained 
and updated as 
needed. 
 

For 2022-2023: 
The Community 
School program was 
maintained as an 
option for expelled 
pupils. The AB922 
plan was maintained 
and updated as 
needed. 
 

For 2023-2024 
The Community 
School program was 
maintained as an 
option for expelled 
pupils. The AB922 
plan was maintained 
and updated as 
needed. 
 

Maintain AB922 plan 
and update as 
needed. 

 
Goal Analysis 

 
  

An analysis of how this goal was carried out in the previous year. 
A description of any substantive differences in planned actions and actual implementation of these actions. 
 

NCOE has continued to implement the Countywide Expulsion Plan. We also maintain close coordination between NCOE staff and district 
liaison’s for all referrals to the NCOE community school and independent study programs, which are the only public school options available 
for expelled students in Napa County.        
 

 

http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/23LCAP/Instructions/23LCAPInstructions.htm#GoalsandActions
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/23LCAP/Instructions/23LCAPInstructions.htm#goalDescription
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/23LCAP/Instructions/23LCAPInstructions.htm#MeasuringandReportingResults
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/23LCAP/Instructions/23LCAPInstructions.htm#GoalAnalysis


 

2024 LCAP Annual Update for the 2023-24 LCAP for Napa County Office of Education Page 29 of 31 

An explanation of material differences between Budgeted Expenditures and Estimated Actual Expenditures and/or Planned Percentages of 
Improved Services and Estimated Actual Percentages of Improved Services. 
 

No material differences have occurred for this goal.        
 

 
An explanation of how effective or ineffective the specific actions were in making progress toward the goal during the three-year LCAP cycle. 
 

Educational partners have agreed that the actions and services for the coordination of instruction for expelled pupils with the districts in the 
county have been highly effective. Coordination activities have included a well-documented referral process, designated points of contact at 
all LEAs, NCOE participation in district SARB processes, regular school law meetings, and the integration of district staff (e.g. special 
education) into the NCOE service offerings, and compliance with all placement change requirements for pupils with IEPs. The NCOE 
Community School Program continues to be a viable and sufficient educational placement option for expelled pupils in Napa County. As no 
districts operate community day school programs, the Community School continues to be the only publicly funded option for grades 7-12 
students and continues to accommodate the possibility of serving K-6 students. It should be noted that to our knowledge, there has not been 
an elementary school expulsion in Napa County for many years.        
 

 
A description of any changes made to the planned goal, metrics, desired outcomes, or actions for the coming year that resulted from 
reflections on prior practice. 
 

No changes will be made to the actions/services or outcomes for this Goal, but the Goal will be moving to Goal #6 in 2024-2025 as NCOE is 
adding a new focus goal and an Equity Multiplier Goal to the new LCAP. 
 
The new Goal #4, or the Equity Multiplier (required) goal, will be for students to develop the necessary confidence and soft skills to 
successfully navigate and thrive in professional environments. This includes effective communication, teamwork, problem-solving, time 
management, and emotional intelligence. All actions, services, and metrics related to this will be moved to Goal #4. 
        
 

 
A report of the Total Estimated Actual Expenditures for last year’s actions may be found in the Annual Update Table. A report of the 
Estimated Actual Percentages of Improved Services for last year’s actions may be found in the Contributing Actions Annual Update 
Table. 
 



 

2024 LCAP Annual Update for the 2023-24 LCAP for Napa County Office of Education Page 30 of 31 

Instructions 
For additional questions or technical assistance related to the completion of the Local Control and Accountability Plan (LCAP) template, 
please contact the local county office of education (COE), or the California Department of Education’s (CDE’s) Local Agency Systems Support 
Office, by phone at 916-319-0809 or by email at lcff@cde.ca.gov. 
Complete the prompts as instructed for each goal included in the 2023–24 LCAP. Duplicate the tables as needed. The 2023–24 LCAP Annual 
Update must be included with the 2024–25 LCAP. 
Goals and Actions 
Goal(s) 
Description:  
Copy and paste verbatim from the 2023–24 LCAP. 
Measuring and Reporting Results 

• Copy and paste verbatim from the 2023–24 LCAP. 
Metric:  

• Copy and paste verbatim from the 2023–24 LCAP. 
Baseline:  

• Copy and paste verbatim from the 2023–24 LCAP. 
Year 1 Outcome:  

• Copy and paste verbatim from the 2023–24 LCAP. 
Year 2 Outcome:  

• Copy and paste verbatim from the 2023–24 LCAP. 
Year 3 Outcome:  

• When completing the 2023–24 LCAP Annual Update, enter the most recent data available. Indicate the school year to which the data applies. 
Desired Outcome for 2023–24:  

• Copy and paste verbatim from the 2023–24 LCAP. 
Timeline for completing the “Measuring and Reporting Results” part of the Goal. 

Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Year 3 Outcome 
Desired Outcome 

for Year 3 
(2023–24) 

Copy and paste 
verbatim from the 
2023–24 LCAP. 

Copy and paste 
verbatim from the 
2023–24 LCAP. 

Copy and paste 
verbatim from the 
2023–24 LCAP. 

Copy and paste 
verbatim from the 
2023–24 LCAP. 

Enter information 
in this box when 
completing the 
2023–24 LCAP 
Annual Update. 

Copy and paste 
verbatim from the 
2023–24 LCAP. 

Goal Analysis 
Using actual annual measurable outcome data, including data from the Dashboard, analyze whether the planned actions were effective in 
achieving the goal. Respond to the prompts as instructed. 
A description of any substantive differences in planned actions and actual implementation of these actions. 

mailto:lcff@cde.ca.gov


 

2024 LCAP Annual Update for the 2023-24 LCAP for Napa County Office of Education Page 31 of 31 

● Describe the overall implementation of the actions to achieve the articulated goal. Include a discussion of relevant challenges and 
successes experienced with the implementation process. This must include any instance where the LEA did not implement a planned 
action or implemented a planned action in a manner that differs substantively from how it was described in the adopted LCAP.  

An explanation of material differences between Budgeted Expenditures and Estimated Actual Expenditures and/or Planned Percentages of 
Improved Services and Estimated Actual Percentages of Improved Services. 

● Explain material differences between Budgeted Expenditures and Estimated Actual Expenditures and between the Planned 
Percentages of Improved Services and Estimated Actual Percentages of Improved Services, as applicable. Minor variances in 
expenditures or percentages do not need to be addressed, and a dollar-for-dollar accounting is not required. 

An explanation of how effective or ineffective the specific actions were in making progress toward the goal during the three-year LCAP cycle. 
● Describe the effectiveness or ineffectiveness of the specific actions in making progress toward the goal during the three-year LCAP 

cycle. “Effectiveness” means the degree to which the actions were successful in producing the desired result and “ineffectiveness” 
means that the actions did not produce any significant or desired result. 

o In some cases, not all actions in a goal will be intended to improve performance on all of the metrics associated with the goal.  
o When responding to this prompt, LEAs may assess the effectiveness of a single action or group of actions within the goal in the 

context of performance on a single metric or group of specific metrics within the goal that are applicable to the action(s). 
Grouping actions with metrics will allow for more robust analysis of whether the strategy the LEA is using to impact a specified 
set of metrics is working and increase transparency for educational partners. LEAs are encouraged to use such an approach 
when goals include multiple actions and metrics that are not closely associated. 

o Beginning with the development of the 2024–25 LCAP, the LEA must change actions that have not proven effective over a three-year 
period.  

A description of any changes made to the planned goal, metrics, desired outcomes, or actions for the coming year that resulted from 
reflections on prior practice. 

● Describe any changes made to this goal, expected outcomes, metrics, or actions to achieve this goal as a result of this analysis and 
analysis of the data provided in the Dashboard or other local data, as applicable. 

o As noted above, beginning with the development of the 2024–25 LCAP, the LEA must change actions that have not proven effective over a 
three-year period. For actions that have been identified as ineffective, the LEA must identify the ineffective action and must include a 
description of the following: 

▪ The reasons for the ineffectiveness, and  
▪ How changes to the action will result in a new or strengthened approach. 

California Department of Education 
November 2023 

 



2024-25 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Napa County Office of Education Page 1 of 87 

Local Control and Accountability Plan 
The instructions for completing the Local Control and Accountability Plan (LCAP) follow the template. 

Local Educational Agency (LEA) Name Contact Name and Title Email and Phone 
Napa County Office of Education   Joshua Schultz        

Deputy Superintendent 
jschultz@napacoe.org 
(707) 253-6832

Plan Summary [2024-25] 
General Information 
A description of the LEA, its schools, and its students in grades transitional kindergarten–12, as applicable to the LEA. 

Napa County Office of Education's (NCOE) Juvenile Court and Community Schools (JCCS) enrolls students from Napa County who are in 
need of a smaller school setting, higher student to staff ration, and individualized educational opportunities. Students have access to highly 
trained teachers and support staff to provide them with the opportunity to build the skills and confidence they need to be successful both in 
the educational setting as well as in the community. The majority of our students have struggled greatly in the comprehensive middle and 
high schools and are significantly behind in both reading comprehension and mathematics. The average grade equivalency for math in the 
23-24 school year is 5.4 and 5.1 for reading comprehension. Our current population is 69% female, 31% male with 65% of the students
Hispanic, 28% white, 4% Black, and 3% Asian. 84.5% of our students are considered low-socioeconomic status with 27% considered
homeless or doubled up in housing for financial reasons. 27% are English Learners, and 24% are students with disabilities. 27% of our
students are on formal probation and 100% of are referred for expulsion, truancy, and/or behavioral issues.

It is through meaningful relationships with caring adults that our students begin to feel they belong, they are worthy, and that they can 
succeed in school and with the broader community. JCCS' mission is to empower our county's most system impacted youth toward a 
productive future through restorative relationships, targeted instruction, and inspiring opportunities for growth. JCCS' aspirations are to 
provide highly engaging academic programs through an innovative blend of classroom instruction; online and hands on learning to increase 
engagement with schooling; a focus on social and emotional learning in a supportive environment; college and career preparation through 
training, self-reflection and real-world experiences; coordinated mental health services with universal screening; assistance in helping 

http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/24LCAP/Instructions/24LCAPInstructions.htm#PlanSummary
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/24LCAP/Instructions/24LCAPInstructions.htm#generalinformation


2024-25 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Napa County Office of Education Page 2 of 87 

students access their innate source of creativity through arts education; and opportunities for students to engage in supervised prosocial 
activities during and after school. 
 
The Local Control and Accountability Plan (LCAP) is our 3-Year plan describing the vision for student success, annual goals, actions, and 
how we use the Local Control Funding Formula (LCFF) to serve all students, including English learners, low-income, foster youth, and 
students with disabilities in alignment with California’s ten educational priorities. The plan also states how the goals, actions, and services 
align with the budget. NCOE’s funding entitlement for JCCS under LCFF is the LCFF Alternative Education Grant, which consists of a Base 
Grant per pupil, plus Supplemental and Concentration Grants based on the students in the program who are eligible for free and reduced 
price lunch, and/or are English language learners and/or foster youth. NCOE’s estimated total Alternative Education Grant for 2024-2025 is 
approximately $1,923,839 including approximately $556,418 in supplemental and concentration grant funding. In addition, the JCCS program 
receives Equity Multiplier (EM) funding of $219,996 and Student Support and Enrichment Block Grant funding of $287,070. For 2024-2025, 
NCOE is projecting an additional unrestricted contribution to the JCCS budget beyond the Alternative Education Grant, SSEBG, and EM of 
1,076,769, for a total unrestricted expenditure budget of approximately $3,507,671. In addition, NCOE has allotted over $580,000 per year 
for the next 28 years for debt service for the new Community School Facility. 
 
Given that 100% of JCCS students are at risk in the sense that they have been expelled or referred from district programs, are probation 
referred, or they are incarcerated, funds will be spent countywide to provide educational offerings and support services. One-hundred percent 
of students in Juvenile Court School are considered low income as they are wards of the court; in the Community School, 80-85% of students 
qualify for supplemental and concentration grant funds. To provide services exclusively to low income pupils in self-contained classrooms of 
approximately 20 students would mean denying services to three or four of a class of 20 in the same room. The most effective way to meet 
the needs of the low income, English Learner, and foster youth pupils in the JCCS programs is to provide the highest quality program 
possible to all students. NCOE’s JCCS programs are committed to using the LCAP to guide a cycle of continuous reflection, refinement, and 
improvement. Stakeholder engagement, including parents, students, staff, and community members, continues to play a critical role in 
supporting the implementation, evaluation, and monitoring of the plan. The JCCS LCAP has four overarching goals and a number of high 
priority initiatives that will advance student progress and increase opportunities in order for all students to succeed. 
 
The NCOE JCCS is allocating its community and court schools base grant to enhance academic support, college and career readiness 
instruction, and behavioral and social-emotional support services to develop students prepared for the future. These funds will also be 
directed towards bolstering academic intervention services and facilitating community-based learning activities. The Student Enrichment and 
Support Block Grant will be employed to augment work-based and vocational learning experiences, as well as to increase access to 
programs articulated with Napa Valley College. We are dedicated to the transparent use of these resources to foster student success and 
broaden educational opportunities. 
 
 
         

 
 



2024-25 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Napa County Office of Education Page 3 of 87 

Reflections: Annual Performance 
 

A reflection on annual performance based on a review of the California School Dashboard (Dashboard) and local data. 
 

JCCS has a longstanding commitment to supporting at-risk youth facing challenges like poverty and low academic achievement. The school 
provides various social, emotional, behavioral, and academic interventions, which have contributed to maintaining strong attendance and 
reducing behavioral issues. JCCS is particularly proud of its new Career and Technical Education (CTE) pathways in welding and culinary 
programs, engaging students and teaching valuable life skills. This year, all CTE slots were filled, with 35% of students enrolled in a CTE 
class and nine earning college credits through a partnership with Napa Valley College. Additionally, 26% of students participated in workforce 
training programs. 
 
Despite these efforts, students struggle with basic math and language arts, as evidenced by only 6.25% of 11th graders meeting standards in 
language arts and none in math on the 2023 CAASPP and a red performance level for our graduation rate on the CA School Dashboard. At 
the LEA level, Hispanic and Socioeconomic Disadvantaged students have red performance levels on the CA School Dashboard. At the 
Community School, the all-student grad rate is red, and our Socioeconomic Disadvantaged students have red performance levels for 
graduation rate as well. JCCS is addressing these gaps with targeted actions and services, leading to increased student engagement in 
academic programs, as seen with 34 students enrolled in A-G courses and high work completion rates. Interim data shows significant 
progress in reading (68%) and math (61%). 
 
JCCS also fosters strong connections with families through bilingual liaisons, social workers, and frequent communication via various 
platforms. This outreach has helped identify and address family needs, such as food, mental health support, and transportation. Families see 
school staff as allies, with 98% reporting positive relationships. The school had 902 student interactions and 1290 contacts with parents and 
caregivers. 
 
In response to increased campus behavior issues, JCCS reduced class sizes to a maximum of 16 students, allowing for better teacher-
student interactions and more willingness among students to discuss mental health needs. During the 2023-2024 school year, 52 students 
received mental health services, and 92% completed the PHQ-9 Screener. Regular team meetings and weekly check-ins help identify and 
address student needs promptly. 
 
The suspension rate improved on the CA School Dashboard moving from very high to a medium, yellow performance level. In addition, our 
current attendance rate is 84% (Update 7/31/224 = 87%), an improvement from last year's 80.78%, but chronic absenteeism remains a 
concern at 35% (Update 7/31/24 = 26%)  with many students missing significant school time. JCCS plans to increase outreach and 
investigate root causes to improve attendance further. 
 
         

 

Reflections: Technical Assistance 
 

As applicable, a summary of the work underway as part of technical assistance. 
 

NCOE partners with JCCS in a variety of ways. The Community Programs Department supports JCCS via the ASSETS grant which allows 
us to run an expanded learning program at the Community School. Students are able to stay from 2-5 engaging in a variety of pro-social and 

http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/24LCAP/Instructions/24LCAPInstructions.htm#Reflections
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/24LCAP/Instructions/24LCAPInstructions.htm#Reflections
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/24LCAP/Instructions/24LCAPInstructions.htm#Reflections


2024-25 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Napa County Office of Education Page 4 of 87 

academic activities such as credit recovery, job searching, access to the digital media club and culinary club, and sports such as working out 
at the Sherriff's Activity League. A new addition to our after school programing is that of Esports league where students can game and 
compete against other students all over the West Coast while also learning about jobs in the technology industry. 
NCOE has supported JCCS literacy initiatives via the Lead to Literacy Grant providing a .6 FTE Language Arts Teacher trained in the 
Science of Reading to give 1:1 tutoring support to the school's most struggling readers. 
More recently, we are partnering with the NCOE TTSS and IT departments to support JCCS in the new Verizon Innovative Learning Schools 
Initiative. This program will not only  provide all students with a Chromebook with embedded connectivity, but a full time Instructional 
Technology Coach to support digital equity and technology infused instruction in the classroom. 
         

 
Comprehensive Support and Improvement 
 

An LEA with a school or schools eligible for comprehensive support and improvement must respond to the following prompts. 
 

Schools Identified 
 

A list of the schools in the LEA that are eligible for comprehensive support and improvement. 
 

JCCS Court and Community graduation rate         
 

Support for Identified Schools 
 

A description of how the LEA has or will support its eligible schools in developing comprehensive support and improvement plans. 
 

Napa COE leadership and staff are supporting JCCS as thought partners/collaborators using a disciplined continuous improvement 
approach. NCOE's leadership and Continuous Improvement and Academic Support (CIAS) department provide assistance to JCCS with 
their LCAP and CSI Plan development as data and actions are reviewed and investments are considered for the next school year. In 
conjunction with the Differentiated Assistance process, Sonoma COE is also providing support to JCCS as they make plans for school 
improvement. During the spring of 2023 and the 2023-2024 school year, Sonoma and Napa COE's assisted JCCS with data collection and 
analysis, systems analysis, and root cause analysis to determine underlying causes for student data results. JCCS is also conducted a 
comprehensive needs assessment in the spring of 2023, including empathy interviews and focus groups with students to review indicators 
related to attendance, engagement, grades, graduation rate, and social-emotional learning data. Working with Sonoma COE and CIAS staff 
to review budgets, JCCS will also identify resource inequities that could be addressed through implementation of the LCAP and CSI plans. 
After a thorough review of their systems, process, and outcome data, JCCS selected evidence-based strategies based on the needs 
assessment and educational partner input.         

 

Monitoring and Evaluating Effectiveness 
 

A description of how the LEA will monitor and evaluate the plan to support student and school improvement. 
 

Starting in the spring of 2023 and throughout the 2023-2024 school year, Napa and Sonoma COEs worked with JCCS to monitor and 
evaluate the effectiveness of the selected evidence-based strategies they want to implement to improve student outcomes. Napa and 
Sonoma COEs assisted JCCS in running inquiry-based Plan-Do-Study-Act (PDSA) cycles when testing their implemented strategies. JCCS 
was supported by NCOE's CIAS team and our internal evaluation manager to monitor and review data aligned to the PDSA cycles at least on 

http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/24LCAP/Instructions/24LCAPInstructions.htm#CSI
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/24LCAP/Instructions/24LCAPInstructions.htm#SchoolsIdentified
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/24LCAP/Instructions/24LCAPInstructions.htm#SupportforIdentifiedSchools
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/24LCAP/Instructions/24LCAPInstructions.htm#MonitoringandEvaluatingEffectiveness


2024-25 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Napa County Office of Education Page 5 of 87 

a quarterly basis. JCCS has a comprehensive assessment system, including the collection of local data, and summative and formative 
measures, from which evidence will be reviewed and analyzed. The types of data and information JCCS is collecting and analyzing to inform 
ongoing decision making include attendance and engagement data, the Star Assessment Suite from Renaissance, the English Language 
Proficiency Assessments for California (ELPAC), a social-emotional learning screeners, curriculum-embedded measures, and parent 
surveys. JCCS will use the data to inform decisions on whether to formally adopt the evidence-based strategies, adjust the strategies to 
better fit their context, or abandon if not successful. Data collection and monitoring will be integral to the decision-making process and 
moving forward with continued investments for bettering student outcomes.         

 



2024-25 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Napa County Office of Education Page 6 of 87 

Engaging Educational Partners 
 

A summary of the process used to engage educational partners in the development of the LCAP. 
 
School districts and county offices of education must, at a minimum, consult with teachers, principals, administrators, other school personnel, 
local bargaining units, parents, and students in the development of the LCAP. 
 
Charter schools must, at a minimum, consult with teachers, principals, administrators, other school personnel, parents, and students in the 
development of the LCAP. 
 
An LEA receiving Equity Multiplier funds must also consult with educational partners at schools generating Equity Multiplier funds in the 
development of the LCAP, specifically, in the development of the required focus goal for each applicable school. 
 

Educational Partner(s) Process for Engagement 
          

JCCS has numerous educational partners that support and inform the 
school's work with the goal of student success. Our most impactful 
partnerships are those we have with our students, families, and 
school staff with whom we engage daily. Our Napa County Office 
Board of Trustees as well as Continuous Improvement and Expanded 
Learning further the support and insight we need to run strong 
programming.  We have a strong partnership with both the Napa 
County Department of Probation and the Napa County Sherriff's 
Department who provide safety and support for the students. Our 
Family Service Team regularly refer students and parents to engage 
with the services provided by our Community Partners such as Cope 
Family Center, Puertas Abiertas, NEWS, ParentsCAN, VOICES, as 
well as many others. Partnerships supporting student mental health 
include Napa County Mental Health and Aldea Child and Family 
Services. Community partnerships provide students with scholarships 
and enrichment activities include Kiwanis of Napa, Napa Rotary, 
Napa Sunrise Rotary, and Spirit Horse Therapeutic Center. Career 
Point as well as numerous resorts and businesses in Napa are 
partnering to provide paid internships for our students.           

JCCS prides itself on regular communication and engagement with 
educational partners. It is through ongoing meetings with teachers 
and other staff, including union membership and SELPA, weekly 
conversations with parents, parent meetings, and parent surveys as 
well as student surveys and analyzing student outcomes that we 
develop our LCAP. We meet with our site council (which serves as 
the Parent Advisory Committee) and ELAC twice yearly. Teachers 
and Case Managers meet with school administrators weekly and 
instructional assistants meet with administrators twice monthly. 
Meetings for students who receive tier three services occur twice 
weekly. The assistant principal, the SRO, the school probation officer, 
and the parent liaison team are all in attendance. The director is in 
regular communication with community partners, such as Juvenile 
Hall staff, probation, Kiwanis, and VOICES and they provide feedback 
via survey and interviews. JCCS meets with the Napa County Office 
of Education's Board of Trustees throughout the school year. We 
invited input on achieving our LCAP goals, metrics, and 
implementation of services. When meeting with educational partners, 
JCCS' director and assistant principal share data on students' 
demographics, academic performance, and engagement (attendance, 
behavior, and productivity) and invite discussion on what investments 
are working best for students and where the programs might need to 
change direction to better meet students' and families' needs. 

NCOE JCCS Staff, including teachers, administration, and also union 
representation and students         

Teachers and Case Managers meet with school administrators 
weekly and instructional assistants meet with administrators twice 

http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/24LCAP/Instructions/24LCAPInstructions.htm#EEP


2024-25 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Napa County Office of Education Page 7 of 87 

Educational Partner(s) Process for Engagement 
          

monthly. Meetings for students who receive tier three services occur 
twice weekly. The assistant principal, the SRO, the school probation 
officer, and the parent liaison team are all in attendance. When 
meeting with educational partners, JCCS' director and assistant 
principal share data on students' demographics, academic 
performance, and engagement (attendance, behavior, and 
productivity) and invite discussion on what investments are working 
best for students and where the programs might need to change 
direction to better meet students' and families' needs. 

Site Council/Parent Advisory Committee         We meet with our site council (which serves as the Parent Advisory 
Committee) and ELAC twice yearly. When meeting with educational 
partners, JCCS' director and assistant principal share data on 
students' demographics, academic performance, and engagement 
(attendance, behavior, and productivity) and invite discussion on what 
investments are working best for students and where the programs 
might need to change direction to better meet students' and families' 
needs. 

ELAC         We meet with ELAC twice yearly. When meeting with educational 
partners, JCCS' director and assistant principal share data on 
students' demographics, academic performance, and engagement 
(attendance, behavior, and productivity) and invite discussion on what 
investments are working best for students and where the programs 
might need to change direction to better meet students' and families' 
needs. 

NCOE Board of Trustees         JCCS met with the board on February 13, 2024 to present on the 
LCAP Annual Update and report on mid-year progress in relation to 
our outcomes. We invited input on achieving our LCAP goals, metrics, 
and implementation of services. JCCS will present the LCAP to 
NCOE's Board of Trustees at the public hearing on Tuesday, June 4, 
2024 and NCOE's board is scheduled to adopt the updated 2024-
2027 LCAP at the Board meeting on Tuesday, June 18, 2024. 

SELPA         We invited input on achieving our LCAP goals, metrics, and 
implementation of services. When meeting with educational partners, 
JCCS' director and assistant principal share data on students' 
demographics, academic performance, and engagement (attendance, 
behavior, and productivity) and invite discussion on what investments 



2024-25 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Napa County Office of Education Page 8 of 87 

Educational Partner(s) Process for Engagement 
          

are working best for students and where the programs might need to 
change direction to better meet students' and families' needs. 

Educational Partners at the schools generating Equity Multiplier 
funds: Camille Creek and Court School         

For the required Equity Multiplier focus goal, JCCS consulted with a 
variety of educational partners to determine priorities. For Camille 
Creek and our Court school, JCCS leadership consulted with parents 
and students, community partner agencies such as Voices, ALDEA, 
Napa Valley College, and Napa Sheriff and Probation departments 
through surveys and zoom interviews. 

 
A description of how the adopted LCAP was influenced by the feedback provided by educational partners. 
 

Based on parent feedback which includes a fall and spring survey as well as input from our Site Council and ELAC meetings, JCCS will 
continue to employ parent liaison teams who connect with 100% of families on a weekly basis. The teams will work with the families to 
identify the root causes to challenges and make referrals as necessary. Also identified by parents and student's in our Spring 2024 Focus 
groups and student survey is the need for vocational training. For that reason, we will continue to provide welding and culinary CTE pathways 
(these are also areas of high interest as identified by students). We have also launched our first paid internship program in partnership with 
Career Point during the 23-24 school year and we hope to double the number of students accessing this resource in the next school year. 
College preparedness was another high interest area. In order to raise the reading and math levels of our students so that they can access 
college level material, we are partnering with NCOE to provide training and support for our teachers. We have also added hands on college 
and career learning labs to our project room to invite students to participate in hands on engaging career based lessons as well as new 
science lab hands on kits. We provide students who struggle the most in literacy with 3 hours of targeted one to one intervention using the 
best practices of the science of reading. 
 
The consultation with educational partners at schools generating Equity Multiplier funds influenced the development of the adopted LCAP in 
a variety of ways. Survey feedback from both students and parents strongly indicate that they want career readiness skills. From the 
community partners, feedback was really positive. Community partners recognize that JCCS prioritizes and values relationships, creative, 
vocational opportunities, and the commitment to student engagement. Community partners would like opportunities to be on campus more. 
From the feedback, JCCS has prioritized CTE, student engagement, job readiness skills through the Wellness Center and Equity Multiplier 
goal in the LCAP. 
         

 



2024-25 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Napa County Office of Education Page 9 of 87 

Goals and Actions 
 
Goal 

Goal # Description Type of Goal 
1 All students will make academic progress in ELA and Math through targeted intervention and all 

English Learners will make progress towards developing literacy proficiency.         
Broad Goal 

 

State Priorities addressed by this goal. 
 

  X Priority 1: Basic (Conditions of Learning)        
X Priority 2: State Standards (Conditions of Learning)        
X Priority 4: Pupil Achievement (Pupil Outcomes)        
X Priority 7: Course Access (Conditions of Learning)        
X Priority 8: Other Pupil Outcomes (Pupil Outcomes)        

 
An explanation of why the LEA has developed this goal. 
 

Our students arrive to us with a schoolwide average of 4th/5th grade levels in reading comprehension and math. In order for our students to 
have a wide variety of options in post high school pursuits, we will put in place the academic interventions which will help them not only 
progress but have the motivation to do so. Based on the analysis of state and local data, including feedback from educational partners on 
local program data, JCCS needs to continue to strengthen the academic program provided to students. JCCS maintains a healthy 
attendance rate for alternative education programs. To date, the attendance rate is at 84.47% which is below our desired outcome of 88%, 
but still an improvement for students as compared to the attendance at their previous schools. We are also seeing some progress in 
academics. For this past year, JCCS had 34 students enrolled in A-G coursework which is up from 13 the previous year. 61-68% of students 
progressed on the reading and math interim assessments and 35-39% progressed more than a grade level in reading and math. Even with 
this progress, many students have low productivity or credits earned so more work needs to be done to encourage students to work investing 
in their own academic and learning programs. 
 
The program has identified the following areas needing significant improvement based on review of local performance: 
1) Continue to accelerate students' reading and math progress. 
2) Use multiple data points for instructional and programmatic decision making; engage students in goal setting and help students monitor 
their own learning by giving them a voice and choice in content exploration and study. 
3) Due to the low numbers who go on to college or vocational training, provide more vocational programs at the high school level. 
4) Identify meaningful academic assessments by which teachers will guide their instruction. 
5) Continue to offer math via a leveled program where students are assigned to courses based on skill and need 
6) Continue to train staff on UDL and the new curriculum to ensure effective implementation and quality instruction is provided to students 
 
The following expected annual measurable outcomes will be monitored and the aligned actions and services will be executed to ensure we 
meet Goal #1. The metrics described below will help JCCS determine how progress is being made in ELA and Math through targeted 

http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/24LCAP/Instructions/24LCAPInstructions.htm#GoalsandActions
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/24LCAP/Instructions/24LCAPInstructions.htm#goalDescription


2024-25 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Napa County Office of Education Page 10 of 87 

intervention and how all English Learners are making progress towards developing literacy proficiency. The actions were specifically selected 
to ensure that all staff have the ability to support students and strengthen the academic program for student success. 
 
Unless otherwise noted, all Baseline data was collected in the spring of 2024. 
 
         

 

Measuring and Reporting Results 
 

Metric # Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Target for Year 3 
Outcome 

Current Difference 
from Baseline 

               1.1 LCFF Priority 7: Number 
of Credits Earned Vs. 
Credits attempted        

Baseline 2023-2024 = 
78% 
Update 7/31/24 = 89% 
 

  Students will 
complete 85% of 
credits 

 

1.2 LCFF Priority 8: 
Percentage of students 
whose reading level on 
STAR assessment 
shows growth in reading 
over time        

2023-2024 data 
68% students showed 
growth on the reading 
interim assessments. 
 
35% student showed 
one year or more of 
growth. 
 

  70% of students 
will meet their 
growth target in 
ELA 

 

1.3 Percentage of students 
whose math level on 
STAR assessment 
shows growth in math 
over time        

2023-2024 data 
61% students showed 
growth on the math 
interim assessments. 
 
39% student showed 
one year or more of 
growth. 
 

  70% of students 
will meet their 
growth target in 
Math 

 

1.4 LCFF Priority 4: 
CAASPP ELA -        

CAASPP 2023 data 
ELA: 6.25%  of 11th 
grade students who 
took the CAASPP met 
or exceeded standard. 

  Students enrolled 
in one semester or 
more will improve 
scores by 3% in 
ELA 

 

http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/24LCAP/Instructions/24LCAPInstructions.htm#MeasuringandReportingResults


2024-25 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Napa County Office of Education Page 11 of 87 

Metric # Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Target for Year 3 
Outcome 

Current Difference 
from Baseline 

                
1.5 LCFF Priority 4: 

CAASPP Math        
CAASPP 2023 data 
Math: 0% of 11th grade 
students who took the 
CAASPP met or 
exceeded the standard 
 

  Students enrolled 
in one semester or 
more will improve 
scores by 3% in 
Math 

 

1.6 LCFF Priority 4: A-G 
course are now offered 
to all student including 
unduplicated and those 
with exceptional needs. 
Due to the small school, 
the lack of a laboratory 
facility, and the lack of 
students performing at 
grade level, there will be 
a limited A-G course 
metric.        

2023-2024 School Year 
34 students enrolled in 
online A-G classes. 

  The number of 
students taking A-
G classes will 
increase by 5% 

 

1.7 100% of teachers will 
undergo the Digital 
Promise Professional 
Development series to 
increase digital equity 
and engagement in all 
students.        

This is a new 
partnership which is 
part of the Verizon 
Innovative Learning 
Schools Program and 
will provide 3 ninety 
minute live trainings 
yearly paired with 
asynchronous work. 

  Maintain rate  

1.8 LCFF Priority 7: Access 
to Broad Course of 
Study as measured by 
the JCCS master 
calendar.        

In 2023-2024 School 
year 100% of students, 
including unduplicated 
and those with 
exceptional needs have 
access to broad course 
of study in subject 
areas described in 

  100% of students, 
including 
unduplicated and 
those with 
exceptional needs 
have access to 
broad course of 
study in subject 

 



2024-25 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Napa County Office of Education Page 12 of 87 

Metric # Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Target for Year 3 
Outcome 

Current Difference 
from Baseline 

               section 51210 and 
51220 

areas described in 
section 51210 and 
51220 

1.9 LCFF Priority 2: 
Percentage of teachers 
implementing the State 
Standards, including 
ELD standards. 
 
LCFF Priority 1: 
Percentage of students 
provided with the 
required instructional 
materials (the program is 
transitioning to a digital 
curriculum – license will 
be obtained for all 
students 
        

For 2023-2024: 
100% of teachers 
implemented state 
standards, including 
ELD standards. 
 
100% of students 
continued to be 
provided with all 
standards-aligned 
required instructional 
materials, including 
ELD. 
 

  Maintain rates  

1.10 Classroom Size Count - 
Maintain small 
classroom sizes to help 
support unduplicated 
students and those with 
exceptional needs. 
 
        

2023 -2024 
Class size average was 
12 students. Homeroom 
classes may enroll up to 
21 students but 
scheduling with CTE 
and PE allows us to 
keep low numbers in 
each classroom space 
providing more support 
to our unduplicated 
students. 
 

  Limit class size 
<15 

 

1.11 LCFF Priority 1: 
Percentage of teachers 
fully credentialed, 
compliant, and 
appropriately assigned.        

For 2023-2024 
100% of teachers are 
credentialed, compliant, 
and appropriately 
assigned. 

  Maintain rate  



2024-25 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Napa County Office of Education Page 13 of 87 

Metric # Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Target for Year 3 
Outcome 

Current Difference 
from Baseline 

                
1.12 LCFF Priority 4: EL 

Reclassification Rate        
For 2023 
0 Students Re-
designated 
 

  Increase to at least 
2 students 
reclassified/year 

 

1.13 LCFF Priority 4: % of 
ELs making progress 
toward English 
Proficiency        

50% of students 
progressed one 
proficiency level on the 
ELPAC 

  Increase to 75% 
progressing at 
least one 
proficiency level on 
the ELPAC 

 

1.14 LCFF Priority 4: % of 
students demonstrating 
college preparedness 
with the Early 
Assessment Program        

EAP for the 2022-2023 
school year: 
ELA: 6.25% of 11th 
grade students who 
took the CAASPP 
demonstrated college 
readiness. 
 
 
Math: 0% of 11th grade 
students who took the 
CAASPP demonstrated 
college readiness. 
 
 

  >0%  

1.15 LCFF Priority 4: % of 
students passing the 
advanced placement 
examination with a score 
of 3+        

0% 
 
Advanced Placement 
courses are now offered 
to all students including 
unduplicated and those 
with exceptional needs; 
due to the small school 
population and the lack 
of students performing 

  >0%  



2024-25 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Napa County Office of Education Page 14 of 87 

Metric # Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Target for Year 3 
Outcome 

Current Difference 
from Baseline 

               at grade level there will 
be a limited AP metric. 
 

 

Goal Analysis [2023-24] 
An analysis of how this goal was carried out in the previous year. 
A description of overall implementation, including any substantive differences in planned actions and actual implementation of these actions, 
and any relevant challenges and successes experienced with implementation. 
 

Not Applicable.        
 
An explanation of material differences between Budgeted Expenditures and Estimated Actual Expenditures and/or Planned Percentages of 
Improved Services and Estimated Actual Percentages of Improved Services. 
 

Not Applicable.        
 
A description of the effectiveness or ineffectiveness of the specific actions to date in making progress toward the goal. 
 

Not Applicable.        
 
A description of any changes made to the planned goal, metrics, target outcomes, or actions for the coming year that resulted from reflections 
on prior practice. 
 

Not Applicable.        
 

Actions 
Action # Title Description Total Funds Contributing 
             1.1 Academic Curriculum 

and Interim 
Assessments        

JCCS strives to offer engaging and meaningful curriculum for students. 
Based on feedback from staff and students, we will continue to invest in 
contracts for Reading with Relevance and Freckle Math and ELA adapted 
learning platform. To ensure English learners, including Long Term English 
Learners (LTELs) can access the CCSS and the ELD standards, they will 
receive English language acquisition instruction via ELA Freckle curriculum 
and dedicated class time focused on language development at their 
proficiency levels. STAR Renaissance will be utilized to track and measure 
student progress in reading and math throughout the school year. Staff will 

$7,622.00 No      
X 
 

http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/24LCAP/Instructions/24LCAPInstructions.htm#GoalAnalysis
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/24LCAP/Instructions/24LCAPInstructions.htm#actions


2024-25 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Napa County Office of Education Page 15 of 87 

Action # Title Description Total Funds Contributing 
             continue to evaluate data and efficacy of ELA and Math programs and use 

assessment data for student intervention placement and progress 
monitoring purposes (costs embedded in staff expenditures). 
 
 

1.2 Professional 
Development 
Academic Focus        

JCCS will continue to build the capacity of staff to help support student 
growth in academics through investments in staff development and 
ongoing professional learning opportunities. The opportunities will include 
but not be limited to the following: Training on curricula, Science of 
Reading, Blended Learning and Technology Integration, Paxton Patterson 
Career Labs,  Multiple Tiered Systems of Support, and Data Teams to 
support students, especially unduplicated and those with exceptional 
needs. 
Staff will be trained and supported to successfully implement a leveled 
math program where students are assigned classes based on needs and 
skills. JCCS will also provide staff training on ELD and language 
acquisition strategies to support our ELs and LTELs. We will continue to 
contract with consultants to help analyze student work and plan for 
instructional next steps to meet students' needs. JCCS staff will work with 
students to set learning goals in ELA and math, SEL, and College and 
Career Readiness skills. 
 
 
 

$700.00 No      
X 
 

1.3 Access to technology 
and support        

JCCS will continue to contract with GoGuardian and ParentSquare. 
Through the Verizon Innovative Learning Schools Initiative, we will ensure 
all students including unduplicated students and those with exceptional 
needs have access to current, updated technology including a 
Chromebook with connectivity to use at school and at home. 
 
 

$6,910.00 No      
X 
 

1.4 Credit Recovery        JCCS will continue contracting with Bright Thinker for credit recovery to 
provide more support for all students, including unduplicated students and 
those with exceptional needs. 
 
 

$6,375.00 Yes     
X 
 



2024-25 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Napa County Office of Education Page 16 of 87 

Action # Title Description Total Funds Contributing 
             1.5 Camille Creek 

Facility        
Debt service for new Camille Creek Facility. This action is split between 
LCAP Goal 1 and Goal 3. 
 
 

$288,994.00 No      
X 
 

1.6 Homeroom teachers 
to provide academic 
support to students - 
small class sizes        

Employ 4 FTE homeroom teachers and 1FTE Independent study teacher 
to support the education of all students at JCCS. Teachers operate multi-
grade/multi-subject classrooms to provide targeted and individualized 
learning to optimize student success and support them in their educational 
goals. 
 
JCCS will continue to maintain small class sizes to help serve students 
with exceptional needs by providing more individualized support. We will 
staff the Community High School classes with a teacher for up to 15 
students per class. 
 
 
 

$606,404.00 Yes     
X 
 

 



2024-25 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Napa County Office of Education Page 17 of 87 

Goals and Actions 
 
Goal 

Goal # Description Type of Goal 
2 To provide our students the opportunity to explore their interests and develop a post-secondary plan 

and to provide the skills to successfully enter the workforce or pursue further education or training.         
Broad Goal 

 

State Priorities addressed by this goal. 
 

  X Priority 4: Pupil Achievement (Pupil Outcomes)        
X Priority 5: Pupil Engagement (Engagement)        
X Priority 8: Other Pupil Outcomes (Pupil Outcomes)        

 
An explanation of why the LEA has developed this goal. 
 

By offering programs in high-demand fields, the Community School is not only meeting local labor market needs but also preparing students 
for further education and career opportunities. Our CTE programs provide students with practical skills and certifications that are valuable in 
both college applications and the job market. The current Community School facility opened in November of 2021 with a new commercial 
kitchen which allowed for us to build a CTE Culinary Program. Six months later, our 2400 square foot Welding shop opened allowing for a 
new CTE Pathway in Welding. Both students and parents over multiple years via surveys, conversations, and focus groups have identified 
increased college and career readiness opportunities as an important outcome for success beyond their education at JCCS. Both Culinary 
and Welding provide high-wage, high-demand career opportunities in the Napa Valley.  Local industry partnerships within both sectors have 
indicated a high need for students prepared in these industries in Napa County. Both programs have been identified as a high interest with 
the students and local  partnerships have  provided the students with a pathway to paid internships and possible future employment. 
 
Graduating from high school is a critical step towards higher education and better employment opportunities. Students who do not graduate 
are more likely to face unemployment, low-paying jobs, and economic instability. A high school diploma equips students with essential skills 
needed for adult life, fostering independence and the ability to contribute positively to society. Alternative programs typically have lower 
graduation rates compared to traditional high schools, and most students enter significantly behind in credits, preventing them from 
graduating with their cohort. While our 5-year cohort measurement indicates some successes, we need to improve our efforts to graduate a 
higher percentage of our students and reduce dropout rates. From the 2023 CA School Dashboard, at the LEA level, Hispanic and 
Socioeconomic Disadvantaged students have red performance levels on the CA School Dashboard. At the Community School, the all-
student grad rate is red, and our Socioeconomic Disadvantaged students have red performance levels for graduation rate as well. 
 
Through the process of Differentiated Assistance, we partnered with NCOE and the Sonoma County Office of Education to create a strategic 
plan to improve our graduation rate by targeted intervention to increase engagement and support of all of our students, and set clear goals 
and career pathways. We are also working to expand opportunities for students to interact with local community colleges, trade schools, and 
industry to expand their knowledge of how their interests and skills sets can create a pathway to a career that will provide them with 
economic stability and fulfillment. 
 

http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/24LCAP/Instructions/24LCAPInstructions.htm#GoalsandActions
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/24LCAP/Instructions/24LCAPInstructions.htm#goalDescription


2024-25 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Napa County Office of Education Page 18 of 87 

JCCS prioritizes the following actions related to our new facility and campus to help meet Goal #2: provide our students the opportunity to 
explore their interests and develop a post-secondary plan and to provide the skills to successfully enter the workforce or pursue further 
education or training. We expect to see more students enrolling in CTE courses and entering the workforce or college/training program over 
time. We also expect to see an increase in results for our graduation rate and college/career readiness metrics. 
 
Unless otherwise stated, baseline data is from 2023-2024. 
         

 

Measuring and Reporting Results 
 

Metric # Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Target for Year 3 
Outcome 

Current Difference 
from Baseline 

               2.1 Percentage of high 
school students entering 
workforce or post-
secondary training 
program        

2023-2024 - 26% of 
high school students 
participating in a 
workforce training 
program. 
 
 
 
 

  40% of students 
will participate in a 
workforce or 
college/training 
program 
 
 
 
 

 

2.2 LCFF Priority 4: CTE 
Pathway - number of 
high school students 
who complete a 2-year 
CTE pathway        

2023-2024 had 9 
completers or 10% of 
high school students 

  Increase the 
number of CTE 
completers to 
reach a goal of 
20% 

 

2.3 Number of eligible 
students who 
participated in a 
paid/unpaid internship.        

2023-2024 Baseline - 6 
internships or 13.5% of 
eligible juniors and 
seniors completed an 
internship 

  15% of eligible 
students will 
complete an 
paid/unpaid 
internship 

 

2.4 Percentage of Students 
completing 2 or more 
career exploration 
activities (i.e. Interest 
Assessments & 
College/Career Ready 
Labs)        

This is a new metric so 
baseline will be set in 
the 2024-2025 school 
yaer. 

  80% of students 
enrolled in the 
Community School 
one semester will 
complete a 
minimum of 2 
career exploration 

 

http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/24LCAP/Instructions/24LCAPInstructions.htm#MeasuringandReportingResults


2024-25 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Napa County Office of Education Page 19 of 87 

Metric # Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Target for Year 3 
Outcome 

Current Difference 
from Baseline 

               activities - Interest 
Assessments 
and/or College and 
Career Ready  
Labs 

2.5 LCFF Priority 4 and 8: 
College/Career 
Readiness Indicator 
(CCI) on the CA 
Dashboard        

Red (very low) 
Performance Level on 
Ca School Dashboard 
in 2023 - 
0 percent of students 
were prepared for 
College or Career 
 
9 earned college credit 
through the articulation 
with Culinary and Napa 
Valley College 
 

  15% (yellow level) 
increase in 
students 
graduating 
college/career 
prepared 
Based on CA 
Dashboard criteria 
 
 

 

2.6 Number of graduating 
seniors earning a work 
readiness certificate.        

% of students earning a 
Work-Readiness 
Certificate 
This is a new metric so 
no data available. 
Baseline will be set 
based on the 
percentage of students 
earning workforce 
certificates in 2024-
2025 
 
 

  25% of graduating 
Seniors will have 
obtained  a Work-
Readiness 
certificate 

 

2.7 LCFF Priority 5: 
Graduation Rate = 5 
year cohort        

2023-2024 Graduation 
Rate = 51.3% 
Update 7/31/24 = 
68.7% 
 

  Graduation Rate 
>70% 

 



2024-25 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Napa County Office of Education Page 20 of 87 

Metric # Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Target for Year 3 
Outcome 

Current Difference 
from Baseline 

               2.8 Students will increase 
community based 
learning opportunities        

New Metric - 
Percentage of students 
participating in 2 
community based 
learning per semester. 

  80% of students 
will participate in 2 
community based 
learning activities 
per semester 

 

2.9 LCFF Priority 5: Middle 
School Dropout rate 
 
LCFF Priority 5: High 
School Dropout rate 
        

Dropout rate for 8th 
grade is 0% 
 
High School TBD 
 
 

  Maintain low 
dropout rates 

 

 

Goal Analysis [2023-24] 
An analysis of how this goal was carried out in the previous year. 
A description of overall implementation, including any substantive differences in planned actions and actual implementation of these actions, 
and any relevant challenges and successes experienced with implementation. 
 

Not Applicable.        
 
An explanation of material differences between Budgeted Expenditures and Estimated Actual Expenditures and/or Planned Percentages of 
Improved Services and Estimated Actual Percentages of Improved Services. 
 

Not Applicable.        
 
A description of the effectiveness or ineffectiveness of the specific actions to date in making progress toward the goal. 
 

Not Applicable.        
 
A description of any changes made to the planned goal, metrics, target outcomes, or actions for the coming year that resulted from reflections 
on prior practice. 
 

Not Applicable.        
 

Actions 

http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/24LCAP/Instructions/24LCAPInstructions.htm#GoalAnalysis
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/24LCAP/Instructions/24LCAPInstructions.htm#actions


2024-25 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Napa County Office of Education Page 21 of 87 

Action # Title Description Total Funds Contributing 
             2.1 Employee 2 FTE 

CTE Teachers        
JCCS will employ a CTE Culinary Instructor and CTE Welding Instructor to 
allow students hands on learning opportunities in a high demand and 
stable career pathway. CTE pathways increase the likelihood that students 
stay in school and have the credits to graduate. The intent of this action is 
to help improve the grad rate performance levels on the CA School 
Dashboard for Hispanic, socioeconomically disadvantaged, and all 
students. 
 
 

$249,361.00 No      
X 
 

2.2 Spirit Horse and 
other Community 
Based Learning 
Activities        

Students will engage in community-based learning activities to further 
explore potential career opportunities and deepen their understanding of 
the local community. Increasing engagement opportunities also increases 
the likelihood that students stay in school and graduate. The intent of this 
action is to help improve the grad rate performance levels on the CA 
School Dashboard for Hispanic, socioeconomically disadvantaged, and all 
students. 
 
 

$37,709.00 No      
X 
 

 



2024-25 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Napa County Office of Education Page 22 of 87 

Goals and Actions 
 
Goal 

Goal # Description Type of Goal 
3 Within three years, the district will improve student outcomes by taking action to increase the 

attendance rate and decrease the suspension rate for low-income students by implementing actions 
that promote self-regulation and student connectedness.         

Broad Goal 

 

State Priorities addressed by this goal. 
 

  X Priority 1: Basic (Conditions of Learning)        
X Priority 3: Parental Involvement (Engagement)        
X Priority 5: Pupil Engagement (Engagement)        
X Priority 6: School Climate (Engagement)        
X Priority 8: Other Pupil Outcomes (Pupil Outcomes)        

 
An explanation of why the LEA has developed this goal. 
 

Students are referred to our schools because of truancy, expulsion, failing grades or poor behavior. Their previous schools have not met their 
needs for complex and varied reasons. It is incumbent upon JCCS to do the work necessary to understand our individual student's barriers 
and put in place appropriate interventions. The vast majority of students come to our programs performing well below grade level, are of low 
socio-economic status, and come with existing truancy and behavior issues. The overwhelming majority of our students are in the juvenile 
justice system, are socioeconomically disadvantaged, and are far below grade level in English and math. Our students are victims of abuse, 
neglect, or trauma. Many suffer with mental illness and/or substance abuse. Our students come to us shut down to learning, and in many 
cases, have given up on school entirely. We see that our programs and support are working for these historically underserved students. 
According to the 2023-2024 results of the California Healthy Kids Survey (CHKS), 46% of students feel connected at school and 65% feel 
safe at school which has increased since 2020 when the results from the CHKS were, 36% of students feel connected at school and 49% of 
students feel safe at school. It is through meaningful, restorative relationships with caring adults that our students begin to feel that they are 
worthy. And as the soul finds its worth, we see the creativity, curiosity, and the will to learn begin to stir. 
 
The following expected annual measurable outcomes will be monitored and the aligned actions and services will be executed to ensure we 
meet Goal #3 and that all students, including unduplicated students and students with exceptional needs are provided the support and 
services to achieve. The metrics described below will help JCCS determine how progress is being made toward the elimination of barriers 
preventing students from thriving. The actions were specifically selected to ensure that all staff have the ability to support students and 
strengthen the culture so all students feel nurtured, safe, and have a sense of belonging. JCCS prioritizes the following actions related to our 
new facility and campus to help meet Goal #3: Provide students with access to safe spaces and mental health supports; expand parent 
communication and home visits; and identify and secure recreation space for our new school. By investing in these actions, we will see, in 
particular, an increase in the percentage of students feeling connected and safe at school, an increase in student attendance, increase 
opportunities and spaces for students to self-regulate, and decrease the number of student suspensions. 
 

http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/24LCAP/Instructions/24LCAPInstructions.htm#GoalsandActions
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/24LCAP/Instructions/24LCAPInstructions.htm#goalDescription


2024-25 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Napa County Office of Education Page 23 of 87 

Unless noted, all baseline data is from 2023-2024. 
         

 

Measuring and Reporting Results 
 

Metric # Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Target for Year 3 
Outcome 

Current Difference 
from Baseline 

               3.1 LCFF Priority 5: 
Attendance Rate 
 
LCFF Priority 5: Chronic 
Absenteeism Rate (% of 
students missing more 
than 10% of school) 
        

2023-2024 Baseline 
attendance 84.7% 
Updated 7/31/24 = 87% 
 
The chronic 
absenteeism rate for 
2023-2024 is 
established in EOY 
CALPADS reporting – 
TBD 
Updated 7/31/24 = 26% 
 
The chronic 
absenteeism rate for 
2022-2023 to date was: 
All students: 66.27% 
Low-income: 69.57% 
English Learners: 
61.9% 
SPED: 64.29% 
Hispanic: 69.23% 
White: 75% 
 

  Attendance for All 
students = (>88%) 
 
Chronic 
Absenteeism rate 
= All students 
<50% 
 

 

3.2 LCFF Priority 6: 
Suspension Rate        

2023-2024 Suspension 
rate - 22% 

  Decrease 
suspension rate , 
15% 

 

3.3 LCFF Priority 6: CA 
Healthy Kids Survey 
(CHKS) 
% of students feeling 
connected 

Spring 2024 
% of students feeling 
connected 
All students = 46% 
Hispanic/Latinx = 49% 

  % of students 
feeling connected: 
All students = 
>50% 

 

http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/24LCAP/Instructions/24LCAPInstructions.htm#MeasuringandReportingResults


2024-25 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Napa County Office of Education Page 24 of 87 

Metric # Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Target for Year 3 
Outcome 

Current Difference 
from Baseline 

               % of students feeling 
safe at school 
        

 
% of students feeling 
safe 
All students = 65% 
Hispanic/Latinx = 64% 
 

Hispanic/Latinx = 
>50% 
White students = 
>50% 
 
% of students 
feeling safe: 
All students = 
>60% 
Hispanic/Latinx = 
>60% 
White students = 
>60% 
 

3.4 LCFF Priority 3: To 
promote parent 
involvement in programs 
for all students, including 
unduplicated and those 
with exceptional needs: 
 
Measure and track the 
number of 
contacts/interactions 
with families/caregivers 
including in person and 
online meetings, phone 
calls including 
messages, text 
messages, and 
parent/caregiver walk-
ins. 
 
Measure and track the 
number of student 
check-ins with School 
Social Worker and/or 

August to May 2024- 
1290 Contacts with 
parents, guardians, and 
caregivers 
 
902 student contacts 
 
 

  Maintain high 
number of 
contacts/interactio
ns with families 
and students 

 



2024-25 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Napa County Office of Education Page 25 of 87 

Metric # Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Target for Year 3 
Outcome 

Current Difference 
from Baseline 

               Interventions 
Coordinator for SEL 
support. 
        

3.5 LCFF Priority 1: 
Facilities Inspection Tool 
(FIT) Reports: Basic 
school facilities will be 
maintained in good 
repair        

Maintain facilities in 
good condition as 
reported on the FIT 

  Maintain facilities 
in good condition 
as reported on the 
FIT 

 

3.6 LCFF Priority 3: To 
increase parent input in 
making decisions with 
the LEA, increase Family 
Partnership opportunities 
through the creation of a 
Family Leadership 
Team. 
 
Family Leadership Team 
will assist in the planning 
and execution of 2 
events per semester. 
        

New metric - Baseline 
data will be 2024-2025 
school year 

  Creation of the 
Family Leadership 
Team each school 
year by October. 
 
Two events 
created and 
executed by the 
team each 
semester. 
 

 

3.7 LCFF Priority 8: 90% of 
new families and 
students entering the 
program before April 1st 
each year will be 
administered the 
BioPsychoSocial 
Assessment.        

New Baseline will be 
established in 2024-
2025 due to a shift in 
metrics. 

  90% of new 
families and 
students entering 
the program before 
April 1st each year 
will be 
administered the 
BioPsychoSocial 
Assessment. 

 

3.8 LCFF Priority 6: 
Expulsion Rates        

0%   Maintain low rates  

 



2024-25 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Napa County Office of Education Page 26 of 87 

Goal Analysis [2023-24] 
An analysis of how this goal was carried out in the previous year. 
A description of overall implementation, including any substantive differences in planned actions and actual implementation of these actions, 
and any relevant challenges and successes experienced with implementation. 
 

Not Applicable.        
 
An explanation of material differences between Budgeted Expenditures and Estimated Actual Expenditures and/or Planned Percentages of 
Improved Services and Estimated Actual Percentages of Improved Services. 
 

Not Applicable.        
 
A description of the effectiveness or ineffectiveness of the specific actions to date in making progress toward the goal. 
 

Not Applicable.        
 
A description of any changes made to the planned goal, metrics, target outcomes, or actions for the coming year that resulted from reflections 
on prior practice. 
 

Not Applicable.        
 

Actions 
Action # Title Description Total Funds Contributing 
             3.1 Staffing for SEL 

support, home visits, 
and strengthening 
relationships        

To help our students develop the self regulation and interpersonal skills 
needed to form and maintain positive and meaningful relationships, we will 
employ a social worker, an SRO, and an interventions coordinator, and 2 
family liaisons to work with students and families to address barriers 
preventing students, especially unduplicated students and those with 
exceptional needs, from thriving in school. The social worker and 
interventions coordinator will work with community agencies to refer 
families for resources and services. The Wellness Center specialist will 
assist in supporting students who are out of the classroom to seek a 
calming environment or obtain basic support with nutrition and personal 
needs. 
We will provide culturally competent training for our parent liaisons to 
support in the creation of relationships with families consisting of regular 
text, emails and phone calls and to conduct school meetings. The family 
liaisons, interventions coordinator, and SRO will also conduct home visits 

$635,475.00 Yes     
X 
 

http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/24LCAP/Instructions/24LCAPInstructions.htm#GoalAnalysis
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/24LCAP/Instructions/24LCAPInstructions.htm#actions


2024-25 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Napa County Office of Education Page 27 of 87 

Action # Title Description Total Funds Contributing 
             to strengthen school and family connections. Employ two full time bilingual 

Parent Liaison to work with families and students, making connections 
across school, home, and the community. 
Employ 4 instructional aides to work with teachers in the classrooms to 
help support unduplicated students and students with exceptional needs in 
the program. 
These roles will help to increase percentage/number of parents 
participating in programs for unduplicated students and help to increase 
percentage/number of parents participating in programs for students with 
exceptional needs. 
 
 
 

3.2 JCCS Staff Training 
(SEL and Restorative 
Justice focus)        

JCCS will continue to build the capacity of staff to help support student 
growth in social emotional learning and restorative justice practices 
through investments in staff development and ongoing professional 
learning opportunities. The opportunities will include but not be limited to 
the following: Restorative Justice practices, QPR training,  and Resilience 
Focused practices to create better relationships which will help students 
thrive. Paraprofessionals will be trained in, but not limited to, conducting 
home visits, motivational interviewing, brief interventions, mental health, 
first aid, etc. 
 
JCCS will continue to develop and utilize our matrix of student goals and 
outcomes to track student progress toward behavior and social-emotional 
learning. We will explore opportunities for Instructional Assistants to 
identify their strengths and professional development needs and provide 
for their continued support and growth. We will send additional staff to 
trauma training (if needed) to provide in-depth support for unduplicated 
students and those with exceptional needs. This action is also directed 
towards our ELs to help improve the suspension rate. 
 
 
 
 

$700.00 Yes     
X 
 

3.3 JCCS general 
staffing (leadership, 
office staff)        

JCCS will continue to maintain small class sizes to help serve students 
with exceptional needs by providing more individualized support. We will 

$691,764.00 No      
X 
 



2024-25 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Napa County Office of Education Page 28 of 87 

Action # Title Description Total Funds Contributing 
             staff the Community High School classes with a teacher for up to 15 

students per class. 
Continue to staff FTE 1.0 resource teacher and 0.75 Instructional support 
aide to provide small group instruction and push-in to classrooms to 
provide support for students with exceptional needs. 
 
Continue to staff FTE 1.0 Director 
Continue to staff FTE 1.0 Assistant Principal 
Employ FTE 1.175 for two Custodians 
Employ FTE 1.0 for Administrative Assistant 
Employ FTE 1.0 for School Registrar 
Note that the base program personnel and costs described also support 
the achievement and standards implementation outcomes in Goal 1. 
 
 
 

3.4 Probation Officers        Contract with Napa County Probation to provide 2 probation officers 
assigned to the Community School site. 
 
 

$7,000.00 Yes     
X 
 

3.5 Data/information 
systems and 
platforms        

Evaluate and leverage the current data systems to track the student 
progress in social emotional learning and academics that will support 
JCCS make decisions that lead to improvements. 
Contract with PowerSchool Student Information System and 
ParentSquare. Contract with Document Tracking System. 
 
 
 

$21,100.00 Yes     
X 
 

3.6 Juvenile Hall Staffing        Staff the Juvenile Hall class with a teacher and instructional support 
specialist to ensure optimal support is given to unduplicated students and 
those with exceptional needs. 
 
 

$188,557.00 Yes     
X 
 

3.7 Fitness and After 
School Program        

Employ a fitness coach and staff for the after school program to help 
provide enrichment and support for all students but principally directed to 
unduplicated students and students with exceptional needs. 
 

$27,362.00 Yes     
X 
 



2024-25 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Napa County Office of Education Page 29 of 87 

Action # Title Description Total Funds Contributing 
              

3.8 Camille Creek 
Facility        

In addition to the other priorities that are included in Goals 1 and 2 of the 
LCAP that are related to the new Camille Creek facility, JCCS also 
prioritizes the need to identify and secure recreation space for our new 
school. 
Debt service for the new Camille Creek Facility. This action is split between 
LCAP Goal 1 and Goal 3 (see action #9) with a dollar value of  in each 
goal. 
 
 
 

$288,997.00 No      
X 
 

 



2024-25 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Napa County Office of Education Page 30 of 87 

Goals and Actions 
 
Goal 

Goal # Description Type of Goal 
4 By June 2026, JCCS will increase the number of students at Camille Creek entering the workforce 

or college training program from 26% to 40% of those eligible to work; we will increase our college 
and career readiness rate for all students by 10% at Camille Creek, increase our graduation rate for 
Hispanic and Socioeconomic Disadvantaged Students by 10% at Camille Creek and the Court 
School, and decrease our chronic absenteeism for all students by 20% at Camille Creek. 
 
With this goal, students will develop the necessary confidence and soft skills to successfully 
navigate and thrive in school and professional environments. This includes effective communication, 
teamwork, problem-solving, time management, and emotional intelligence. 
         

Equity Multiplier Focus Goal 

 

State Priorities addressed by this goal. 
 

  X Priority 5: Pupil Engagement (Engagement)        
X Priority 8: Other Pupil Outcomes (Pupil Outcomes)        

 
An explanation of why the LEA has developed this goal. 
 

The Court and Community Schools program receives Equity Multiplier funds based on our student non-stability rate and our 
socioeconomically disadvantaged pupil is greater than 70%. As such, we will use those funds to target some of our most neediest students in 
our program. As much progress as we are making in offering wrap around services, we still have low performance on some of the CA School 
Dashboard metrics. All students, including our Hispanic and Socioeconomic Disadvantaged student groups, have a red performance level for 
our graduation rate on the 2023 Dashboard. in addition, even though our current attendance rate is 84%, an improvement from last year's 
80.78%, our chronic absenteeism remains a concern at 35%, with many students missing significant school time. Luckily, and with attention 
to staffing, there are no underlying issues in the credentialing, subject matter preparation, and retention of the school’s educators. 
 
We will use the Equity Multiplier funds to help address chronic absenteeism and improve our graduation rate for all students, and especially 
for Hispanic and SED student groups, with the launch of a fully operational Wellness Center. Students in our program have had a history of 
struggles with self regulation in their schooling and the vast majority have had struggles with mental health. Feedback from educational 
partners including leadership and staff indicate that fully staffing a comprehensive Wellness Center can provide students the much needed 
support in their lives. Providing students with a safe place to access a brain break as well staffing to support them in their endeavors is one 
on the functions of the Wellness Center. Students will also work with the Wellness Center staff on academic and career goal setting, job 
searches, and applications. Having access to non-traditional types of SEL supports such as Equine Therapy also provides a space for 
students to better understand and regulate their inner state while stepping out of their comfort zone. The services of the Wellness Center will 
help students get the support they need to attend and stay in school and graduate in a timely manner. 
 

http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/24LCAP/Instructions/24LCAPInstructions.htm#GoalsandActions
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/24LCAP/Instructions/24LCAPInstructions.htm#goalDescription


2024-25 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Napa County Office of Education Page 31 of 87 

         
 

Measuring and Reporting Results 
 

Metric # Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Target for Year 3 
Outcome 

Current Difference 
from Baseline 

               4.1 Fully staff Wellness 
Center for the 
Community School.        

Percentage of students 
accessing center and 
it's services: from 
January 17th 2024 to 
May 31st 2024 = 579 
visits or 6.3 visits per 
day 
 
64% of students 
accessed the center at 
least one visit at 
Camille Creek 
 
Court School = N/A 
 

  Increase % of 
visits to 5% over 
baseline data at 
Camille Creek 
 
Court School = 
N/A 
 

 

4.2 Increase opportunities 
for students to 
collaborate on 
technology-infused 
lessons with other 
students to enhance 
their digital literacy, 
foster innovative 
problem-solving skills, 
and prepare them for the 
demands of a 
technology-driven 
workplace.        

This is a new metric - 
Baseline data will 
include % of lessons in 
classrooms that 
incorporate technology 
in a meaningful way 
that promotes 
collaboration. 
 
Camille Creek - TBD 
Court School - TBD 
 

  Grow 5% over  
baseline data 
 
Camille Creek - 
TBD 
Court School - 
TBD 
 

 

4.3 LCFF Priority 8: % of 
students enrolled prior to 
April 1st completing the 

92% of students 
enrolled prior to 5/21/24 
completed the PHQ9 
screener. 

  90% of students 
enrolled prior to 
April 1st complete 

 

http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/24LCAP/Instructions/24LCAPInstructions.htm#MeasuringandReportingResults


2024-25 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Napa County Office of Education Page 32 of 87 

Metric # Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Target for Year 3 
Outcome 

Current Difference 
from Baseline 

               universal mental health 
screener (PHQ-9) 
 
Of those students 
needing a follow up 
PHQ-9 (because they 
scored a 10 or higher) 
track % of students who 
improved. 
        

Of the 14 identified for 
follow-up, 72% of the 
students had improved 
scores. 
 
Camille Creek = 92% 
Court School = New 
metric for long term 
students 
 

the PHQ-9 
screener 
 
Of those students 
needing a follow 
up PHQ-9 
(because they 
scored a 10 or 
higher) 75% of 
students will 
improve (scores 
will decrease) 
 
Camille Creek = 
>90% 
Court School = 
>90% of long term 
students 
 

4.4 LCFF Priority 5: 
Graduation Rate = 5 
year cohort        

2023-2024 Graduation 
Rate: 
All students = 58.6% 
Updated 7/31/24 = 
68.7% 
Hispanic students = 
TBD once CALPADs is 
certified 
SED students = TBD 
once CALPADs is 
certified 
 
Camille Creek = TBD 
Hispanic students = 
TBD once CALPADs is 
certified 

  Graduation Rate: 
All students =  
>70% 
Hispanic students 
= 
SED students = 
 
Camille Creek = 
TBD 
Hispanic students 
= TBD once 
CALPADs is 
certified 
SED students = 
TBD once 
CALPADs is 
certified 
 

 



2024-25 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Napa County Office of Education Page 33 of 87 

Metric # Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Target for Year 3 
Outcome 

Current Difference 
from Baseline 

               SED students = TBD 
once CALPADs is 
certified 
 
Court School  = TBD 
Hispanic students = 
TBD once CALPADs is 
certified 
SED students = TBD 
once CALPADs is 
certified 
 

Court School  = 
TBD 
Hispanic students 
= TBD once 
CALPADs is 
certified 
SED students = 
TBD once 
CALPADs is 
certified 
 
 

4.5 Percentage of high 
school students entering 
workforce or post-
secondary training 
program        

26% of high school 
students participated in 
a work force training 
program. 
 
Camille Creek =26% 
Court School = N/A 
 

  40% of high school 
students will have 
participated in a 
work force training 
program. 
 
Camille Creek 
=40% 
Court School = 
N/A 
 

 

4.6 LCFF Priority 5: 
Attendance and Chronic 
Absenteeism        

2023-2024 Baseline 
attendance 84.7% 
Updated 7/31/24 = 87% 
 
The chronic 
absenteeism rate for All 
Students in 2023-2024 
is established in EOY 
CALPADS reporting – 
TBD 
 
Camille Creek = 26% 
Court School = 0% 
 

  Attendance for All 
students = (>88%) 
 
Chronic 
Absenteeism rate 
= All students 
<50% 
 
Camille Creek = 
88% <50% 
Chronic 
Absenteeism 
Court School = 
100% attendance 

 



2024-25 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Napa County Office of Education Page 34 of 87 

Metric # Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Target for Year 3 
Outcome 

Current Difference 
from Baseline 

               The chronic 
absenteeism rate for 
2022-2023 to date was: 
All students: 66.27% 
Low-income: 69.57% 
English Learners: 
61.9% 
SPED: 64.29% 
Hispanic: 69.23% 
White: 75% 
 

and 0% Chronic 
Absenteeism 
 

 

Goal Analysis [2023-24] 
An analysis of how this goal was carried out in the previous year. 
A description of overall implementation, including any substantive differences in planned actions and actual implementation of these actions, 
and any relevant challenges and successes experienced with implementation. 
 

Not Applicable.        
 
An explanation of material differences between Budgeted Expenditures and Estimated Actual Expenditures and/or Planned Percentages of 
Improved Services and Estimated Actual Percentages of Improved Services. 
 

Not Applicable.        
 
A description of the effectiveness or ineffectiveness of the specific actions to date in making progress toward the goal. 
 

Not Applicable.        
 
A description of any changes made to the planned goal, metrics, target outcomes, or actions for the coming year that resulted from reflections 
on prior practice. 
 

Not Applicable.        
 

Actions 

http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/24LCAP/Instructions/24LCAPInstructions.htm#GoalAnalysis
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/24LCAP/Instructions/24LCAPInstructions.htm#actions


2024-25 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Napa County Office of Education Page 35 of 87 

Action # Title Description Total Funds Contributing 
             4.1 Fully Staffed 

Wellness Center        
Staff and supplies 
 
 

$98,000.00 No      
XX 

 

4.2 VILS Tech        The technology coach supports teachers at Camille Creek and the Court 
School by enhancing their pedagogical skills to effectively integrate 
technology in the classroom, promote digital equity and engagement, and 
teach essential job-readiness technology skills. This role is supported by 
the Verizon Innovative Learning Schools team and Digital Promise 
professional development. 
 
 

$23,489.00 No      
XX 

 

4.3 School Social Worker        School social worker will administer mental health screenings to students 
at both sites and follow up with those who report moderate to high levels of 
depression. 
 
 

$83,910.11 No      
XX 

 

4.4 Indirect Cost        Supporting infrastructure and administration at the LEA level. 
 
 

$16,403.00 No      
XX 

 

 



2024-25 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Napa County Office of Education Page 36 of 87 

Goals and Actions 
 
Goal 

Goal # Description Type of Goal 
5 Improve the coordination of services for foster youth among Child Welfare, Probation, and LEAs. 

(LCFF Priority 10)         
Broad Goal 

 

State Priorities addressed by this goal. 
 

  X Priority 10: Foster Youth – COEs Only (Conditions of Learning)        
 
An explanation of why the LEA has developed this goal. 
 

Communication and coordination between educational agencies and child welfare regarding foster youth needs to be timely, accurate, 
ongoing and consistent so that the educational needs of foster can be met effectively. NCOE believes that evaluation of foster youth to 
identify services unique to their needs is a priority for our community. The combination of our metrics and actions presented below will help 
NCOE staff improve the coordination of services for foster youth across local agencies. The following metrics will help us track how 
successful we are with these coordination efforts and bring to light any changes or adjustments to make to our actions for continued progress 
and growth towards this goal. 
 
All metrics are related to LCFF Priority 10: Foster Youth. 
         

 

Measuring and Reporting Results 
 

Metric # Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Target for Year 3 
Outcome 

Current Difference 
from Baseline 

               5.1 LCFF Priority 10: 
Advisory Council 
Attendance -Measure 
membership attendance 
(5 meetings/year) 
        

2023-2024 Data: 
 
67% of council 
members are attending 
regularly 
 

  85% of council 
members will 
attend 75% 
meetings 

 

5.2 LCFF Priority 10: 
Completion of Council 
Meeting Surveys- 
percentage of council 
members completing 
surveys. Survey results 

2023-2024 Data: 
 
70% of council 
members completed the 
survey. 85% of 
members rated the 

  75% of council 
members will 
complete surveys 
80% of members 
will rate the council 

 

http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/24LCAP/Instructions/24LCAPInstructions.htm#GoalsandActions
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/24LCAP/Instructions/24LCAPInstructions.htm#goalDescription
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/24LCAP/Instructions/24LCAPInstructions.htm#MeasuringandReportingResults


2024-25 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Napa County Office of Education Page 37 of 87 

Metric # Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Target for Year 3 
Outcome 

Current Difference 
from Baseline 

               for transition aged youth 
will be collected.        

council meetings as 
highly effective 
 

meetings as highly 
effective 
 

5.3 LCFF Priority 10: Post 
Grad Data: Percent of 
students who qualify for 
graduation 
 
Percentage of students 
who complete the 
FAFSA/CADAA 
        

2023-2024 Data: 
 
11 seniors qualify to 
graduate. 3 seniors 
have submitted FAFSA 
applications 
 

  80% of students 
report that they 
know their FY 
rights pertaining to 
graduation and 
post secondary 
services available. 
100% of FY will 
complete the 
FAFSA/CADAA 

 

5.4 LCFF Priority 10: 
Transition to TK-K 
support: Flag the 
number of early 
childhood students 
transitioning to TK-K. 
 
Provide technical 
assistance, trainings, 
and outreach to 
providers. 
        

2023-2024 Data: 
 
1 FY attending NCOE 
preschool                         
1 TK will transition to K 
 
 

  Of all FY attending 
early childhood 
programs, flag 
90% of them prior 
to the start of their 
TK-K school year. 
Providers will 
attend 75% of 
presentations and 
meetings. 

 

5.5 LCFF Priority 10: 
Training Data to Track: 
Agencies that attend & 
effectiveness of trainings 
(post surveys)        

2023-2024 Data: 
 
3 countywide trainings 
5 countywide 
presentations 
 
86% of district & 
agencies participated in 
the countywide 
trainings. 
 

  100% of districts 
and agencies 
participate in the 
countywide 
trainings 
90% of participants 
will rate the 
trainings as 
effective or highly 
effective 
 

 



2024-25 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Napa County Office of Education Page 38 of 87 

Metric # Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Target for Year 3 
Outcome 

Current Difference 
from Baseline 

               91% of participants 
rated trainings as 
effective or highly 
effective 
 

 

Goal Analysis [2023-24] 
An analysis of how this goal was carried out in the previous year. 
A description of overall implementation, including any substantive differences in planned actions and actual implementation of these actions, 
and any relevant challenges and successes experienced with implementation. 
 

Not Applicable.        
 
An explanation of material differences between Budgeted Expenditures and Estimated Actual Expenditures and/or Planned Percentages of 
Improved Services and Estimated Actual Percentages of Improved Services. 
 

Not Applicable.        
 
A description of the effectiveness or ineffectiveness of the specific actions to date in making progress toward the goal. 
 

Not Applicable.        
 
A description of any changes made to the planned goal, metrics, target outcomes, or actions for the coming year that resulted from reflections 
on prior practice. 
 

Not Applicable.        
 

Actions 
Action # Title Description Total Funds Contributing 
             5.1 Collaboration with 

Partner Agencies        
The FY Coordinator and Ed laison positions will ensure the Foster Advisory 
Council has a representative from each of the Foster Serving agencies. 
This will increase communication, help identify gaps in services, and 
increase awareness of agencies' roles in serving FY students. This will 
contribute to educational stability and improve processes and protocols for 
meeting FY educational needs. 

$151,851.00 No      
XX 

 

http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/24LCAP/Instructions/24LCAPInstructions.htm#GoalAnalysis
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/24LCAP/Instructions/24LCAPInstructions.htm#actions


2024-25 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Napa County Office of Education Page 39 of 87 

Action # Title Description Total Funds Contributing 
             The Title IV-E Educational Liaison will ensure the prompt transfer of 

educational records, support immediate enrollment, serve as the conduit of 
information across child welfare, probation, and school districts. 
 
 
 

5.2 Post graduation 
planning        

A 0.40 FTE Ed liaison position is budgeted to support post-graduation 
planning with students and resource families. This position will work with 
schools to provide assistance to FY post- grads (works with agencies to 
ensure support for financial assistance, college enrollment, completing 
applications, etc.). 
 
 

$20,411.00 No      
XX 

 

5.3 Council Meetings and 
Information and Data 
Sharing        

"The FY Coordinator and Title IV-E Educational Liaison will establish a 
process of using Foster Focus to report on periodic student improvement 
on identified key indicators and school stability data to the Advisory Council 
at least two times a year. 
 
Will survey Advisory Council annually to determine topic of interest. Will 
design council meetings to align with interests. Will follow up with surveys 
after each meeting to improve upon council structure and content. Will 
send out agendas at least a week in advance for members to provide 
input. 
 
Continue subscription to Foster Focus." 
 
 
 
 

$16,725.00 No      
XX 

 

5.4 Early Childhood 
Connections        

The FY Coordinator and Title IV-E Educational Liaison will collaborate with 
NCOE's Early Childhood Director to develop a process that alerts LEAs of 
incoming TK-K FY students from preschool programs. This increased 
articulation will help maintain educational stability, ensure immediate 
priority enrollment of students, and provide access to records. 
 
 

$16,783.00 No      
XX 

 



2024-25 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Napa County Office of Education Page 40 of 87 

Action # Title Description Total Funds Contributing 
             5.5 Training Program        FY Coordinator will organize trainings for Child-welfare, Social Workers, 

Resource Families, District Liaisons and/or staff to inform on FY laws and 
rights and policies and procedures. Other training topics also include 
trauma informed practices as related to FY, post- graduation planning, and 
financial aid. 
 
 

$14,290.00 No      
XX 

 

 



2024-25 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Napa County Office of Education Page 41 of 87 

Goals and Actions 
 
Goal 

Goal # Description Type of Goal 
6 Coordinate the instruction of expelled pupils with the districts in the county so that all students can 

be placed in an appropriate educational setting. (LCFF Priority 9)         
Maintenance of Progress 
Goal 

 

State Priorities addressed by this goal. 
 

  X Priority 9: Expelled Pupils – COEs Only (Conditions of Learning)        
 
An explanation of why the LEA has developed this goal. 
 

NCOE will continue to implement the Countywide Expulsion Plan (LCFF Priority 9: Expelled Pupils). Community members have agreed that 
the actions and services for the coordination of instruction for expelled pupils with the districts in the county have been highly effective and 
the following metrics and actions described below will help us continue to meet this goal. Coordination activities have included a well 
documented referral process, designated points of contact at all LEAs, NCOE participation in district SARB processes, regular school law 
meetings, and the integration of district staff (e.g. special education) into the NCOE service offerings, and compliance with all placement 
change requirements for pupils with IEPs. The NCOE Community School Program continues to be a viable and sufficient educational 
placement option for expelled pupils in Napa County. As no districts operate community day school programs, the Community School 
continues to be the only publicly funded option for grades 7-12 students and continues to accommodate the possibility of serving K-6 
students. It should be noted that to our knowledge, there has not been an elementary school expulsion in Napa County for many years. The 
following metrics and actions will help NCOE meet this goal. 
 
         

 

Measuring and Reporting Results 
 

Metric # Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Target for Year 3 
Outcome 

Current Difference 
from Baseline 

               6.1 LCFF Priority 9: Maintain 
Community School 
program as an option for 
expelled pupils. Maintain 
and update AB922 plan 
as 
needed. 
        

For 2023-2024: 
The Community School 
program was 
maintained as an option 
for expelled pupils. The 
AB922 plan was 
maintained and updated 
as needed. 
 

  Maintain AB922 
plan and update as 
needed. 

 

http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/24LCAP/Instructions/24LCAPInstructions.htm#GoalsandActions
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/24LCAP/Instructions/24LCAPInstructions.htm#goalDescription
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/24LCAP/Instructions/24LCAPInstructions.htm#MeasuringandReportingResults


2024-25 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Napa County Office of Education Page 42 of 87 

 

Goal Analysis [2023-24] 
An analysis of how this goal was carried out in the previous year. 
A description of overall implementation, including any substantive differences in planned actions and actual implementation of these actions, 
and any relevant challenges and successes experienced with implementation. 
 

Not Applicable.        
 
An explanation of material differences between Budgeted Expenditures and Estimated Actual Expenditures and/or Planned Percentages of 
Improved Services and Estimated Actual Percentages of Improved Services. 
 

Not Applicable.        
 
A description of the effectiveness or ineffectiveness of the specific actions to date in making progress toward the goal. 
 

Not Applicable.        
 
A description of any changes made to the planned goal, metrics, target outcomes, or actions for the coming year that resulted from reflections 
on prior practice. 
 

Not Applicable.        
 

Actions 
Action # Title Description Total Funds Contributing 
             6.1 Countywide 

Expulsion Plan        
NCOE will continue to implement the Countywide Expulsion Plan. If 
program changes occur, NCOE will meet with district superintendents to 
revise the plan and submit to the state if revised. 
 
 

$0.00 No      
XX 

 

6.2 Coordination        Continue to maintain close coordination between NCOE staff and district 
liaison’s for all referrals to the NCOE community school and independent 
study programs, which are the only public school options available for 
expelled students in Napa County. Coordination activities include a well-
documented referral process, designated points of contact at all LEAs, 
NCOE participation in district SARB processes, regular school law 
meetings, and the integration of district staff (e.g. special education) into 
the NCOE service offerings, and compliance with all placement change 
requirements for pupils with IEPs. 

$0.00 No      
XX 

 

http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/24LCAP/Instructions/24LCAPInstructions.htm#GoalAnalysis
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/24LCAP/Instructions/24LCAPInstructions.htm#actions


2024-25 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Napa County Office of Education Page 43 of 87 

Action # Title Description Total Funds Contributing 
              

 
 



2024-25 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Napa County Office of Education Page 44 of 87 

Increased or Improved Services for Foster Youth, English Learners, and Low-
Income Students [2024-25] 
 
Total Projected LCFF Supplemental and/or Concentration Grants Projected Additional 15 percent LCFF Concentration Grant 
$$556,418 $n/a 
 
Required Percentage to Increase or Improve Services for the LCAP Year 
Projected Percentage to Increase 
or Improve Services for the 
Coming School Year 

LCFF Carryover — Percentage LCFF Carryover — Dollar 
Total Percentage to Increase or 
Improve Services for the Coming 
School Year 

9.457% 0.000% $0.00 9.457% 
 
The Budgeted Expenditures for Actions identified as Contributing may be found in the Contributing Actions Table. 
 
Required Descriptions 
 

LEA-wide and Schoolwide Actions 
For each action being provided to an entire LEA or school, provide an explanation of (1) the unique identified need(s) of the unduplicated 
student group(s) for whom the action is principally directed, (2) how the action is designed to address the identified need(s) and why it is being 
provided on an LEA or schoolwide basis, and (3) the metric(s) used to measure the effectiveness of the action in improving outcomes for the 
unduplicated student group(s). 
 
Goal and 
Action # Identified Need(s) How the Action(s) Address Need(s) and Why it is 

Provided on an LEA-wide or Schoolwide Basis 
Metric(s) to Monitor 
Effectiveness 

    

1.4 Action: 
Credit Recovery 
 
Need: 
Unduplicated student high school students are 
sent to Camille Creek with credit deficiencies 
and need options to earn lost credit. This 
action targets EL, SED, and FY students but is 
offered to all students as a way to help them 
make up the gap in credits when entering 
Camille Creek. 

Students who come to JCCS in high school are 
nearly always significantly deficient in credits. This 
may impact their ability to return to the 
comprehensive campus once stated term at JCCS 
has ended as well as their ability to graduate at 
our campus with a lower credit requirement of 180. 
Students need access to a credit recovery 
program that allows them to make up credits both 
in the classroom setting, but also during the after-
school program and at home. This action will help 

Graduation rate increase 
Credits earned vs. Credits 
attempted. 
 
 

http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/24LCAP/Instructions/24LCAPInstructions.htm#IncreasedImprovedServices
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/24LCAP/Instructions/24LCAPInstructions.htm#IncreasedImprovedServices
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/24LCAP/Instructions/24LCAPInstructions.htm#RequiredDescriptions
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/24LCAP/Instructions/24LCAPInstructions.htm#RequiredDescriptions1


2024-25 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Napa County Office of Education Page 45 of 87 

Goal and 
Action # Identified Need(s) How the Action(s) Address Need(s) and Why it is 

Provided on an LEA-wide or Schoolwide Basis 
Metric(s) to Monitor 
Effectiveness 

    

 
Scope: 
XLEA-wide        
 

support students as they work to meet the credit 
requirements for graduation. 

1.6 Action: 
Homeroom teachers to provide academic 
support to students - small class sizes 
 
Need: 
All of our unduplicated students, ELs, FY, and 
socioeconomic disadvantaged students 
struggle with their basic math and language 
arts concepts. Only 6.25% of 11th graders are 
meeting standards in language arts and none 
in math on the 2023 CAASPP. 
 
Scope: 
XLEA-wide        
 

JCCS understands the crucial role our educational 
program plays in our low-income and foster youth 
students' and their families' lives. When surveyed 
about how to meet the needs of unduplicated 
students, teachers see a need for more 
professional development based on skill and need, 
smaller class sizes, more opportunities for hands-
on learning, and more internships and career 
readiness skills. 
 
In order to raise the reading and math levels of our 
students so that they can access college level 
material, we will hire an additional academic 
teacher to decrease class size, so students have 
more individual attention. Teachers are seeing that 
with smaller class sizes, students are better able 
to focus, behaviors are down, and more work is 
completed. 
 
To provide services exclusively to low-income 
pupils, English Learners, or foster youth in self-
contained classrooms of approximately 16 
students, would mean denying services to three or 
four in the same room. The most effective way to 
meet the needs of the low income, English 
Learner, and foster youth pupils in the JCCS 
program is to provide the highest quality program 
possible to all students. 
 

CAASPP ELA and Math 
results 

3.1 Action: By the time a student arrives at JCCS, there has 
been a multiple year history of barriers to 

Attendance Rate 
Suspension Rate 



2024-25 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Napa County Office of Education Page 46 of 87 

Goal and 
Action # Identified Need(s) How the Action(s) Address Need(s) and Why it is 

Provided on an LEA-wide or Schoolwide Basis 
Metric(s) to Monitor 
Effectiveness 

    

Staffing for SEL support, home visits, and 
strengthening relationships 
 
Need: 
Unduplicated students and families have a 
history of disconnection with the school 
district. Support is needed for families and 
students to re-engage in their learning. Even 
though different unduplicated student groups, 
our SED and FY students all have a history of 
being disconnected with school systems. 
According to the 2023-2024 results of the 
California Healthy Kids Survey (CHKS), 46% 
of students feel connected at school and 65% 
feel safe at school. These results are an 
increase from previous years, so Camille 
Creek sees the benefit of continuing these 
investments for our most neediest of students. 
 
Scope: 
XLEA-wide        
 

academic success such as truancy, dysfunctional 
behavior, and mental health struggles. Parents 
can present with a variety of issues such as 
frustration, mistrust, and lack of understanding 
how to support their student. 
To help our students develop the self regulation 
and interpersonal skills needed to form and 
maintain positive and meaningful relationships, our 
liaison team will work with students and families to 
address barriers preventing low-income and foster 
youth students from thriving in school. 
Our team supports students by building strong 
communication and trust, as well as connecting 
families to community resources that can promote 
parent education, access to basic needs, and 
advocacy. Our interventions coordinator closely 
monitors attendance and connects with families 
regularly to troubleshoot any truancy issues. 
Instructional support staff contribute to assisting 
the teachers in supporting both student academic 
access, but SEL success as well. Even though 
these services are principally directed for low-
income and foster youth students, they will be 
available for all students as so many of our 
students have the same needs. 
 

 

3.2 Action: 
JCCS Staff Training (SEL and Restorative 
Justice focus) 
 
Need: 
So many of our low-income and foster youth 
students struggle with mental health issues, 
drug and alcohol dependency, and have 
experienced or are experiencing abuse and/or 
trauma. Many of our EL students cross over to 

Many of our students have been removed from 
classrooms and schools due to their behavior. 
JCCS educates staff in trauma informed 
education, restorative practices, PBIS, and 
community circles to better understand student 
reaction and research-based responses to 
increase outcomes for students. 
Staff must model the social and emotional skills 
we wish our students to learn. Staff must 
understand that we “teach who we are” and hold 

Average number of 
referrals per student 
Suspension rate 
 



2024-25 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Napa County Office of Education Page 47 of 87 

Goal and 
Action # Identified Need(s) How the Action(s) Address Need(s) and Why it is 

Provided on an LEA-wide or Schoolwide Basis 
Metric(s) to Monitor 
Effectiveness 

    

the low-income student group as well and 
have very similar needs. Because these 
students come from backgrounds of abuse, 
neglect and/or trauma, they often lack self-
regulation and have maladaptive coping 
mechanisms. If our students are to thrive in 
and outside of school, they require restorative 
relationships, targeted instruction, and 
inspiring opportunities for growth. 
Unduplicated students need support from staff 
who can understand their unique needs and 
circumstances to better support school 
success. 
 
Scope: 
XLEA-wide        
 

ourselves and each other accountable to the 
highest interpersonal standards. Students gain 
confidence through connections with the larger 
community through supported workplace 
opportunities. When our students gain confidence 
in the workplace, they begin the journey toward 
independence and productive citizenship. 
Even though these services are principally 
directed for low-income and foster youth students, 
they will be available for all students as so many of 
our students have the same needs. 
 

3.4 Action: 
Probation Officers 
 
Need: 
Many of our FY and socioeconomic 
disadvantaged students are on formal or 
informal probation. Having probation officers to 
support and monitor students can decrease 
recidivism rates and increase positive 
interactions with law enforcement. 
 
Scope: 
XLEA-wide        
 

JCCS in conjunction with Napa County Probation 
fund the position of one probation officer at the 
school. This officer supports with school safety, 
positive school climate, and positive law 
enforcement interactions. They do brief counseling 
and support with students throughout the school 
day to increase student outcomes with regards to 
both academic and self-regulatory success. There 
has been a county wide uptick in gang activity and 
probation supports in the education of both student 
and parents as to the impact of gang membership. 

Recidivism ; Suspension 
rate 

3.5 Action: 
Data/information systems and platforms 
 
Need: 

JCCS utilizes a student information system that 
integrates with our parent communication system 
to deliver real-time updates on attendance and 
academic performance to parents. This enables 

Attendance Rate 
Graduation Rate 
 



2024-25 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Napa County Office of Education Page 48 of 87 

Goal and 
Action # Identified Need(s) How the Action(s) Address Need(s) and Why it is 

Provided on an LEA-wide or Schoolwide Basis 
Metric(s) to Monitor 
Effectiveness 

    

Attendance has been a challenge for our ELs, 
FY, and socioeconomic disadvantaged 
students. Current attendance is 86% for all 
students but 80% for Low SED/FY and 79 for 
ELs. We need to be able to successfully track 
attendance and behavior of our students to 
respond with the appropriate interventions in a 
timely manner. 
 
Scope: 
XLEA-wide        
 

both school staff and parents to review data and 
implement necessary interventions proactively, 
preventing negative impacts. Parents receive daily 
phone calls from the parent liaison when students 
are absent, providing an opportunity to address 
underlying issues. Additionally, these data 
systems support staff in employing continuous 
improvement practices to enhance student 
outcomes. 

3.6 Action: 
Juvenile Hall Staffing 
 
Need: 
100% of students in Juvenile Court School are 
considered low income as wards of the court. 
JCCS provides educational services for 
incarcerated youth at the Juvenile Hall facility. 
 
Scope: 
XSchoolwide        
 

Under federal and state laws, all students, 
including those in juvenile detention facilities, have 
the right to receive an education. The Individuals 
with Disabilities Education Act (IDEA) and various 
state regulations mandate educational services for 
incarcerated youth. JCCS provides educational 
services for incarcerated youth to educate, 
rehabilitate and provide social and emotional 
learning supports. 

Credit Accumulation 
School re-enrollment rates 
 

3.7 Action: 
Fitness and After School Program 
 
Need: 
Parent surveys state that families are seeking 
out ways to engage their students in prosocial 
activities during the hours between 2:00 and 
5:00 pm. Students on probation are also 
required by the probation department to 
engage in supervised activities during those 
hours. There is an extreme need to provide 

The Community School provides an after-school 
program from the hours of 2:00pm and 5:00pm. 
Activities include physical fitness at the Sheriff's 
Activity League, Credit Recover and Homework 
support, Arts instruction, Esports, Culinary and 
Media Clubs, and Drivers Education. 
 
We will employ a fitness coach and staff for the 
after-school program to help provide enrichment 
and support for all students but principally directed 
to low-income and foster youth students. 

Percentage of 
unduplicated students 
attending the after-school 
program. 
 
Attendance rate increase 
Chronic absenteeism rate 
decrease 
CHKS 
Suspension rate decrease 
 



2024-25 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Napa County Office of Education Page 49 of 87 

Goal and 
Action # Identified Need(s) How the Action(s) Address Need(s) and Why it is 

Provided on an LEA-wide or Schoolwide Basis 
Metric(s) to Monitor 
Effectiveness 

    

our socioeconomic disadvantaged students 
with prosocial activities during the after-school 
hours to keep them engaged in structured 
activities. 
 
Scope: 
XSchoolwide        
 

 
We will see a positive effect on our attendance 
rate and chronic absenteeism and anticipate our 
suspension rate to decrease over time. More 
students will also feel safe and connected to 
school as reported on the California Healthy Kids 
Survey (CHKS). 
 

 
Limited Actions 
For each action being solely provided to one or more unduplicated student group(s), provide an explanation of (1) the unique identified need(s) 
of the unduplicated student group(s) being served, (2) how the action is designed to address the identified need(s), and (3) how the 
effectiveness of the action in improving outcomes for the unduplicated student group(s) will be measured. 
 

Goal and 
Action # Identified Need(s) How the Action(s) are Designed to Address 

Need(s) 
Metric(s) to Monitor 
Effectiveness 

    
 
For any limited action contributing to meeting the increased or improved services requirement that is associated with a Planned Percentage of 
Improved Services in the Contributing Summary Table rather than an expenditure of LCFF funds, describe the methodology that was used to 
determine the contribution of the action towards the proportional percentage, as applicable. 

n/a         
 
Additional Concentration Grant Funding 
A description of the plan for how the additional concentration grant add-on funding identified above will be used to increase the number of staff 
providing direct services to students at schools that have a high concentration (above 55 percent) of foster youth, English learners, and low-
income students, as applicable. 
 

n/a         
 

http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/24LCAP/Instructions/24LCAPInstructions.htm#RequiredDescriptions2
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/24LCAP/Instructions/24LCAPInstructions.htm#AddCGF


2024-25 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Napa County Office of Education Page 50 of 87 

Staff-to-student ratios by 
type of school and 
concentration of 
unduplicated students 

Schools with a student concentration of 55 percent or 
less 

Schools with a student concentration of greater than 55 
percent 

Staff-to-student ratio of 
classified staff providing 
direct services to students 

n/a         1:16         

Staff-to-student ratio of 
certificated staff providing 
direct services to students 

n/a         1:16         

 



2024-25 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Napa County Office of Education Page 51 of 87 

2024-25 Total Expenditures Table 
 

LCAP Year 
1. Projected LCFF Base 

Grant 
(Input Dollar Amount) 

2. Projected LCFF 
Supplemental and/or 
Concentration Grants 
(Input  Dollar Amount) 

3. Projected Percentage 
to Increase or Improve 

Services for the Coming 
School Year 

(2 divided by 1) 

LCFF Carryover —  
Percentage 

(Input Percentage from 
Prior Year) 

Total Percentage to 
Increase or Improve 

Services for the Coming 
School Year 

(3 + Carryover %) 
Totals          $5,883,602 $556,418 9.457% 0.000% 9.457% 

 

Totals LCFF Funds Other State Funds Local Funds Federal Funds Total Funds Total Personnel Total Non-personnel 

Totals          $2,502,658.00         $883,755.11 $0.00 $120,479.00 $3,506,892.11 $838,810.00 $2,668,082.11 

 
                 

Goal # Action # Action Title Student Group(s) Contributing 
to Increased 
or Improved 
Services? 

Scope Unduplicated 
Student 
Group(s) 

Location Time Span Total 
Personnel 

Total Non-
personnel 

LCFF Funds Other State Funds Local Funds Federal 
Funds 

Total 
Funds 

Planned 
Percentage 
of Improved 

Services 
1 1.1 Academic Curriculum 

and Interim 
Assessments        

All    X 
 

No      
X 
 

  All 
SchoolsX 
 

 $0.00 $7,622.00 $7,622.00 
   

$7,622.0
0 

 

1 1.2 Professional 
Development Academic 
Focus        

All    X 
 

No      
X 
 

  All 
SchoolsX 
 

 $0.00 $700.00 $700.00 
   

$700.00  

1 1.3 Access to technology 
and support        

All    X 
 

No      
X 
 

    $0.00 $6,910.00 $6,910.00 
   

$6,910.0
0 

 

1 1.4 Credit Recovery        English LearnersX 
Foster YouthX 
Low IncomeX 
 

Yes     
X 
 

LEA-
wideX 
 

English 
LearnersX 
Foster YouthX 
Low IncomeX 
 

All 
SchoolsX
X 
 

 $0.00 $6,375.00 $6,375.00 
   

$6,375.0
0 

 

1 1.5 Camille Creek Facility        All    X 
 

No      
X 
 

  All 
SchoolsX 
 

 $0.00 $288,994.00 $288,994.00 
   

$288,994
.00 

 

1 1.6 Homeroom teachers to 
provide academic 
support to students - 
small class sizes        

English LearnersX 
Foster YouthX 
Low IncomeX 
 

Yes     
X 
 

LEA-
wideX 
 

English 
LearnersX 
Foster YouthX 
Low IncomeX 
 

All 
SchoolsX 
 

 $0.00 $606,404.00 $606,404.00 
   

$606,404
.00 

 

2 2.1 Employee 2 FTE CTE 
Teachers        

All    X 
 

No      
X 
 

    $0.00 $249,361.00 
 

$249,361.00 
  

$249,361
.00 

 

2 2.2 Spirit Horse and other 
Community Based 
Learning Activities        

All    X 
 

No      
X 
 

  All 
SchoolsX 
 

 $0.00 $37,709.00 
 

$37,709.00 
  

$37,709.
00 

 

3 3.1 Staffing for SEL support, 
home visits, and 
strengthening 
relationships        

English LearnersX 
Foster YouthX 
Low IncomeX 
 

Yes     
X 
 

LEA-
wideX 
 

English 
LearnersX 
Foster YouthX 
Low IncomeX 
 

All 
SchoolsX 
6-12        
 

 $635,475.0
0 

$0.00 $480,652.00 $154,823.00 
  

$635,475
.00 

 

3 3.2 JCCS Staff Training 
(SEL and Restorative 
Justice focus)        

English LearnersX 
Foster YouthX 
Low IncomeX 
 

Yes     
X 
 

LEA-
wideX 
 

English 
LearnersX 
Foster YouthX 
Low IncomeX 
 

All 
SchoolsX 
 

 $0.00 $700.00 $700.00 
   

$700.00  



2024-25 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Napa County Office of Education Page 52 of 87 

                 
Goal # Action # Action Title Student Group(s) Contributing 

to Increased 
or Improved 
Services? 

Scope Unduplicated 
Student 
Group(s) 

Location Time Span Total 
Personnel 

Total Non-
personnel 

LCFF Funds Other State Funds Local Funds Federal 
Funds 

Total 
Funds 

Planned 
Percentage 
of Improved 

Services 
3 3.3 JCCS general staffing 

(leadership, office staff)        
All    X 
 

No      
X 
 

  All 
SchoolsX 
 

 $0.00 $691,764.00 $613,695.00 
  

$78,069.00 $691,764
.00 

 

3 3.4 Probation Officers        English LearnersX 
Foster YouthX 
Low IncomeX 
 

Yes     
X 
 

LEA-
wideX 
 

English 
LearnersX 
Foster YouthX 
Low IncomeX 
 

All 
SchoolsX 
Specific 
Schools: 
Communi
ty School 
 

 $0.00 $7,000.00 $7,000.00 
   

$7,000.0
0 

 

3 3.5 Data/information 
systems and platforms        

English LearnersX 
Foster YouthX 
Low IncomeX 
 

Yes     
X 
 

LEA-
wideX 
 

English 
LearnersX 
Foster YouthX 
Low IncomeX 
 

All 
SchoolsX 
 

 $0.00 $21,100.00 $21,100.00 
   

$21,100.
00 

 

3 3.6 Juvenile Hall Staffing        English LearnersX 
Foster YouthX 
Low IncomeX 
 

Yes     
X 
 

School
wideX 
 

English 
LearnersX 
Foster YouthX 
Low IncomeX 
 

Specific 
Schools: 
Court 
School 
6-12        
 

 $0.00 $188,557.00 $146,147.00 
  

$42,410.00 $188,557
.00 

 

3 3.7 Fitness and After School 
Program        

English LearnersX 
Foster YouthX 
Low IncomeX 
 

Yes     
X 
 

School
wideX 
 

English 
LearnersX 
Foster YouthX 
Low IncomeX 
 

Specific 
Schools: 
Camille 
CreekCo
mmunity 
School 
 

 $0.00 $27,362.00 $27,362.00 
   

$27,362.
00 

 

3 3.8 Camille Creek Facility        All    X 
 

No      
X 
 

  Specific 
Schools: 
Communi
ty School 
 

 $0.00 $288,997.00 $288,997.00 
   

$288,997
.00 

 

4 4.1 Fully Staffed Wellness 
Center        

All    X 
Students with 
DisabilitiesX 
 

No      
XX 

 

  Specific 
Schools: 
Camille 
Creek 
 

 $0.00 $98,000.00 
 

$98,000.00 
  

$98,000.
00 

 

4 4.2 VILS Tech        All    X 
Students with 
DisabilitiesX 
 

No      
XX 

 

  All 
SchoolsX 
 

 $0.00 $23,489.00 
 

$23,489.00 
  

$23,489.
00 

 

4 4.3 School Social Worker        All    X 
Students with 
DisabilitiesX 
 

No      
XX 

 

  All 
SchoolsX 
 

 $0.00 $83,910.11 
 

$83,910.11 
  

$83,910.
11 

 

4 4.4 Indirect Cost        All    X 
Students with 
DisabilitiesX 
 

No      
XX 

 

  All 
SchoolsX 
 

 $0.00 $16,403.00 
 

$16,403.00 
  

$16,403.
00 

 

5 5.1 Collaboration with 
Partner Agencies        

All    X 
Students with 
DisabilitiesX 
 

No      
XX 

 

  All 
SchoolsX 
 

 $151,851.0
0 

$0.00 
 

$151,851.00 
  

$151,851
.00 

 



2024-25 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Napa County Office of Education Page 53 of 87 

                 
Goal # Action # Action Title Student Group(s) Contributing 

to Increased 
or Improved 
Services? 

Scope Unduplicated 
Student 
Group(s) 

Location Time Span Total 
Personnel 

Total Non-
personnel 

LCFF Funds Other State Funds Local Funds Federal 
Funds 

Total 
Funds 

Planned 
Percentage 
of Improved 

Services 
5 5.2 Post graduation planning        All    X 

Students with 
DisabilitiesX 
 

No      
XX 

 

  All 
SchoolsX 
 

 $20,411.00 $0.00 
 

$20,411.00 
  

$20,411.
00 

 

5 5.3 Council Meetings and 
Information and Data 
Sharing        

All    X 
Students with 
DisabilitiesX 
 

No      
XX 

 

  All 
SchoolsX 
 

 $0.00 $16,725.00 
 

$16,725.00 
  

$16,725.
00 

 

5 5.4 Early Childhood 
Connections        

All    X 
Students with 
DisabilitiesX 
 

No      
XX 

 

  All 
SchoolsX 
 

 $16,783.00 $0.00 
 

$16,783.00 
  

$16,783.
00 

 

5 5.5 Training Program        All    X 
Students with 
DisabilitiesX 
 

No      
XX 

 

  All 
SchoolsX 
 

 $14,290.00 $0.00 
 

$14,290.00 
  

$14,290.
00 

 

6 6.1 Countywide Expulsion 
Plan        

All    X 
Students with 
DisabilitiesX 
 

No      
XX 

 

  All 
SchoolsX 
 

 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00  

6 6.2 Coordination        All    X 
Students with 
DisabilitiesX 
 

No      
XX 

 

  All 
SchoolsX 
 

 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00  

 



2024-25 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Napa County Office of Education Page 54 of 87 

2024-25 Contributing Actions Table 
 

1. Projected 
LCFF Base 

Grant 

2. Projected 
LCFF 

Supplemental 
and/or 

Concentration 
Grants 

3. Projected 
Percentage to 

Increase or 
Improve 

Services for 
the Coming 
School Year 
(2 divided by 

1) 

LCFF 
Carryover —  
Percentage 
(Percentage 
from Prior 

Year) 

Total 
Percentage to 

Increase or 
Improve 

Services for 
the Coming 
School Year 

(3 + Carryover 
%) 

4. Total 
Planned 

Contributing 
Expenditures  
(LCFF Funds) 

5. Total 
Planned 

Percentage of 
Improved 
Services  

(%) 

Planned 
Percentage to 

Increase or 
Improve 

Services for 
the Coming 
School Year 
(4 divided by 

1, plus 5) 

Totals by 
Type 

Total LCFF 
Funds 

          
$5,883,602 $556,418 9.457% 0.000% 9.457% $1,295,740.00 0.000% 22.023 % Total:         $1,295,740.00 

        LEA-wide 
Total:         $1,122,231.00 

        Limited Total:         $0.00 
        Schoolwide 

Total:         $173,509.00 
 

         

Goal Action # Action Title 
Contributing to 

Increased or 
Improved 
Services? 

Scope Unduplicated 
Student Group(s) Location 

Planned 
Expenditures for 

Contributing 
Actions (LCFF 

Funds) 

Planned 
Percentage of 

Improved 
Services (%) 

1 1.4 Credit Recovery XYes     
 

XLEA-wide         XEnglish Learners        
XFoster Youth        
XLow Income         

XAll Schools         $6,375.00 
 

1 1.6 Homeroom teachers to 
provide academic support to 
students - small class sizes 

XYes     
 

XLEA-wide         XEnglish Learners        
XFoster Youth        
XLow Income         

XAll Schools         $606,404.00 
 

3 3.1 Staffing for SEL support, 
home visits, and 
strengthening relationships 

XYes     
 

XLEA-wide         XEnglish Learners        
XFoster Youth        
XLow Income         

XAll Schools         $480,652.00 
 

3 3.2 JCCS Staff Training (SEL 
and Restorative Justice 
focus) 

XYes     
 

XLEA-wide         XEnglish Learners        
XFoster Youth        
XLow Income         

XAll Schools         $700.00 
 

3 3.4 Probation Officers XYes     
 

XLEA-wide         XEnglish Learners        
XFoster Youth        
XLow Income         

XAll Schools         $7,000.00 
 

3 3.5 Data/information systems 
and platforms 

XYes     
 

XLEA-wide         XEnglish Learners        
XFoster Youth        
XLow Income         

XAll Schools         $21,100.00 
 

3 3.6 Juvenile Hall Staffing XYes     
 

XSchoolwide         XEnglish Learners        
XFoster Youth        

Specific Schools: 
Court School        

$146,147.00 
 



2024-25 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Napa County Office of Education Page 55 of 87 

         

Goal Action # Action Title 
Contributing to 

Increased or 
Improved 
Services? 

Scope Unduplicated 
Student Group(s) Location 

Planned 
Expenditures for 

Contributing 
Actions (LCFF 

Funds) 

Planned 
Percentage of 

Improved 
Services (%) 

XLow Income         6-12         
3 3.7 Fitness and After School 

Program 
XYes     

 
XSchoolwide         XEnglish Learners        

XFoster Youth        
XLow Income         

Specific Schools: 
Camille Creek         

$27,362.00 
 

 



2024-25 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Napa County Office of Education Page 56 of 87 

2023-24 Annual Update Table 
 

Totals 
Last Year's 

Total Planned 
Expenditures 
(Total Funds) 

Total Estimated  
Expenditures 
(Total Funds) 

Totals          $3,034,621.00 $2,858,313.98 

 
      Last Year's 

Goal # 
Last Year's Action 

# 
Prior Action/Service Title Contributed to Increased 

or Improved Services? 
Last Year's Planned 

Expenditures 
(Total Funds) 

Estimated Actual 
Expenditures 

(Input Total Funds) 
1 1.1 Staffing for SEL support, home 

visits, and strengthening 
relationships        

Yes     
X 
 

$692,766.00 $523,460.00 

1 1.2 JCCS Staff Training (SEL and 
Restorative Justice focus)        

Yes     
X 
 

$5,500.00 $13,000.00 

1 1.4 JCCS general staffing (leadership, 
instructors, office staff)        

No      
X 
 

$988,279.00 $1,082,092.00 

1 1.5 Probation Officers        Yes     
X 
 

$7,000.00 7,000 

1 1.6 Data/information systems and 
platforms        

No      
X 
 

$12,850.00 $20,158 

1 1.7 Juvenile Hall Staffing        Yes     
X 
 

$181,001.00 $145,252.00 

1 1.8 Fitness and After school programs        Yes     
X 
 

$83,454.00 $35,915.00 

1 1.9 Camille Creek Facility        No      
X 
 

$292,500.00 $292,500 

2 2.2 Academic curricula and interim 
assessments        

Yes     
X 
 

$7,522.00 $12,920.00 

2 2.3 Professional Training Opportunities 
(academic focus)        

Yes     
X 
 

$2,500.00 1500 

2 2.5 Access to technology and support        Yes     $52,100.00 $59,500 



2024-25 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Napa County Office of Education Page 57 of 87 

      Last Year's 
Goal # 

Last Year's Action 
# 

Prior Action/Service Title Contributed to Increased 
or Improved Services? 

Last Year's Planned 
Expenditures 
(Total Funds) 

Estimated Actual 
Expenditures 

(Input Total Funds) 
X 
 

2 2.6 Internship/Mentorship programs        Yes     
X 
 

$700.00 700 

2 2.7 Career Technology Education 
(CTE) and Arts programs        

Yes     
X 
 

$218,383.00 $170,812.00 

2 2.8 Credit Recovery        Yes     
X 
 

$3,500.00 $3,484.00 

2 2.9 Camille Creek Facility        No      
X 
 

$292,500.00 $292,500 

3 3.1 Collaboration with Partner Agencies        No      
XFoster Youth 

 

$133,914.00 $135,676.05 

3 3.2 Post graduation planning        No      
XFoster Youth 

 

$18,000.00 $18,452.83 

3 3.3 Council Meetings and Information 
and Data Sharing        

No      
XFoster Youth 

 

$14,750.00 $15,125.74 

3 3.4 Early Childhood Connections        No      
XFoster Youth 

 

$14,800.00 $15,225.74 

3 3.5 Training Program        No      
XFoster Youth 

 

$12,602.00 $13,040.62 

4 4.1 Countywide Expulsion Plan        No      
X 
 

$0.00 0 

4 4.2 Coordination        No      
X 
 

$0.00 0 

 



2024-25 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Napa County Office of Education Page 58 of 87 

2023-24 Contributing Actions Annual Update Table 
 

6. Estimated  
LCFF 

Supplemental 
and/or 

Concentration 
Grants 

(Input Dollar 
Amount) 

4. Total Planned 
Contributing 
Expenditures  
(LCFF Funds) 

7. Total Estimated  
Expenditures for 

Contributing 
Actions  

(LCFF Funds) 

Difference 
Between Planned 

and Estimated  
Expenditures for 

Contributing 
Actions 

(Subtract 7 from 
4) 

5. Total Planned 
Percentage of 

Improved 
Services (%) 

8. Total Estimated  
Percentage of 

Improved 
Services  

(%) 

Difference 
Between Planned 

and Estimated  
Percentage of 

Improved 
Services 

(Subtract 5 from 
8) 

$521,824         $985,775.00         $522,100.00         $463,675.00         0.000%         0.000%         0.000%         
 

        
Last 

Year's 
Goal # 

Last 
Year's 

Action # 
Prior Action/Service Title 

Contributing to 
Increased or 

Improved Services? 

Last Year's Planned 
Expenditures for 

Contributing 
Actions (LCFF 

Funds) 

Estimated Actual 
Expenditures for 

Contributing 
Actions  

(Input LCFF Funds) 

Planned Percentage 
of Improved 

Services 

Estimated Actual 
Percentage of 

Improved Services 
(Input Percentage) 

1 1.1 Staffing for SEL support, home 
visits, and strengthening 
relationships 

XYes     
 

$503,715.00 $133,597.00  
 

1 1.2 JCCS Staff Training (SEL and 
Restorative Justice focus) 

XYes     
 

$500.00 $500.00  
 

1 1.5 Probation Officers XYes     
 

$7,000.00 $7,000.00  
 

1 1.7 Juvenile Hall Staffing XYes     
 

$181,001.00 $145,252.00  
 

1 1.8 Fitness and After school 
programs 

XYes     
 

$83,454.00 $35,915  
 

2 2.2 Academic curricula and interim 
assessments 

XYes     
 

$5,022.00 $10,630.00  
 

2 2.3 Professional Training 
Opportunities (academic focus) 

XYes     
 

$2,500.00 $1,500.00  
 

2 2.5 Access to technology and 
support 

XYes     
 

$10,000.00 $15,930  
 

2 2.6 Internship/Mentorship 
programs 

XYes     
 

$700.00 700  
 

2 2.7 Career Technology Education 
(CTE) and Arts programs 

XYes     
 

$188,383.00 $167,592.00  
 

2 2.8 Credit Recovery XYes     
 

$3,500.00 $3,484  
 

To Add a Row: Click “Add Row.” 
To Delete a Row: Remove all content from each cell, checkbox and dropdown of a row (including spaces), press “Save Data” and refresh the page. 

 



2024-25 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Napa County Office of Education Page 59 of 87 

2023-24 LCFF Carryover Table 
 

9. Estimated 
Actual LCFF 
Base Grant 
(Input Dollar 

Amount) 

6. Estimated 
Actual LCFF 

Supplemental 
and/or 

Concentration 
Grants 

LCFF Carryover 
—  Percentage 

(Percentage 
from Prior Year) 

10. Total 
Percentage to 

Increase or 
Improve 

Services for the 
Current School 

Year 
(6 divided by 9 + 

Carryover %) 

7. Total 
Estimated 

Actual 
Expenditures 

for Contributing 
Actions  

(LCFF Funds) 

8. Total 
Estimated 

Actual 
Percentage of 

Improved 
Services  

(%) 

11. Estimated 
Actual 

Percentage of 
Increased or 

Improved 
Services 

(7 divided by 9, 
plus 8) 

12. LCFF 
Carryover — 

Dollar Amount 
(Subtract 11 
from 10 and 

multiply by 9) 

13. LCFF 
Carryover —  
Percentage 

(12 divided by 9) 

$11,979,416 $521,824 0% 4.356% $522,100.00 0.000% 4.358% $0.00 0.000% 
 



2024-25 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Napa County Office of Education Page 60 of 87 

Local Control and Accountability Plan Instructions 
Plan Summary 

Engaging Educational Partners 

Goals and Actions 

Increased or Improved Services for Foster Youth, English Learners, and Low-Income Students 

For additional questions or technical assistance related to the completion of the Local Control and Accountability Plan (LCAP) template, please 
contact the local county office of education (COE), or the California Department of Education’s (CDE’s) Local Agency Systems Support Office, 
by phone at 916-319-0809 or by email at LCFF@cde.ca.gov. 

Introduction and Instructions 
The Local Control Funding Formula (LCFF) requires local educational agencies (LEAs) to engage their local educational partners in an annual 
planning process to evaluate their progress within eight state priority areas encompassing all statutory metrics (COEs have 10 state priorities). 
LEAs document the results of this planning process in the LCAP using the template adopted by the State Board of Education.  

The LCAP development process serves three distinct, but related functions:  

• Comprehensive Strategic Planning: The process of developing and annually updating the LCAP supports comprehensive strategic planning, 
particularly to address and reduce disparities in opportunities and outcomes between student groups indicated by the California School Dashboard 
(California Education Code [EC] Section 52064[e][1]). Strategic planning that is comprehensive connects budgetary decisions to teaching and 
learning performance data. LEAs should continually evaluate the hard choices they make about the use of limited resources to meet student and 
community needs to ensure opportunities and outcomes are improved for all students. 

• Meaningful Engagement of Educational Partners: The LCAP development process should result in an LCAP that reflects decisions made through 
meaningful engagement (EC Section 52064[e][1]). Local educational partners possess valuable perspectives and insights about an LEA's programs 
and services. Effective strategic planning will incorporate these perspectives and insights in order to identify potential goals and actions to be 
included in the LCAP. 

• Accountability and Compliance: The LCAP serves an important accountability function because the nature of some LCAP template sections 
require LEAs to show that they have complied with various requirements specified in the LCFF statutes and regulations, most notably: 

o Demonstrating that LEAs are increasing or improving services for foster youth, English learners, including long-term English learners, and 
low-income students in proportion to the amount of additional funding those students generate under LCFF (EC Section 52064[b][4-6]). 

o Establishing goals, supported by actions and related expenditures, that address the statutory priority areas and statutory metrics (EC sections 
52064[b][1] and [2]).  

▪ NOTE: As specified in EC Section 62064(b)(1), the LCAP must provide a description of the annual goals, for all pupils and each 
subgroup of pupils identified pursuant to EC Section 52052, to be achieved for each of the state priorities. Beginning in 2023–24, EC 

mailto:LCFF@cde.ca.gov


2024-25 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Napa County Office of Education Page 61 of 87 

Section 52052 identifies long-term English learners as a separate and distinct pupil subgroup with a numerical significance at 15 
students. 

o Annually reviewing and updating the LCAP to reflect progress toward the goals (EC Section 52064[b][7]). 

o Ensuring that all increases attributable to supplemental and concentration grant calculations, including concentration grant add-on funding 
and/or LCFF carryover, are reflected in the LCAP (EC sections 52064[b][6], [8], and [11]). 

The LCAP template, like each LEA’s final adopted LCAP, is a document, not a process. LEAs must use the template to memorialize the 
outcome of their LCAP development process, which must: (a) reflect comprehensive strategic planning, particularly to address and reduce 
disparities in opportunities and outcomes between student groups indicated by the California School Dashboard (Dashboard), (b) through 
meaningful engagement with educational partners that (c) meets legal requirements, as reflected in the final adopted LCAP. The sections 
included within the LCAP template do not and cannot reflect the full development process, just as the LCAP template itself is not intended as a 
tool for engaging educational partners.  

If a county superintendent of schools has jurisdiction over a single school district, the county board of education and the governing board of the 
school district may adopt and file for review and approval a single LCAP consistent with the requirements in EC sections 52060, 52062, 52066, 
52068, and 52070. The LCAP must clearly articulate to which entity’s budget (school district or county superintendent of schools) all budgeted 
and actual expenditures are aligned. 

The revised LCAP template for the 2024–25, 2025–26, and 2026–27 school years reflects statutory changes made through Senate Bill 114 
(Committee on Budget and Fiscal Review), Chapter 48, Statutes of 2023.  

At its most basic, the adopted LCAP should attempt to distill not just what the LEA is doing for students in transitional kindergarten through 
grade twelve (TK–12), but also allow educational partners to understand why, and whether those strategies are leading to improved 
opportunities and outcomes for students. LEAs are strongly encouraged to use language and a level of detail in their adopted LCAPs intended 
to be meaningful and accessible for the LEA’s diverse educational partners and the broader public. 

In developing and finalizing the LCAP for adoption, LEAs are encouraged to keep the following overarching frame at the forefront of the 
strategic planning and educational partner engagement functions:  

Given present performance across the state priorities and on indicators in the Dashboard, how is the LEA using its budgetary resources 
to respond to TK–12 student and community needs, and address any performance gaps, including by meeting its obligation to increase 
or improve services for foster youth, English learners, and low-income students? 

LEAs are encouraged to focus on a set of metrics and actions which, based on research, experience, and input gathered from educational 
partners, the LEA believes will have the biggest impact on behalf of its TK–12 students.  

These instructions address the requirements for each section of the LCAP, but may include information about effective practices when 
developing the LCAP and completing the LCAP document. Additionally, the beginning of each template section includes information 
emphasizing the purpose that section serves. 



2024-25 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Napa County Office of Education Page 62 of 87 

Plan Summary 
Purpose 
A well-developed Plan Summary section provides a meaningful context for the LCAP. This section provides information about an LEA’s 
community as well as relevant information about student needs and performance. In order to present a meaningful context for the rest of the 
LCAP, the content of this section should be clearly and meaningfully related to the content included throughout each subsequent section of the 
LCAP. 

Requirements and Instructions 
General Information  
A description of the LEA, its schools, and its students in grades transitional kindergarten–12, as applicable to the LEA. 
Briefly describe the LEA, its schools, and its students in grades TK–12, as applicable to the LEA.  

• For example, information about an LEA in terms of geography, enrollment, employment, the number and size of specific schools, recent community 
challenges, and other such information the LEA may wish to include can enable a reader to more fully understand the LEA’s LCAP.  

• As part of this response, identify all schools within the LEA receiving Equity Multiplier funding.  

Reflections: Annual Performance  
A reflection on annual performance based on a review of the California School Dashboard (Dashboard) and local data. 
Reflect on the LEA’s annual performance on the Dashboard and local data. This may include both successes and challenges identified by the 
LEA during the development process.  

LEAs are encouraged to highlight how they are addressing the identified needs of student groups, and/or schools within the LCAP as part of 
this response. 

As part of this response, the LEA must identify the following, which will remain unchanged during the three-year LCAP cycle: 

• Any school within the LEA that received the lowest performance level on one or more state indicators on the 2023 Dashboard;  

• Any student group within the LEA that received the lowest performance level on one or more state indicators on the 2023 Dashboard; 
and/or  

• Any student group within a school within the LEA that received the lowest performance level on one or more state indicators on the 2023 
Dashboard. 

Reflections: Technical Assistance  
As applicable, a summary of the work underway as part of technical assistance. 



2024-25 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Napa County Office of Education Page 63 of 87 

Annually identify the reason(s) the LEA is eligible for or has requested technical assistance consistent with EC sections 47607.3, 52071, 
52071.5, 52072, or 52072.5, and provide a summary of the work underway as part of receiving technical assistance. The most common form of 
this technical assistance is frequently referred to as Differentiated Assistance, however this also includes LEAs that have requested technical 
assistance from their COE. 

• If the LEA is not eligible for or receiving technical assistance, the LEA may respond to this prompt as “Not Applicable.” 

Comprehensive Support and Improvement 
An LEA with a school or schools identified for comprehensive support and improvement (CSI) under the Every Student Succeeds Act must 
respond to the following prompts: 

Schools Identified  
A list of the schools in the LEA that are eligible for comprehensive support and improvement. 

• Identify the schools within the LEA that have been identified for CSI.  

Support for Identified Schools  
A description of how the LEA has or will support its eligible schools in developing comprehensive support and improvement plans. 

• Describe how the LEA has or will support the identified schools in developing CSI plans that included a school-level needs assessment, evidence-
based interventions, and the identification of any resource inequities to be addressed through the implementation of the CSI plan. 

Monitoring and Evaluating Effectiveness 
A description of how the LEA will monitor and evaluate the plan to support student and school improvement. 

• Describe how the LEA will monitor and evaluate the implementation and effectiveness of the CSI plan to support student and school improvement. 

Engaging Educational Partners 
Purpose 
Significant and purposeful engagement of parents, students, educators, and other educational partners, including those representing the 
student groups identified by LCFF, is critical to the development of the LCAP and the budget process. Consistent with statute, such 
engagement should support comprehensive strategic planning, particularly to address and reduce disparities in opportunities and outcomes 
between student groups indicated by the Dashboard, accountability, and improvement across the state priorities and locally identified priorities 
(EC Section 52064[e][1]). Engagement of educational partners is an ongoing, annual process.  

This section is designed to reflect how the engagement of educational partners influenced the decisions reflected in the adopted LCAP. The 
goal is to allow educational partners that participated in the LCAP development process and the broader public to understand how the LEA 
engaged educational partners and the impact of that engagement. LEAs are encouraged to keep this goal in the forefront when completing this 
section.  

Requirements 



2024-25 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Napa County Office of Education Page 64 of 87 

School districts and COEs: EC sections 52060(g) (California Legislative Information) and 52066(g) (California Legislative Information) specify 
the educational partners that must be consulted when developing the LCAP:  

• Teachers,  
• Principals,  
• Administrators,  
• Other school personnel,  
• Local bargaining units of the LEA,  
• Parents, and  
• Students 

A school district or COE receiving Equity Multiplier funds must also consult with educational partners at schools generating Equity Multiplier 
funds in the development of the LCAP, specifically, in the development of the required focus goal for each applicable school.  

Before adopting the LCAP, school districts and COEs must share it with the applicable committees, as identified below under Requirements and 
Instructions. The superintendent is required by statute to respond in writing to the comments received from these committees. School districts 
and COEs must also consult with the special education local plan area administrator(s) when developing the LCAP.  

Charter schools: EC Section 47606.5(d) (California Legislative Information) requires that the following educational partners be consulted with 
when developing the LCAP:  

• Teachers,  
• Principals,  
• Administrators,  
• Other school personnel,  
• Parents, and  
• Students  

A charter school receiving Equity Multiplier funds must also consult with educational partners at the school generating Equity Multiplier funds 
in the development of the LCAP, specifically, in the development of the required focus goal for the school. 

The LCAP should also be shared with, and LEAs should request input from, schoolsite-level advisory groups, as applicable (e.g., schoolsite 
councils, English Learner Advisory Councils, student advisory groups, etc.), to facilitate alignment between schoolsite and district-level goals. 
Information and resources that support effective engagement, define student consultation, and provide the requirements for advisory group 
composition, can be found under Resources on the CDE’s LCAP webpage. 

Before the governing board/body of an LEA considers the adoption of the LCAP, the LEA must meet the following legal requirements: 

• For school districts, see Education Code Section 52062 (California Legislative Information); 

o Note: Charter schools using the LCAP as the School Plan for Student Achievement must meet the requirements of EC Section 52062(a). 

https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=52060.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=52066.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?sectionNum=47606.5.&lawCode=EDC
https://www.cde.ca.gov/re/lc/
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=52062.


2024-25 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Napa County Office of Education Page 65 of 87 

• For COEs, see Education Code Section 52068 (California Legislative Information); and  

• For charter schools, see Education Code Section 47606.5 (California Legislative Information). 

• NOTE: As a reminder, the superintendent of a school district or COE must respond, in writing, to comments received by the applicable committees 
identified in the Education Code sections listed above. This includes the parent advisory committee and may include the English learner parent 
advisory committee and, as of July 1, 2024, the student advisory committee, as applicable. 

Instructions 
Respond to the prompts as follows: 
A summary of the process used to engage educational partners in the development of the LCAP. 
School districts and county offices of education must, at a minimum, consult with teachers, principals, administrators, other school personnel, 
local bargaining units, parents, and students in the development of the LCAP. 
Charter schools must, at a minimum, consult with teachers, principals, administrators, other school personnel, parents, and students in the 
development of the LCAP. 
An LEA receiving Equity Multiplier funds must also consult with educational partners at schools generating Equity Multiplier funds in the 
development of the LCAP, specifically, in the development of the required focus goal for each applicable school.  
Complete the table as follows: 
Educational Partners 

Identify the applicable educational partner(s) or group(s) that were engaged in the development of the LCAP. 

Process for Engagement 

Describe the engagement process used by the LEA to involve the identified educational partner(s) in the development of the LCAP. At a 
minimum, the LEA must describe how it met its obligation to consult with all statutorily required educational partners, as applicable to the type of 
LEA.  

• A sufficient response to this prompt must include general information about the timeline of the process and meetings or other engagement strategies 
with educational partners. A response may also include information about an LEA’s philosophical approach to engaging its educational partners.  

• An LEA receiving Equity Multiplier funds must also include a summary of how it consulted with educational partners at schools generating Equity 
Multiplier funds in the development of the LCAP, specifically, in the development of the required focus goal for each applicable school.  

A description of how the adopted LCAP was influenced by the feedback provided by educational partners. 

Describe any goals, metrics, actions, or budgeted expenditures in the LCAP that were influenced by or developed in response to the 
educational partner feedback. 

https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=52068.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?sectionNum=47606.5.&lawCode=EDC


2024-25 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Napa County Office of Education Page 66 of 87 

• A sufficient response to this prompt will provide educational partners and the public with clear, specific information about how the engagement 
process influenced the development of the LCAP. This may include a description of how the LEA prioritized requests of educational partners within 
the context of the budgetary resources available or otherwise prioritized areas of focus within the LCAP.  

• An LEA receiving Equity Multiplier funds must include a description of how the consultation with educational partners at schools generating Equity 
Multiplier funds influenced the development of the adopted LCAP.  

• For the purposes of this prompt, this may also include, but is not necessarily limited to: 

• Inclusion of a goal or decision to pursue a Focus Goal (as described below) 
• Inclusion of metrics other than the statutorily required metrics 
• Determination of the target outcome on one or more metrics 
• Inclusion of performance by one or more student groups in the Measuring and Reporting Results subsection 
• Inclusion of action(s) or a group of actions 
• Elimination of action(s) or group of actions  
• Changes to the level of proposed expenditures for one or more actions 
• Inclusion of action(s) as contributing to increased or improved services for unduplicated students 
• Analysis of effectiveness of the specific actions to achieve the goal 
• Analysis of material differences in expenditures 
• Analysis of changes made to a goal for the ensuing LCAP year based on the annual update process 
• Analysis of challenges or successes in the implementation of actions 

Goals and Actions 
Purpose 
Well-developed goals will clearly communicate to educational partners what the LEA plans to accomplish, what the LEA plans to do in order to 
accomplish the goal, and how the LEA will know when it has accomplished the goal. A goal statement, associated metrics and expected 
outcomes, and the actions included in the goal must be in alignment. The explanation for why the LEA included a goal is an opportunity for 
LEAs to clearly communicate to educational partners and the public why, among the various strengths and areas for improvement highlighted 
by performance data and strategies and actions that could be pursued, the LEA decided to pursue this goal, and the related metrics, expected 
outcomes, actions, and expenditures. 

A well-developed goal can be focused on the performance relative to a metric or metrics for all students, a specific student group(s), narrowing 
performance gaps, or implementing programs or strategies expected to impact outcomes. LEAs should assess the performance of their student 
groups when developing goals and the related actions to achieve such goals. 

Requirements and Instructions 
LEAs should prioritize the goals, specific actions, and related expenditures included within the LCAP within one or more state priorities. LEAs 
must consider performance on the state and local indicators, including their locally collected and reported data for the local indicators that are 
included in the Dashboard, in determining whether and how to prioritize its goals within the LCAP. As previously stated, strategic planning that 



2024-25 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Napa County Office of Education Page 67 of 87 

is comprehensive connects budgetary decisions to teaching and learning performance data. LEAs should continually evaluate the hard choices 
they make about the use of limited resources to meet student and community needs to ensure opportunities and outcomes are improved for all 
students, and to address and reduce disparities in opportunities and outcomes between student groups indicated by the Dashboard. 

In order to support prioritization of goals, the LCAP template provides LEAs with the option of developing three different kinds of goals: 

• Focus Goal: A Focus Goal is relatively more concentrated in scope and may focus on a fewer number of metrics to measure improvement. A Focus 
Goal statement will be time bound and make clear how the goal is to be measured. 

o All Equity Multiplier goals must be developed as focus goals. For additional information, see Required Focus Goal(s) for LEAs Receiving 
Equity Multiplier Funding below. 

• Broad Goal: A Broad Goal is relatively less concentrated in its scope and may focus on improving performance across a wide range of metrics. 

• Maintenance of Progress Goal: A Maintenance of Progress Goal includes actions that may be ongoing without significant changes and allows an LEA 
to track performance on any metrics not addressed in the other goals of the LCAP. 

Requirement to Address the LCFF State Priorities 

At a minimum, the LCAP must address all LCFF priorities and associated metrics articulated in EC sections 52060(d) and 52066(d), as 
applicable to the LEA. The LCFF State Priorities Summary provides a summary of EC sections 52060(d) and 52066(d) to aid in the 
development of the LCAP.  

Respond to the following prompts, as applicable: 

Focus Goal(s) 
Description  

The description provided for a Focus Goal must be specific, measurable, and time bound.  

• An LEA develops a Focus Goal to address areas of need that may require or benefit from a more specific and data intensive approach.  

• The Focus Goal can explicitly reference the metric(s) by which achievement of the goal will be measured and the time frame according to which the 
LEA expects to achieve the goal. 

Type of Goal 

Identify the type of goal being implemented as a Focus Goal. 

State Priorities addressed by this goal.  

Identify each of the state priorities that this goal is intended to address. 

An explanation of why the LEA has developed this goal.  

https://www.cde.ca.gov/re/lc/documents/lcffprioritiessummary.docx


2024-25 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Napa County Office of Education Page 68 of 87 

Explain why the LEA has chosen to prioritize this goal.  

• An explanation must be based on Dashboard data or other locally collected data.  

• LEAs must describe how the LEA identified this goal for focused attention, including relevant consultation with educational partners.  

• LEAs are encouraged to promote transparency and understanding around the decision to pursue a focus goal. 

Required Focus Goal(s) for LEAs Receiving Equity Multiplier Funding 
Description 

LEAs receiving Equity Multiplier funding must include one or more focus goals for each school generating Equity Multiplier funding. In addition 
to addressing the focus goal requirements described above, LEAs must adhere to the following requirements. 

Focus goals for Equity Multiplier schoolsites must address the following: 

(A) All student groups that have the lowest performance level on one or more state indicators on the Dashboard, and 

(B) Any underlying issues in the credentialing, subject matter preparation, and retention of the school’s educators, if applicable. 

• Focus Goals for each and every Equity Multiplier schoolsite must identify specific metrics for each identified student group, as applicable. 

• An LEA may create a single goal for multiple Equity Multiplier schoolsites if those schoolsites have the same student group(s) performing at the 
lowest performance level on one or more state indicators on the Dashboard or, experience similar issues in the credentialing, subject matter 
preparation, and retention of the school’s educators.  

o When creating a single goal for multiple Equity Multiplier schoolsites, the goal must identify the student groups and the performance levels on 
the Dashboard that the Focus Goal is addressing; or, 

o The common issues the schoolsites are experiencing in credentialing, subject matter preparation, and retention of the school’s educators, if 
applicable. 

Type of Goal 

Identify the type of goal being implemented as an Equity Multiplier Focus Goal. 

State Priorities addressed by this goal.  

Identify each of the state priorities that this goal is intended to address. 

An explanation of why the LEA has developed this goal.  

Explain why the LEA has chosen to prioritize this goal.  



2024-25 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Napa County Office of Education Page 69 of 87 

• An explanation must be based on Dashboard data or other locally collected data.  

• LEAs must describe how the LEA identified this goal for focused attention, including relevant consultation with educational partners.  

• LEAs are encouraged to promote transparency and understanding around the decision to pursue a focus goal. 

• In addition to this information, the LEA must also identify: 

o The school or schools to which the goal applies 

LEAs are encouraged to approach an Equity Multiplier goal from a wholistic standpoint, considering how the goal might maximize student 
outcomes through the use of LCFF and other funding in addition to Equity Multiplier funds. 

• Equity Multiplier funds must be used to supplement, not supplant, funding provided to Equity Multiplier schoolsites for purposes of the LCFF, the 
Expanded Learning Opportunities Program (ELO-P), the Literacy Coaches and Reading Specialists (LCRS) Grant Program, and/or the California 
Community Schools Partnership Program (CCSPP).  

• This means that Equity Multiplier funds must not be used to replace funding that an Equity Multiplier schoolsite would otherwise receive to 
implement LEA-wide actions identified in the LCAP or that an Equity Multiplier schoolsite would otherwise receive to implement provisions of the 
ELO-P, the LCRS, and/or the CCSPP. 

Note: EC Section 42238.024(b)(1) (California Legislative Information) requires that Equity Multiplier funds be used for the provision of evidence-
based services and supports for students. Evidence-based services and supports are based on objective evidence that has informed the design 
of the service or support and/or guides the modification of those services and supports. Evidence-based supports and strategies are most 
commonly based on educational research and/or metrics of LEA, school, and/or student performance. 

Broad Goal 
Description  

Describe what the LEA plans to achieve through the actions included in the goal.  

• The description of a broad goal will be clearly aligned with the expected measurable outcomes included for the goal.  

• The goal description organizes the actions and expected outcomes in a cohesive and consistent manner.  

• A goal description is specific enough to be measurable in either quantitative or qualitative terms. A broad goal is not as specific as a focus goal. While 
it is specific enough to be measurable, there are many different metrics for measuring progress toward the goal. 

Type of Goal 

Identify the type of goal being implemented as a Broad Goal. 

State Priorities addressed by this goal.  

https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=42238.024.


2024-25 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Napa County Office of Education Page 70 of 87 

Identify each of the state priorities that this goal is intended to address. 

An explanation of why the LEA has developed this goal.  

Explain why the LEA developed this goal and how the actions and metrics grouped together will help achieve the goal. 

Maintenance of Progress Goal 
Description  

Describe how the LEA intends to maintain the progress made in the LCFF State Priorities not addressed by the other goals in the LCAP.  

• Use this type of goal to address the state priorities and applicable metrics not addressed within the other goals in the LCAP.  

• The state priorities and metrics to be addressed in this section are those for which the LEA, in consultation with educational partners, has determined 
to maintain actions and monitor progress while focusing implementation efforts on the actions covered by other goals in the LCAP. 

Type of Goal 

Identify the type of goal being implemented as a Maintenance of Progress Goal. 

State Priorities addressed by this goal.  

Identify each of the state priorities that this goal is intended to address. 

An explanation of why the LEA has developed this goal.  

Explain how the actions will sustain the progress exemplified by the related metrics. 

Measuring and Reporting Results: 
For each LCAP year, identify the metric(s) that the LEA will use to track progress toward the expected outcomes.  

• LEAs must identify metrics for specific student groups, as appropriate, including expected outcomes that address and reduce disparities in outcomes 
between student groups.  

• The metrics may be quantitative or qualitative; but at minimum, an LEA’s LCAP must include goals that are measured using all of the applicable 
metrics for the related state priorities, in each LCAP year, as applicable to the type of LEA.  

• To the extent a state priority does not specify one or more metrics (e.g., implementation of state academic content and performance standards), the 
LEA must identify a metric to use within the LCAP. For these state priorities, LEAs are encouraged to use metrics based on or reported through the 
relevant local indicator self-reflection tools within the Dashboard. 



2024-25 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Napa County Office of Education Page 71 of 87 

• Required metrics for LEA-wide actions: For each action identified as 1) contributing towards the requirement to increase or improve services for 
foster youth, English learners, including long-term English learners, and low-income students and 2) being provided on an LEA-wide basis, the LEA 
must identify one or more metrics to monitor the effectiveness of the action and its budgeted expenditures.   

o These required metrics may be identified within the action description or the first prompt in the increased or improved services section, 
however the description must clearly identify the metric(s) being used to monitor the effectiveness of the action and the action(s) that the 
metric(s) apply to. 

• Required metrics for Equity Multiplier goals: For each Equity Multiplier goal, the LEA must identify: 

o The specific metrics for each identified student group at each specific schoolsite, as applicable, to measure the progress toward the goal, and/or 

o The specific metrics used to measure progress in meeting the goal related to credentialing, subject matter preparation, or educator retention at 
each specific schoolsite.  

Complete the table as follows: 

Metric # 

• Enter the metric number.  

Metric  

• Identify the standard of measure being used to determine progress towards the goal and/or to measure the effectiveness of one or more actions 
associated with the goal.  

Baseline  

• Enter the baseline when completing the LCAP for 2024–25.  

o Use the most recent data associated with the metric available at the time of adoption of the LCAP for the first year of the three-year plan. 
LEAs may use data as reported on the 2023 Dashboard for the baseline of a metric only if that data represents the most recent available data 
(e.g., high school graduation rate). 

o Using the most recent data available may involve reviewing data the LEA is preparing for submission to the California Longitudinal Pupil 
Achievement Data System (CALPADS) or data that the LEA has recently submitted to CALPADS.  

o Indicate the school year to which the baseline data applies. 

o The baseline data must remain unchanged throughout the three-year LCAP.  

▪ This requirement is not intended to prevent LEAs from revising the baseline data if it is necessary to do so. For example, if an LEA 
identifies that its data collection practices for a particular metric are leading to inaccurate data and revises its practice to obtain 



2024-25 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Napa County Office of Education Page 72 of 87 

accurate data, it would also be appropriate for the LEA to revise the baseline data to align with the more accurate data process and 
report its results using the accurate data.  

▪ If an LEA chooses to revise its baseline data, then, at a minimum, it must clearly identify the change as part of its response to the 
description of changes prompt in the Goal Analysis for the goal. LEAs are also strongly encouraged to involve their educational 
partners in the decision of whether or not to revise a baseline and to communicate the proposed change to their educational partners. 

o Note for Charter Schools: Charter schools developing a one- or two-year LCAP may identify a new baseline each year, as applicable. 

Year 1 Outcome  

• When completing the LCAP for 2025–26, enter the most recent data available. Indicate the school year to which the data applies. 

o Note for Charter Schools: Charter schools developing a one-year LCAP may provide the Year 1 Outcome when completing the LCAP for both 
2025–26 and 2026–27 or may provide the Year 1 Outcome for 2025–26 and provide the Year 2 Outcome for 2026–27.  

Year 2 Outcome  

• When completing the LCAP for 2026–27, enter the most recent data available. Indicate the school year to which the data applies. 

o Note for Charter Schools: Charter schools developing a one-year LCAP may identify the Year 2 Outcome as not applicable when completing 
the LCAP for 2026–27 or may provide the Year 2 Outcome for 2026–27. 

Target for Year 3 Outcome  

• When completing the first year of the LCAP, enter the target outcome for the relevant metric the LEA expects to achieve by the end of the three-year 
LCAP cycle. 

o Note for Charter Schools: Charter schools developing a one- or two-year LCAP may identify a Target for Year 1 or Target for Year 2, as 
applicable. 

Current Difference from Baseline 

• When completing the LCAP for 2025–26 and 2026–27, enter the current difference between the baseline and the yearly outcome, as applicable. 

o Note for Charter Schools: Charter schools developing a one- or two-year LCAP will identify the current difference between the baseline and 
the yearly outcome for Year 1 and/or the current difference between the baseline and the yearly outcome for Year 2, as applicable. 



2024-25 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Napa County Office of Education Page 73 of 87 

Timeline for school districts and COEs for completing the “Measuring and Reporting Results” part of the Goal. 

Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome  Year 2 Outcome  
Target for Year 3 

Outcome 
Current Difference 

from Baseline 

Enter information in 
this box when 
completing the LCAP 
for 2024–25 or when 
adding a new metric. 

Enter information in 
this box when 
completing the LCAP 
for 2024–25 or when 
adding a new metric. 

Enter information in 
this box when 
completing the LCAP 
for 2025–26. Leave 
blank until then. 

Enter information in 
this box when 
completing the LCAP 
for 2026–27. Leave 
blank until then. 

Enter information in 
this box when 
completing the LCAP 
for 2024–25 or when 
adding a new metric. 

Enter information in 
this box when 
completing the LCAP 
for 2025–26 and 
2026–27. Leave blank 
until then. 

Goal Analysis: 

Enter the LCAP Year. 

Using actual annual measurable outcome data, including data from the Dashboard, analyze whether the planned actions were effective towards 
achieving the goal. “Effective” means the degree to which the planned actions were successful in producing the target result. Respond to the 
prompts as instructed. 

Note: When completing the 2024–25 LCAP, use the 2023–24 Local Control and Accountability Plan Annual Update template to complete the 
Goal Analysis and identify the Goal Analysis prompts in the 2024–25 LCAP as “Not Applicable.” 

A description of overall implementation, including any substantive differences in planned actions and actual implementation of these actions, 
and any relevant challenges and successes experienced with implementation. 

● Describe the overall implementation of the actions to achieve the articulated goal, including relevant challenges and successes 
experienced with implementation.  

o Include a discussion of relevant challenges and successes experienced with the implementation process.  

o This discussion must include any instance where the LEA did not implement a planned action or implemented a planned action in 
a manner that differs substantively from how it was described in the adopted LCAP.  

An explanation of material differences between Budgeted Expenditures and Estimated Actual Expenditures and/or Planned Percentages of 
Improved Services and Estimated Actual Percentages of Improved Services. 

● Explain material differences between Budgeted Expenditures and Estimated Actual Expenditures and between the Planned Percentages 
of Improved Services and Estimated Actual Percentages of Improved Services, as applicable. Minor variances in expenditures or 
percentages do not need to be addressed, and a dollar-for-dollar accounting is not required. 



2024-25 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Napa County Office of Education Page 74 of 87 

A description of the effectiveness or ineffectiveness of the specific actions to date in making progress toward the goal. 
● Describe the effectiveness or ineffectiveness of the specific actions to date in making progress toward the goal. “Effectiveness” means 

the degree to which the actions were successful in producing the target result and “ineffectiveness” means that the actions did not 
produce any significant or targeted result. 

o In some cases, not all actions in a goal will be intended to improve performance on all of the metrics associated with the goal.  

o When responding to this prompt, LEAs may assess the effectiveness of a single action or group of actions within the goal in the 
context of performance on a single metric or group of specific metrics within the goal that are applicable to the action(s). Grouping 
actions with metrics will allow for more robust analysis of whether the strategy the LEA is using to impact a specified set of metrics 
is working and increase transparency for educational partners. LEAs are encouraged to use such an approach when goals include 
multiple actions and metrics that are not closely associated. 

o Beginning with the development of the 2024–25 LCAP, the LEA must change actions that have not proven effective over a three-year period.  

A description of any changes made to the planned goal, metrics, target outcomes, or actions for the coming year that resulted from reflections 
on prior practice. 

● Describe any changes made to this goal, expected outcomes, metrics, or actions to achieve this goal as a result of this analysis and 
analysis of the data provided in the Dashboard or other local data, as applicable. 

o As noted above, beginning with the development of the 2024–25 LCAP, the LEA must change actions that have not proven effective over a 
three-year period. For actions that have been identified as ineffective, the LEA must identify the ineffective action and must include a 
description of the following: 

▪ The reasons for the ineffectiveness, and  

▪ How changes to the action will result in a new or strengthened approach. 

Actions:  
Complete the table as follows. Add additional rows as necessary.  

Action # 

• Enter the action number.  

Title 

• Provide a short title for the action. This title will also appear in the action tables.  

Description 

• Provide a brief description of the action.  



2024-25 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Napa County Office of Education Page 75 of 87 

o For actions that contribute to meeting the increased or improved services requirement, the LEA may include an explanation of how each 
action is principally directed towards and effective in meeting the LEA's goals for unduplicated students, as described in the instructions for 
the Increased or Improved Services for Foster Youth, English Learners, and Low-Income Students section. 

o As previously noted, for each action identified as 1) contributing towards the requirement to increase or improve services for foster youth, 
English learners, including long-term English learners, and low-income students and 2) being provided on an LEA-wide basis, the LEA must 
identify one or more metrics to monitor the effectiveness of the action and its budgeted expenditures. 

o These required metrics may be identified within the action description or the first prompt in the increased or improved services section; 
however, the description must clearly identify the metric(s) being used to monitor the effectiveness of the action and the action(s) that the 
metric(s) apply to. 

Total Funds 

• Enter the total amount of expenditures associated with this action. Budgeted expenditures from specific fund sources will be provided in the action 
tables.  

Contributing 

• Indicate whether the action contributes to meeting the increased or improved services requirement as described in the Increased or Improved 
Services section using a “Y” for Yes or an “N” for No.  

o Note: for each such contributing action, the LEA will need to provide additional information in the Increased or Improved Services section to 
address the requirements in California Code of Regulations, Title 5 [5 CCR] Section 15496 in the Increased or Improved Services section of 
the LCAP. 

Actions for Foster Youth: School districts, COEs, and charter schools that have a numerically significant foster youth student subgroup are 
encouraged to include specific actions in the LCAP designed to meet needs specific to foster youth students. 

Required Actions 
• LEAs with 30 or more English learners and/or 15 or more long-term English learners must include specific actions in the LCAP related to, at a 

minimum:  

o Language acquisition programs, as defined in EC Section 306, provided to students, and  

o Professional development for teachers.  

o If an LEA has both 30 or more English learners and 15 or more long-term English learners, the LEA must include actions for both English 
learners and long-term English learners. 

• LEAs eligible for technical assistance pursuant to EC sections 47607.3, 52071, 52071.5, 52072, or 52072.5, must include specific actions within the 
LCAP related to its implementation of the work underway as part of technical assistance. The most common form of this technical assistance is 
frequently referred to as Differentiated Assistance. 



2024-25 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Napa County Office of Education Page 76 of 87 

• LEAs that have Red Dashboard indicators for (1) a school within the LEA, (2) a student group within the LEA, and/or (3) a student group within any 
school within the LEA must include one or more specific actions within the LCAP: 

o The specific action(s) must be directed towards the identified student group(s) and/or school(s) and must address the identified state 
indicator(s) for which the student group or school received the lowest performance level on the 2023 Dashboard. Each student group and/or 
school that receives the lowest performance level on the 2023 Dashboard must be addressed by one or more actions.  

o These required actions will be effective for the three-year LCAP cycle.  

Increased or Improved Services for Foster Youth, English Learners, and Low-
Income Students  
Purpose 
A well-written Increased or Improved Services section provides educational partners with a comprehensive description, within a single 
dedicated section, of how an LEA plans to increase or improve services for its unduplicated students as defined in EC Section 42238.02 in 
grades TK–12 as compared to all students in grades TK–12, as applicable, and how LEA-wide or schoolwide actions identified for this purpose 
meet regulatory requirements. Descriptions provided should include sufficient detail yet be sufficiently succinct to promote a broader 
understanding of educational partners to facilitate their ability to provide input. An LEA’s description in this section must align with the actions 
included in the Goals and Actions section as contributing.  

Please Note: For the purpose of meeting the Increased or Improved Services requirement and consistent with EC Section 42238.02, long-term 
English learners are included in the English learner student group. 

Statutory Requirements 
An LEA is required to demonstrate in its LCAP how it is increasing or improving services for its students who are foster youth, English learners, 
and/or low-income, collectively referred to as unduplicated students, as compared to the services provided to all students in proportion to the 
increase in funding it receives based on the number and concentration of unduplicated students in the LEA (EC Section 42238.07[a][1], EC 
Section 52064[b][8][B]; 5 CCR Section 15496[a]). This proportionality percentage is also known as the “minimum proportionality percentage” or 
“MPP.” The manner in which an LEA demonstrates it is meeting its MPP is two-fold: (1) through the expenditure of LCFF funds or through the 
identification of a Planned Percentage of Improved Services as documented in the Contributing Actions Table, and (2) through the explanations 
provided in the Increased or Improved Services for Foster Youth, English Learners, and Low-Income Students section. 

To improve services means to grow services in quality and to increase services means to grow services in quantity. Services are increased or 
improved by those actions in the LCAP that are identified in the Goals and Actions section as contributing to the increased or improved services 
requirement, whether they are provided across the entire LEA (LEA-wide action), provided to an entire school (Schoolwide action), or solely 
provided to one or more unduplicated student group(s) (Limited action).  

Therefore, for any action contributing to meet the increased or improved services requirement, the LEA must include an explanation of: 

• How the action is increasing or improving services for the unduplicated student group(s) (Identified Needs and Action Design), and  
• How the action meets the LEA's goals for its unduplicated pupils in the state and any local priority areas (Measurement of Effectiveness). 



2024-25 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Napa County Office of Education Page 77 of 87 

LEA-wide and Schoolwide Actions 
In addition to the above required explanations, LEAs must provide a justification for why an LEA-wide or Schoolwide action is being provided to 
all students and how the action is intended to improve outcomes for unduplicated student group(s) as compared to all students.  

• Conclusory statements that a service will help achieve an expected outcome for the goal, without an explicit connection or further explanation as to 
how, are not sufficient.  

• Further, simply stating that an LEA has a high enrollment percentage of a specific student group or groups does not meet the increased or improved 
services standard because enrolling students is not the same as serving students. 

For School Districts Only 
Actions provided on an LEA-wide basis at school districts with an unduplicated pupil percentage of less than 55 percent must also 
include a description of how the actions are the most effective use of the funds to meet the district's goals for its unduplicated pupils in the state 
and any local priority areas. The description must provide the basis for this determination, including any alternatives considered, supporting 
research, experience, or educational theory. 

Actions provided on a Schoolwide basis for schools with less than 40 percent enrollment of unduplicated pupils must also include a 
description of how these actions are the most effective use of the funds to meet the district's goals for its unduplicated pupils in the state and 
any local priority areas. The description must provide the basis for this determination, including any alternatives considered, supporting 
research, experience, or educational theory. 

Requirements and Instructions 
Complete the tables as follows: 

Total Projected LCFF Supplemental and/or Concentration Grants  

• Specify the amount of LCFF supplemental and concentration grant funds the LEA estimates it will receive in the coming year based on the number 
and concentration of foster youth, English learner, and low-income students. This amount includes the Additional 15 percent LCFF Concentration 
Grant. 

Projected Additional 15 percent LCFF Concentration Grant  

• Specify the amount of additional LCFF concentration grant add-on funding, as described in EC Section 42238.02, that the LEA estimates it will 
receive in the coming year. 

Projected Percentage to Increase or Improve Services for the Coming School Year  

• Specify the estimated percentage by which services for unduplicated pupils must be increased or improved as compared to the services provided to 
all students in the LCAP year as calculated pursuant to 5 CCR Section 15496(a)(7). 

LCFF Carryover — Percentage  



2024-25 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Napa County Office of Education Page 78 of 87 

• Specify the LCFF Carryover — Percentage identified in the LCFF Carryover Table. If a carryover percentage is not identified in the LCFF Carryover 
Table, specify a percentage of zero (0.00%). 

LCFF Carryover — Dollar  

• Specify the LCFF Carryover — Dollar amount identified in the LCFF Carryover Table. If a carryover amount is not identified in the LCFF Carryover 
Table, specify an amount of zero ($0). 

Total Percentage to Increase or Improve Services for the Coming School Year  

• Add the Projected Percentage to Increase or Improve Services for the Coming School Year and the Proportional LCFF Required Carryover 
Percentage and specify the percentage. This is the LEA’s percentage by which services for unduplicated pupils must be increased or improved as 
compared to the services provided to all students in the LCAP year, as calculated pursuant to 5 CCR Section 15496(a)(7). 

Required Descriptions: 
LEA-wide and Schoolwide Actions 
For each action being provided to an entire LEA or school, provide an explanation of (1) the unique identified need(s) of the unduplicated 
student group(s) for whom the action is principally directed, (2) how the action is designed to address the identified need(s) and why it is being 
provided on an LEA or schoolwide basis, and (3) the metric(s) used to measure the effectiveness of the action in improving outcomes for the 
unduplicated student group(s). 
If the LEA has provided this required description in the Action Descriptions, state as such within the table. 

Complete the table as follows: 

Identified Need(s) 

Provide an explanation of the unique identified need(s) of the LEA’s unduplicated student group(s) for whom the action is principally directed.  

An LEA demonstrates how an action is principally directed towards an unduplicated student group(s) when the LEA explains the need(s), 
condition(s), or circumstance(s) of the unduplicated student group(s) identified through a needs assessment and how the action addresses 
them. A meaningful needs assessment includes, at a minimum, analysis of applicable student achievement data and educational partner 
feedback. 

How the Action(s) are Designed to Address Need(s) and Why it is Provided on an LEA-wide or Schoolwide Basis 

Provide an explanation of how the action as designed will address the unique identified need(s) of the LEA’s unduplicated student group(s) for 
whom the action is principally directed and the rationale for why the action is being provided on an LEA-wide or schoolwide basis. 

• As stated above, conclusory statements that a service will help achieve an expected outcome for the goal, without an explicit connection or further 
explanation as to how, are not sufficient.  



2024-25 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Napa County Office of Education Page 79 of 87 

• Further, simply stating that an LEA has a high enrollment percentage of a specific student group or groups does not meet the increased or improved 
services standard because enrolling students is not the same as serving students. 

Metric(s) to Monitor Effectiveness 

Identify the metric(s) being used to measure the progress and effectiveness of the action(s). 

Note for COEs and Charter Schools: In the case of COEs and charter schools, schoolwide and LEA-wide are considered to be synonymous. 

Limited Actions 
For each action being solely provided to one or more unduplicated student group(s), provide an explanation of (1) the unique identified need(s) 
of the unduplicated student group(s) being served, (2) how the action is designed to address the identified need(s), and (3) how the 
effectiveness of the action in improving outcomes for the unduplicated student group(s) will be measured.  

If the LEA has provided the required descriptions in the Action Descriptions, state as such. 

Complete the table as follows: 

Identified Need(s) 

Provide an explanation of the unique need(s) of the unduplicated student group(s) being served identified through the LEA’s needs assessment. 
A meaningful needs assessment includes, at a minimum, analysis of applicable student achievement data and educational partner feedback. 

How the Action(s) are Designed to Address Need(s) 

Provide an explanation of how the action is designed to address the unique identified need(s) of the unduplicated student group(s) being 
served. 

Metric(s) to Monitor Effectiveness 

Identify the metric(s) being used to measure the progress and effectiveness of the action(s). 

For any limited action contributing to meeting the increased or improved services requirement that is associated with a Planned Percentage of 
Improved Services in the Contributing Summary Table rather than an expenditure of LCFF funds, describe the methodology that was used to 
determine the contribution of the action towards the proportional percentage, as applicable. 

• For each action with an identified Planned Percentage of Improved Services, identify the goal and action number and describe the methodology that 
was used. 

• When identifying a Planned Percentage of Improved Services, the LEA must describe the methodology that it used to determine the contribution of 
the action towards the proportional percentage. The percentage of improved services for an action corresponds to the amount of LCFF funding that 
the LEA estimates it would expend to implement the action if it were funded. 



2024-25 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Napa County Office of Education Page 80 of 87 

• For example, an LEA determines that there is a need to analyze data to ensure that instructional aides and expanded learning providers know what 
targeted supports to provide to students who are foster youth. The LEA could implement this action by hiring additional staff to collect and analyze 
data and to coordinate supports for students, which, based on the LEA’s current pay scale, the LEA estimates would cost $165,000. Instead, the LEA 
chooses to utilize a portion of existing staff time to analyze data relating to students who are foster youth. This analysis will then be shared with site 
principals who will use the data to coordinate services provided by instructional assistants and expanded learning providers to target support to 
students. In this example, the LEA would divide the estimated cost of $165,000 by the amount of LCFF Funding identified in the Total Planned 
Expenditures Table and then convert the quotient to a percentage. This percentage is the Planned Percentage of Improved Services for the action. 

Additional Concentration Grant Funding 
A description of the plan for how the additional concentration grant add-on funding identified above will be used to increase the number of staff 
providing direct services to students at schools that have a high concentration (above 55 percent) of foster youth, English learners, and low-
income students, as applicable. 
An LEA that receives the additional concentration grant add-on described in EC Section 42238.02 is required to demonstrate how it is using 
these funds to increase the number of staff who provide direct services to students at schools with an enrollment of unduplicated students that 
is greater than 55 percent as compared to the number of staff who provide direct services to students at schools with an enrollment of 
unduplicated students that is equal to or less than 55 percent. The staff who provide direct services to students must be certificated staff and/or 
classified staff employed by the LEA; classified staff includes custodial staff.  

Provide the following descriptions, as applicable to the LEA: 

• An LEA that does not receive a concentration grant or the concentration grant add-on must indicate that a response to this prompt is not applicable. 

• Identify the goal and action numbers of the actions in the LCAP that the LEA is implementing to meet the requirement to increase the number of staff 
who provide direct services to students at schools with an enrollment of unduplicated students that is greater than 55 percent.  

• An LEA that does not have comparison schools from which to describe how it is using the concentration grant add-on funds, such as a single-school 
LEA or an LEA that only has schools with an enrollment of unduplicated students that is greater than 55 percent, must describe how it is using the 
funds to increase the number of credentialed staff, classified staff, or both, including custodial staff, who provide direct services to students at 
selected schools and the criteria used to determine which schools require additional staffing support. 

• In the event that an additional concentration grant add-on is not sufficient to increase staff providing direct services to students at a school with an 
enrollment of unduplicated students that is greater than 55 percent, the LEA must describe how it is using the funds to retain staff providing direct 
services to students at a school with an enrollment of unduplicated students that is greater than 55 percent. 

Complete the table as follows:  

• Provide the staff-to-student ratio of classified staff providing direct services to students with a concentration of unduplicated students that is 55 
percent or less and the staff-to-student ratio of classified staff providing direct services to students at schools with a concentration of unduplicated 
students that is greater than 55 percent, as applicable to the LEA.  

o The LEA may group its schools by grade span (Elementary, Middle/Junior High, and High Schools), as applicable to the LEA.  



2024-25 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Napa County Office of Education Page 81 of 87 

o The staff-to-student ratio must be based on the number of full-time equivalent (FTE) staff and the number of enrolled students as counted on 
the first Wednesday in October of each year.  

• Provide the staff-to-student ratio of certificated staff providing direct services to students at schools with a concentration of unduplicated students that 
is 55 percent or less and the staff-to-student ratio of certificated staff providing direct services to students at schools with a concentration of 
unduplicated students that is greater than 55 percent, as applicable to the LEA.  

o The LEA may group its schools by grade span (Elementary, Middle/Junior High, and High Schools), as applicable to the LEA.  

o The staff-to-student ratio must be based on the number of FTE staff and the number of enrolled students as counted on the first Wednesday 
in October of each year. 

Action Tables 
Complete the Total Planned Expenditures Table for each action in the LCAP. The information entered into this table will automatically populate 
the other Action Tables. Information is only entered into the Total Planned Expenditures Table, the Annual Update Table, the Contributing 
Actions Annual Update Table, and the LCFF Carryover Table. The word “input” has been added to column headers to aid in identifying the 
column(s) where information will be entered. Information is not entered on the remaining Action tables.  

The following tables are required to be included as part of the LCAP adopted by the local governing board or governing body: 

• Table 1: Total Planned Expenditures Table (for the coming LCAP Year) 

• Table 2: Contributing Actions Table (for the coming LCAP Year) 

• Table 3: Annual Update Table (for the current LCAP Year) 

• Table 4: Contributing Actions Annual Update Table (for the current LCAP Year) 

• Table 5: LCFF Carryover Table (for the current LCAP Year) 

Note: The coming LCAP Year is the year that is being planned for, while the current LCAP year is the current year of implementation. For 
example, when developing the 2024–25 LCAP, 2024–25 will be the coming LCAP Year and 2023–24 will be the current LCAP Year. 

Total Planned Expenditures Table 
In the Total Planned Expenditures Table, input the following information for each action in the LCAP for that applicable LCAP year: 

• LCAP Year: Identify the applicable LCAP Year. 

• 1. Projected LCFF Base Grant: Provide the total amount estimated LCFF entitlement for the coming school year, excluding the 
supplemental and concentration grants and the add-ons for the Targeted Instructional Improvement Block Grant program, the former 
Home-to-School Transportation program, and the Small School District Transportation program, pursuant to 5 CCR Section 15496(a)(8). 



2024-25 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Napa County Office of Education Page 82 of 87 

Note that the LCFF Base Grant for purposes of the LCAP also includes the Necessary Small Schools and Economic Recovery Target 
allowances for school districts, and County Operations Grant for COEs. 

See EC sections 2574 (for COEs) and 42238.02 (for school districts and charter schools), as applicable, for LCFF entitlement 
calculations.  

• 2. Projected LCFF Supplemental and/or Concentration Grants: Provide the total amount of LCFF supplemental and concentration 
grants estimated on the basis of the number and concentration of unduplicated students for the coming school year. 

• 3. Projected Percentage to Increase or Improve Services for the Coming School Year: This percentage will not be entered; it is 
calculated based on the Projected LCFF Base Grant and the Projected LCFF Supplemental and/or Concentration Grants, pursuant to 5 
CCR Section 15496(a)(8). This is the percentage by which services for unduplicated pupils must be increased or improved as compared 
to the services provided to all students in the coming LCAP year. 

• LCFF Carryover — Percentage: Specify the LCFF Carryover — Percentage identified in the LCFF Carryover Table from the prior LCAP 
year. If a carryover percentage is not identified in the LCFF Carryover Table, specify a percentage of zero (0.00%). 

• Total Percentage to Increase or Improve Services for the Coming School Year: This percentage will not be entered; it is calculated 
based on the Projected Percentage to Increase or Improve Services for the Coming School Year and the LCFF Carryover — 
Percentage. This is the percentage by which the LEA must increase or improve services for unduplicated pupils as compared to 
the services provided to all students in the coming LCAP year. 

• Goal #: Enter the LCAP Goal number for the action. 

• Action #: Enter the action’s number as indicated in the LCAP Goal. 

• Action Title: Provide a title of the action.  

• Student Group(s): Indicate the student group or groups who will be the primary beneficiary of the action by entering “All,” or by entering 
a specific student group or groups. 

• Contributing to Increased or Improved Services?: Type “Yes” if the action is included as contributing to meeting the increased or 
improved services requirement; OR, type “No” if the action is not included as contributing to meeting the increased or improved services 
requirement. 

• If “Yes” is entered into the Contributing column, then complete the following columns: 

o Scope: The scope of an action may be LEA-wide (i.e., districtwide, countywide, or charterwide), schoolwide, or limited. An action 
that is LEA-wide in scope upgrades the entire educational program of the LEA. An action that is schoolwide in scope upgrades the 
entire educational program of a single school. An action that is limited in its scope is an action that serves only one or more 
unduplicated student groups.  



2024-25 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Napa County Office of Education Page 83 of 87 

o Unduplicated Student Group(s): Regardless of scope, contributing actions serve one or more unduplicated student groups. 
Indicate one or more unduplicated student groups for whom services are being increased or improved as compared to what all 
students receive. 

o Location: Identify the location where the action will be provided. If the action is provided to all schools within the LEA, the LEA 
must indicate “All Schools.” If the action is provided to specific schools within the LEA or specific grade spans only, the LEA must 
enter “Specific Schools” or “Specific Grade Spans.” Identify the individual school or a subset of schools or grade spans (e.g., all 
high schools or grades transitional kindergarten through grade five), as appropriate. 

• Time Span: Enter “ongoing” if the action will be implemented for an indeterminate period of time. Otherwise, indicate the span of time for 
which the action will be implemented. For example, an LEA might enter “1 Year,” or “2 Years,” or “6 Months.” 

• Total Personnel: Enter the total amount of personnel expenditures utilized to implement this action.  

• Total Non-Personnel: This amount will be automatically calculated based on information provided in the Total Personnel column and 
the Total Funds column. 

• LCFF Funds: Enter the total amount of LCFF funds utilized to implement this action, if any. LCFF funds include all funds that make up 
an LEA’s total LCFF target (i.e., base grant, grade span adjustment, supplemental grant, concentration grant, Targeted Instructional 
Improvement Block Grant, and Home-To-School Transportation). 

o Note: For an action to contribute towards meeting the increased or improved services requirement, it must include some measure 
of LCFF funding. The action may also include funding from other sources, however the extent to which an action contributes to 
meeting the increased or improved services requirement is based on the LCFF funding being used to implement the action. 

• Other State Funds: Enter the total amount of Other State Funds utilized to implement this action, if any. 

o Note: Equity Multiplier funds must be included in the “Other State Funds” category, not in the “LCFF Funds” category. As a 
reminder, Equity Multiplier funds must be used to supplement, not supplant, funding provided to Equity Multiplier schoolsites for 
purposes of the LCFF, the ELO-P, the LCRS, and/or the CCSPP. This means that Equity Multiplier funds must not be used to 
replace funding that an Equity Multiplier schoolsite would otherwise receive to implement LEA-wide actions identified in the LEA’s 
LCAP or that an Equity Multiplier schoolsite would otherwise receive to implement provisions of the ELO-P, the LCRS, and/or the 
CCSPP. 

• Local Funds: Enter the total amount of Local Funds utilized to implement this action, if any. 

• Federal Funds: Enter the total amount of Federal Funds utilized to implement this action, if any. 

• Total Funds: This amount is automatically calculated based on amounts entered in the previous four columns. 

• Planned Percentage of Improved Services: For any action identified as contributing, being provided on a Limited basis to unduplicated 
students, and that does not have funding associated with the action, enter the planned quality improvement anticipated for the action as 



2024-25 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Napa County Office of Education Page 84 of 87 

a percentage rounded to the nearest hundredth (0.00%). A limited action is an action that only serves foster youth, English learners, 
and/or low-income students. 

o As noted in the instructions for the Increased or Improved Services section, when identifying a Planned Percentage of Improved 
Services, the LEA must describe the methodology that it used to determine the contribution of the action towards the proportional 
percentage. The percentage of improved services for an action corresponds to the amount of LCFF funding that the LEA 
estimates it would expend to implement the action if it were funded. 

For example, an LEA determines that there is a need to analyze data to ensure that instructional aides and expanded learning 
providers know what targeted supports to provide to students who are foster youth. The LEA could implement this action by hiring 
additional staff to collect and analyze data and to coordinate supports for students, which, based on the LEA’s current pay scale, 
the LEA estimates would cost $165,000. Instead, the LEA chooses to utilize a portion of existing staff time to analyze data relating 
to students who are foster youth. This analysis will then be shared with site principals who will use the data to coordinate services 
provided by instructional assistants and expanded learning providers to target support to students. In this example, the LEA would 
divide the estimated cost of $165,000 by the amount of LCFF Funding identified in the Data Entry Table and then convert the 
quotient to a percentage. This percentage is the Planned Percentage of Improved Services for the action. 

Contributing Actions Table 
As noted above, information will not be entered in the Contributing Actions Table; however, the ‘Contributing to Increased or Improved 
Services?’ column will need to be checked to ensure that only actions with a “Yes” are displaying. If actions with a “No” are displayed or if 
actions that are contributing are not displaying in the column, use the drop-down menu in the column header to filter only the “Yes” responses.   

Annual Update Table 
In the Annual Update Table, provide the following information for each action in the LCAP for the relevant LCAP year: 

• Estimated Actual Expenditures: Enter the total estimated actual expenditures to implement this action, if any. 

Contributing Actions Annual Update Table 
In the Contributing Actions Annual Update Table, check the ‘Contributing to Increased or Improved Services?’ column to ensure that only 
actions with a “Yes” are displaying. If actions with a “No” are displayed or if actions that are contributing are not displaying in the column, use 
the drop-down menu in the column header to filter only the “Yes” responses. Provide the following information for each contributing action in the 
LCAP for the relevant LCAP year: 

• 6. Estimated Actual LCFF Supplemental and/or Concentration Grants: Provide the total amount of LCFF supplemental and concentration grants 
estimated based on the number and concentration of unduplicated students in the current school year. 

• Estimated Actual Expenditures for Contributing Actions: Enter the total estimated actual expenditure of LCFF funds used to implement this 
action, if any. 



2024-25 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Napa County Office of Education Page 85 of 87 

• Estimated Actual Percentage of Improved Services: For any action identified as contributing, being provided on a Limited basis only to 
unduplicated students, and that does not have funding associated with the action, enter the total estimated actual quality improvement anticipated for 
the action as a percentage rounded to the nearest hundredth (0.00%). 

o Building on the example provided above for calculating the Planned Percentage of Improved Services, the LEA in the example implements 
the action. As part of the annual update process, the LEA reviews implementation and student outcome data and determines that the action 
was implemented with fidelity and that outcomes for foster youth students improved. The LEA reviews the original estimated cost for the 
action and determines that had it hired additional staff to collect and analyze data and to coordinate supports for students that estimated 
actual cost would have been $169,500 due to a cost of living adjustment. The LEA would divide the estimated actual cost of $169,500 by the 
amount of LCFF Funding identified in the Data Entry Table and then convert the quotient to a percentage. This percentage is the Estimated 
Actual Percentage of Improved Services for the action. 

LCFF Carryover Table 
• 9. Estimated Actual LCFF Base Grant: Provide the total amount of estimated LCFF Target Entitlement for the current school year, 

excluding the supplemental and concentration grants and the add-ons for the Targeted Instructional Improvement Block Grant program, 
the former Home-to-School Transportation program, and the Small School District Transportation program, pursuant to 5 CCR Section 
15496(a)(8). Note that the LCFF Base Grant for purposes of the LCAP also includes the Necessary Small Schools and Economic 
Recovery Target allowances for school districts, and County Operations Grant for COEs. See EC sections 2574 (for COEs) and 
42238.02 (for school districts and charter schools), as applicable, for LCFF entitlement calculations. 

• 10. Total Percentage to Increase or Improve Services for the Current School Year: This percentage will not be entered. The 
percentage is calculated based on the amounts of the Estimated Actual LCFF Base Grant (9) and the Estimated Actual LCFF 
Supplemental and/or Concentration Grants (6), pursuant to 5 CCR Section 15496(a)(8), plus the LCFF Carryover – Percentage from the 
prior year. This is the percentage by which services for unduplicated pupils must be increased or improved as compared to the services 
provided to all students in the current LCAP year. 

Calculations in the Action Tables 
To reduce the duplication of effort of LEAs, the Action Tables include functionality such as pre-population of fields and cells based on the 
information provided in the Data Entry Table, the Annual Update Summary Table, and the Contributing Actions Table. For transparency, the 
functionality and calculations used are provided below. 

Contributing Actions Table 
• 4. Total Planned Contributing Expenditures (LCFF Funds) 

o This amount is the total of the Planned Expenditures for Contributing Actions (LCFF Funds) column. 

• 5. Total Planned Percentage of Improved Services 

o This percentage is the total of the Planned Percentage of Improved Services column. 

• Planned Percentage to Increase or Improve Services for the coming school year (4 divided by 1, plus 5) 



2024-25 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Napa County Office of Education Page 86 of 87 

o This percentage is calculated by dividing the Total Planned Contributing Expenditures (4) by the Projected LCFF Base Grant (1), converting 
the quotient to a percentage, and adding it to the Total Planned Percentage of Improved Services (5). 

Contributing Actions Annual Update Table 
Pursuant to EC Section 42238.07(c)(2), if the Total Planned Contributing Expenditures (4) is less than the Estimated Actual LCFF Supplemental 
and Concentration Grants (6), the LEA is required to calculate the difference between the Total Planned Percentage of Improved Services (5) 
and the Total Estimated Actual Percentage of Improved Services (7). If the Total Planned Contributing Expenditures (4) is equal to or greater 
than the Estimated Actual LCFF Supplemental and Concentration Grants (6), the Difference Between Planned and Estimated Actual 
Percentage of Improved Services will display “Not Required.” 

• 6. Estimated Actual LCFF Supplemental and Concentration Grants 

o This is the total amount of LCFF supplemental and concentration grants the LEA estimates it will actually receive based on of the number and 
concentration of unduplicated students in the current school year. 

• 4. Total Planned Contributing Expenditures (LCFF Funds) 

o This amount is the total of the Last Year's Planned Expenditures for Contributing Actions (LCFF Funds). 

• 7. Total Estimated Actual Expenditures for Contributing Actions 

o This amount is the total of the Estimated Actual Expenditures for Contributing Actions (LCFF Funds). 

• Difference Between Planned and Estimated Actual Expenditures for Contributing Actions (Subtract 7 from 4) 

o This amount is the Total Estimated Actual Expenditures for Contributing Actions (7) subtracted from the Total Planned Contributing 
Expenditures (4). 

• 5. Total Planned Percentage of Improved Services (%) 

o This amount is the total of the Planned Percentage of Improved Services column. 

• 8. Total Estimated Actual Percentage of Improved Services (%) 

o This amount is the total of the Estimated Actual Percentage of Improved Services column. 

• Difference Between Planned and Estimated Actual Percentage of Improved Services (Subtract 5 from 8) 

o This amount is the Total Planned Percentage of Improved Services (5) subtracted from the Total Estimated Actual Percentage of Improved 
Services (8). 

LCFF Carryover Table 
• 10. Total Percentage to Increase or Improve Services for the Current School Year (6 divided by 9 plus Carryover %) 



2024-25 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Napa County Office of Education Page 87 of 87 

o This percentage is the Estimated Actual LCFF Supplemental and/or Concentration Grants (6) divided by the Estimated Actual LCFF Base 
Grant (9) plus the LCFF Carryover – Percentage from the prior year.  

• 11. Estimated Actual Percentage of Increased or Improved Services (7 divided by 9, plus 8) 

o This percentage is the Total Estimated Actual Expenditures for Contributing Actions (7) divided by the LCFF Funding (9), then converting the 
quotient to a percentage and adding the Total Estimated Actual Percentage of Improved Services (8). 

• 12. LCFF Carryover — Dollar Amount LCFF Carryover (Subtract 11 from 10 and multiply by 9) 

o If the Estimated Actual Percentage of Increased or Improved Services (11) is less than the Estimated Actual Percentage to Increase or 
Improve Services (10), the LEA is required to carry over LCFF funds.  

The amount of LCFF funds is calculated by subtracting the Estimated Actual Percentage to Increase or Improve Services (11) from the 
Estimated Actual Percentage of Increased or Improved Services (10) and then multiplying by the Estimated Actual LCFF Base Grant (9). This 
amount is the amount of LCFF funds that is required to be carried over to the coming year. 

• 13. LCFF Carryover — Percentage (12 divided by 9) 

o This percentage is the unmet portion of the Percentage to Increase or Improve Services that the LEA must carry over into the coming LCAP 
year. The percentage is calculated by dividing the LCFF Carryover (12) by the LCFF Funding (9). 

California Department of Education 
November 2023 
 



NAPA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
Barbara Nemko, Ph.D., Superintendent 

 
 

Item  7.C. 
DATE: August 6, 2024 

 
 
TITLE: Teacher Assignment Monitoring Outcomes (TAMO) 2022-2023 Data 
 
 
HISTORY:  
 
The California Department of Education (CDE) recently released the 2022–23 Teaching 
Assignment Monitoring Outcomes (TAMO) by Full-Time Equivalency data report. The CDE will 
report 2022–23 TAMO data for each LEA on the 2024 California School Dashboard (Dashboard) 
as part of the Priority 1 Local Indicator. Detailed information about the TAMO reports and data 
is provided on the Information about the Teaching AMO Report web page. As a reminder, since 
the 2022–23 TAMO data was unavailable at the time that LEAs were reporting their local 
indicator data to the governing board/body of the LEA, LEAs must report the 2022–23 
TAMO data at the next available meeting of the governing board/body. 
 
CURRENT PROPOSAL: This is an information item; no action is needed.  
 
 
FUNDING SOURCE: No funding  
 
 
SPECIFIC RECOMMENDATION: This is an information item. 
 
 
 
Prepared by: Lucy Edwards, Director of Continuous Improvement and Academic Support 
 
 
July 25, 2024 

https://www.cde.ca.gov/ds/ad/tamoinfo.asp


59.3%

100%
88.6% 85.1%

40.7%

2.8%
2.9%

0.6%
1.8%

4.2%
4.9%

3.8% 4.9%
0.2%

Camille Creek JH/Court School Napa California

Teaching Assignment Monitoring Outcomes (TAMO) for 2022-2023

Clear Out-of-Field Intern Ineffective Incomplete Unknown N/A

5.4 FTE 0.9 FTE 849 FTE
245,802

FTE



Teaching AMO Definitions 

The CTC evaluates each teaching assignment along one or more relevant attributes or dimensions of the 
teaching assignment to determine if or how the teacher is authorized to hold the assignment based 
upon the credential authorization data maintained by the CTC.  

Clear 

An assignment monitoring outcome of "clear" indicates that all relevant attributes or dimensions of the 
assignment were authorized by a clear or preliminary credential or authorized by a local assignment 
option (LAO) pursuant to Section 80005(b) of the California Code of Regulations [T5 §80005(b)] for 
specific state course codes where a credential or permit does not exist to authorize the indicated 
teaching assignment (e.g., student government or study hall.) 

Out-of-Field 

An assignment monitoring outcome of “out-of-field” indicates that one or more relevant attributes of the 
assignment were authorized by the following limited permits: 

• General Education Limited Assignment Permit (GELAP) 
• Special Education Limited Assignment Permit (SELAP) 
• Short-Term Waivers 
• Emergency English Learner or Bilingual Authorization Permits 
• Local Assignment Options (except for those made pursuant to T5 §80005(b)) 

 
An "out-of-field" teacher is defined as someone who has a credential but has not yet demonstrated 
subject matter competence in the subject area(s) or for the student population associated with the 
assignment. More information about this term, approved by the SBE to comply with ESSA, can be found 
on the CDE Updated Teacher Equity Definitions web page. 

Intern 

An "intern" teacher is defined as someone who has a bachelor’s degree and has demonstrated subject 
matter competency in the subject area(s) or for the student population associated with the assignment, 
and who holds an intern credential while they complete coursework requirements to obtain a 
preliminary credential. 

Ineffective 

An assignment monitoring outcome of "ineffective" indicates that one or more relevant attributes of the 
assignment had no legal authorization from a permit, credential or waiver, or one or more relevant 
attributes of the assignment were authorized by the following limited permits: 

• Provisional Internship Permits, 
• Short-Term Staff Permits 
• Variable Term Waivers 
• Substitute permits or Teaching Permits for Statutory Leave (TPSL) holders serving as the teacher 

of record 

https://www.cde.ca.gov/ci/pl/teacherequitydefinitions.asp


More information about this term, approved by the SBE to comply with ESSA, can be found on the CDE 
Updated Teacher Equity Definitions web page. 

Incomplete 

An assignment monitoring outcome of "incomplete" indicates that missing or incorrect information 
about the assignment was reported to CALPADS by the LEA which prevented a complete and accurate 
determination of the assignment authorization during the CTC assignment monitoring process. In some 
cases, the LEA or Monitoring Authority may have indicated that the assignment is appropriate; however, 
neither the CDE nor the CTC can validate the authorization basis for the assignment. 

Unknown (UK) 

An assignment monitoring outcome of "unknown" indicates that insufficient information about the 
assignment was reported to CALPADS by the LEA which resulted in an "unknown" determination of the 
assignment authorization during the CTC assignment monitoring process. This outcome is often the 
result of LEAs not reporting an English language service associated with a course in which English 
learners are enrolled. Although the assignment authorization may be "clear" in other areas, an 
assignment monitoring outcome of “unknown” in the EL authorization space results in an overall 
determination of "unknown" for the assignment. 

Not Applicable (N/A) 

An assignment monitoring outcome of "N/A" indicates that the assignment either required no 
authorization or evaluation of the authorization was not applicable given the state course code or some 
other attribute of the assignment. This includes specific state course codes not evaluated during the 
assignment monitoring process conducted by the CTC (e.g., 9143, 9154, or 9215) or because the 
assignment was an online, learner-led course in which the student sets the pace of instruction, and 
where content and instruction are provided solely by the online application. 

 

https://www.cde.ca.gov/pd/ee/teacherequitydefinitions.asp
https://www.cde.ca.gov/pd/ee/teacherequitydefinitions.asp


Napa County Office of Education 
Barbara Nemko, Ph.D., Superintendent 

 
Item: 7.D.  

August 6, 2024 
Board Meeting 

 
TITLE:   First Reading Biennial Review of Conflict of Interest Board Bylaw and Exhibit 
(BB 9270 and E 9270) 
 
 
HISTORY: 
 
The Board is required to update/review the Conflict of Interest Bylaw in even years and 
submit the Local Agency Biennial Notice to the Board of Supervisors by October 1, 
2024.   
 
The Bylaw includes an updated section on Campaign Contributions. The Bylaw is 
updated to reflect SB 1439 which makes applicable to elected county office of education 
(COE) officers the prohibition against accepting, soliciting, or directing a contribution of 
more than $250 from any party or participant to a proceeding involving a license, permit, 
or other entitlement for use, including a contract, or from that person's agent, while the 
proceeding is pending before the County Board of Education and for 12 months 
following the date a final decision is rendered in the proceeding, and from participating in 
making, or in any way attempting to use the official position to influence the County 
Board's decision when a COE officer received a contribution of more than $250 from a 
party or participant in the preceding 12 months, as specified. 
 
There are no changes to identified positions indicated in the Exhibit. 
 
 
CURRENT PROPOSAL: 
 
The Conflict of Interest Board Bylaw (BB 9270) should be updated to the CSBA version, 
reflecting current requirements.   
 
 
FUNDING SOURCE:  n/a 
 
 
SPECIFIC RECOMMENDATION: 
It is recommended that the Board review and discuss the Conflict of Interest Board 
Bylaw and Exhibit (BB 9270 and E 9270). 
 
 
PREPARED BY: 



 
Julie McClure, Associate Superintendent     7/25/2024 



Board Bylaw 9270: Conflict Of InterestBoard Bylaw 9270: Conflict Of Interest Status:Status: DRAFT

Original Adopted Date:Original Adopted Date: 01/13/1998 | Last Revised Date:| Last Revised Date: 01/05/2021

CSBA NOTE: The following County Board of Education Bylaw addresses legal requirements related to conflict of
interest for California county boards of education only.  County boards that hire the County Superintendent of
Schools (Sacramento, San Diego, San Francisco, and Santa Clara) and the Los Angeles County Board of Supervisors
who hire the County Board and the County Superintendent, may modify the bylaw to make it applicable to the
County Superintendent as appropriate.   In addition, in appropriate circumstances, sections of this bylaw that are
expressly applicable only to a county board may be modified to make them applicable to a hired county
superintendent or any consultant hired by the County Board as appropriate.  For example, the section below
entitled "Conflict of Interest under Government Code 1090 - Financial Interest in a Contract" may be modified to
include references to the County Superintendent and/or consultant, if appropriate.

Generally, the County Superintendent will adopt a superintendent policy that meets conflict of interest code
requirements and designates the disclosure requirements and categories applicable to the County Superintendent
and county office of education staff (COE). However, if such a County Superintendent policy has not been adopted,
the County Board of Education should consult with the County Superintendent to ensure that all conflict of interest
code requirements are being met.

The determination as to whether a conflict of interest exists must be analyzed under two separate sets of statutes:
(1) the conflict of interest provisions of the Political Reform Act (PRA) (Government Code 87100-87505), detailed in
the section below entitled "Conflict of Interest under the Political Reform Act," and (2) Government Code 1090-
1098, detailed in the section below entitled "Conflict of Interest under Government Code 1090 - Financial Interest
in a Contract." Even when a conflict does not exist pursuant to those statutes, a violation may still occur under the
common law doctrine against conflict of interest; see the section below entitled "Common Law Doctrine Against
Conflict of Interest."

Because the law and definitions are quite complex, it is strongly recommended that the County Board consult with
CSBA's District and County Office of Education Legal Services or COE legal counsel and staff from the Fair Political
Practices Commission (FPPC), as soon as a potential conflict is presented.
The County Board of Education desires to maintain the highest ethical standards and help ensure that decisions are
made in the best interest of the county office of education (COE) and the public. In accordance with law, County
Board members shall disclose any conflict of interest and, as necessary, shall abstain from participating in any
decisions or discussions that could affect or be effected by those interests, especially, as prohibited by Government
Code 1090, those interests related to contracts. The County Board shall consult legal counsel whenever an actual or
potential conflict of interest arises.

CSBA NOTE: The County Board is required to adopt a conflict of interest code in compliance with Government
Code 87300-87313. County Board members are required by Government Code 87500 to annually file a Statement
of Economic Interest/Form 700 to disclose any assets and income which may be materially affected by official
actions. Under the PRA, there are two separate categories of Form 700 disclosure requirements. Pursuant to
Government Code 87302, the disclosure requirements for most County Board members are determined by the
County Board and set forth in the conflict of interest code. However, for County Board members who "manage
public investments," Government Code 87200 also applies. Those County Board members referred to by the FPPC
as Government Code 87200/Article 2 filers must file broader disclosure statements pursuant to the disclosure
requirements specified in law and FPPC regulation.

Pursuant to Government Code 87303, the conflict of interest code must be approved by the appropriate code
reviewing body. For COE's that have jurisdictions entirely in one county, the code reviewing body is the board of
supervisors of the county in which the COE is located. The FPPC is the code reviewing body for those COEs with
jurisdiction covering more than one county.

Pursuant to FPPC regulation 2 CCR 18730, the requirements of the Government Code are satisfied if the County
Board adopts a conflict of interest code that incorporates 2 CCR 18730 by reference, along with a list of designated
positions and disclosure categories. The accompanying exhibit contains a sample resolution which includes an
appendix with designated positions and disclosure categories which, once adopted by the County Board, will
comprise the terms of the conflict of interest code that should be submitted to the County Board of Supervisors.
The designated positions in the County Board's conflict of interest code will include County Board members, and,
when applicable County Board consultants and the County Superintendent if hired by the County Board. If the

County Policy Manual
Napa County Office of Education

Printed: 08/01/2024 03:41 PM

1



County Board does not wish to adopt a resolution as its conflict of interest code, it should modify the following
paragraph accordingly.
The Board shall review the Napa County Office of Education's conflict of interest code in even-numbered years. If no
change in the code is required, the Napa County Office of Education shall submit by October 1 a written statement
to that effect to the code reviewing body, the County Board of Supervisors. If a change in the code is necessitated by
changed circumstances, the Napa County Office of Education shall submit an amended code to the code reviewing
body. (Government Code 87306.5)

When a change in the conflict of interest code is necessitated due to changed circumstances, such as the hiring of a
new consultant in a position that is not already designated in the conflict of interest code or a change to an existing
consultant's scope of work in a manner that changes the consultant's position to a designated position, the amended
code shall be submitted to the code reviewing body within 90 days.  (Government Code 87306)

When reviewing and preparing the conflict of interest code, the County Board shall provide members of the
community, the County Superintendent of Schools, COE staff, and consultants of the County Board adequate notice
and a fair opportunity to present their views.  (Government Code 87311)

County Board members shall annually file a Statement of Economic Interest/Form 700 in accordance with the
disclosure categories specified in the conflict of interest code. A County Board member who leaves office shall,
within 30 days, file a revised statement covering the period of time between the closing date of the last required
statement and the date of leaving office.  (Government Code 87302, 87302.6)

Conflict of Interest under the Political Reform Act

CSBA NOTE: The FPPC has adopted an eight-step analysis, detailed in Government Code 87100-87500, 2 CCR
18700-18755, and interpretive opinions, to determine whether a conflict of interest exists under the PRA. When
such a conflict exists, the affected County Board member must disclose the interest and not participate in the
decision, as specified below. Because Family Code 297.5 grants a registered domestic partner the same rights,
protections, and benefits as a spouse under state law, analysis of a conflict of interest with regards to a County
Board member's spouse is also applicable to a registered domestic partner.
A County Board member shall not make, participate in making, or in any way use or attempt to use the official
position to influence a governmental decision in which the County Board member knows or has reason to know that
there is a disqualifying conflict of interest. A conflict of interest exists if the decision will have a "reasonably
foreseeable material financial effect" on one or more of the County Board member's "economic interests," unless the
effect is indistinguishable from the effect on the public generally or the County Board member's participation is
legally required.  (Government Code 87100, 87101, 87103; 2 CCR 18700-18709)

A County Board member is involved in making a governmental decision when, acting within the authority of the
office or position, votes on a matter, appoints a person, obligates or commits the County Board to any course of
action, or votes to enter into or approve any contractual agreement on behalf of the County Board.  (2 CCR 18704)

A County Board member who has a disqualifying conflict of interest on an agenda item that will be heard in an open
meeting of the County Board shall abstain from voting on the matter. Although the County Board member may
remain on the dais, if the County Board member chooses to stay the County Board member's presence shall not be
counted towards achieving a quorum for that matter. A County Board member with a disqualifying conflict of
interest shall not be present during a closed session meeting of the County Board when the decision is considered
and shall not obtain or review a recording or any other nonpublic information regarding the issue.  (2 CCR 18700)

Conflict of Interest from Campaign Contributions

CSBA NOTE: Pursuant to Government Code 84308, as amended by SB 1439 (Ch. 848, Statutes of 2022), elected
COE officers, such as County Board members, and "agency heads", which likely include County Superintendents, are
prohibited from participating in decisions involving parties who have provided campaign contributions of more than
$250 in the prior 12 months to the officer's campaign committee. Such officers are also prohibited from accepting,
soliciting, or directing campaign contributions of more than $250 from a party or participant who has a financial
interest in a County Board decision, to any campaign committee while the decision is pending and for 12 months
after the decision is made. These provisions do not apply to labor contracts, competitively bid contracts, and
personal employment contracts.
To avoid improper influence over the County Board's decision-making involving the issuance of a license, permit, or
other entitlements for use, including a contract, COE officers, which includes County Board members or agency

2



heads, shall comply with Government Code 84308, including the following: (Government Code 84308)

1. A COE officer is prohibited from accepting, soliciting, or directing a contribution of more than $250 from any
party or participant to a proceeding involving a license, permit, or other entitlement for use, including a
contract, or from that person's agent, while the proceeding is pending before the County Board and for 12
months following the date a final decision is rendered in the proceeding, if the County Board member knows or
has reason to know that the party or participant has a financial interest in the County Board's decision.
 

2. Any COE officer who received a contribution of more than $250 from a party or participant in the preceding
12 months shall disclose that fact on the record of the proceeding prior to the County Board rendering a
decision in the proceeding. If the COE officer willfully or knowingly received the contribution and knows or has
reason to know that the participant has a financial interest in the County Board's decision, the COE officer
shall not make, participate in making, or in any way attempt to use the official position to influence the County
Board's decision.
 

3. A COE officer who receives a contribution that would otherwise require disqualification as described in Item
#2 above may participate in the proceeding if the contribution is returned within 30 days from the time the
COE officer knows or should have known about the contribution and the proceeding.
 

4. A COE officer who unknowingly accepts, solicits, or directs a contribution of more than $250 during the 12
months after the date of the County Board's final decision on the proceeding may cure the violation by
returning the contribution, or the portion exceeding $250, within 14 days of accepting, soliciting, or directing
the contribution, provided the COE officer did not knowingly or willfully accept, solicit, or, direct the prohibited
contribution. The COE officer shall maintain records of curing the violation.

The provisions in Government Code 84308 as specified above do not apply to labor contracts, competitively bid
contracts, and personal employment contracts.  (Government Code 84308)

Conflict of Interest under Government Code 1090 - Financial Interest in a Contract

CSBA NOTE: Pursuant to Government Code 1090, if a County Board member has a financial interest in a contract,
it is an absolute bar for that County Board to enter into the contract. The Attorney General has opined in 69
Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 255 (1986) that, unlike the PRA, the prohibitions in Government Code 1090 cannot be resolved
by having the financially interested County Board member abstain from participating in the matter. However, there
are two categories of exceptions. If a financial interest meets the definition of a "noninterest" as specified in
Government Code 1091.5, then the restrictions in Government Code 1090 do not apply and the County Board can
enter into the contract. Secondly, if a County Board member's interest is deemed a "remote interest" pursuant
Government Code 1091, then the County Board can enter into the contract as long as certain conditions are
satisfied, as specified below.

Pursuant to Education Code 1042, the County Board may, on a limited basis, contract with and employ persons for
the purpose of furnishing the County Board with special services. The prohibitions in Government Code 1090 apply
to any County Board employees and consultants, including a hired county superintendent. However, the Attorney
General has opined in 63 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 868 (1980) that an employee's financial interest would not prohibit the
County Board from entering into a contract as long as the employee has not participated in the making of the
contract, such as in discussions and planning, as detailed below.

Government Code 1090 does not define financial interest, but courts have held that, for the purposes of this
statute, the definition of "financial interest" is not the same as the definition in the PRA which requires a "material
financial effect" in order for a conflict to exist. Because the determination of whether a financial interest exists
involves a review of statutes, court decisions, and Attorney General opinions as they apply to the particular facts at
issue, the analysis can be complex and CSBA's District and County Office of Education Legal Services or COE legal
counsel should be consulted as appropriate.
County Board members shall not be financially interested in any contract made by the County Board and shall not be
included in the development, preliminary discussions, negotiations, compromises, planning, reasoning, and
specifications and solicitations for bids for such contracts. If a County Board member has such a financial interest,
the County Board is barred from entering into the contract.  (Government Code 1090)

CSBA NOTE: Pursuant to Government Code 1091.5, certain financial interests are defined as "noninterests,"
meaning a conflict of interest does not exist and the County Board can enter into the contract. One of the

3



noninterests listed in Government Code 1091.5 is when a County Board member's spouse has been employed by
the County Board for at least one year prior to the County Board member's election or appointment. The Attorney
General has opined in 80 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 320 (1997) that when a spouse has not been employed for at least one
year prior the County Board member's election or appointment, the exception does not apply and Government
Code 1090 prohibits the County Board from entering into a new contract to hire the spouse.

Attorney General opinions and case law have further clarified the application of this noninterest exception when a
previously employed spouse changes to a different position during the County Board member's term. Generally,
these opinions (92 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 26 (2009), 87 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 23 (2004)) have held that a lateral transfer or
change of classification that does not require County Board approval is the same employment not requiring a new
contract and thus constitutes a noninterest. However, in Thorpe v. Long Beach Community College District and 69
Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 255 (1986)) it was found that when a new contract is involved, the exception in Government
Code 1091.5 does not apply and the action would be prohibited under Government Code 1090 because County
Board approval of the contract is required.

To avoid the appearance of impropriety, County Board members may decide not to participate in any discussion or
action involving contracts where the County Board member's  interest is a "noninterest" or "remote interest."

Because this area of law is complex, it is strongly recommended that CSBA's District and County Office of
Education Legal Services or COE legal counsel be consulted if a County Board member's spouse is an employee of
the County Board or the COE, or when analyzing whether an interest is a noninterest or remote interest.
A County Board member shall not be considered to be financially interested in a contract if the  interest is a
"noninterest" as defined in Government Code 1091.5.

CSBA NOTE: The County Board may vote to enter into or approve a contract when a County Board member's
interest is a "remote interest" as defined in Government Code 1091. Generally, this issue arises when the County
Board wishes to enter into a contract with the County Board member's employer. When the conditions specified in
Government Code 1091 are satisfied (e.g., County Board member is an employee of a nonprofit organization, the
employer has at least 10 employees, and the County Board member has been employed more than three years),
then the County Board may enter into the contract as long as the affected County Board member discloses the
remote interest and abstains from the matter. County Board members who willfully fail to disclose a remote interest
in a contract may be subject to a fine or imprisonment pursuant to Government Code 1097.
A County Board member shall not be considered to be financially interested in a contract if the County Board
member has only a "remote interest" in the contract as specified in Government Code 1091 and if the remote
interest is disclosed during a County Board meeting and noted in the official County Board minutes. The affected
County Board member shall not vote or debate on the matter or attempt to influence any other County Board
member's vote.  (Government Code 1091)

To avoid the appearance of impropriety, County Board members may decide not to participate in any discussion or
action involving contracts where the County Board member's interest is a "noninterest" or "remote interest" as
described in Education Code 1091 and 1091.5.

Common Law Doctrine Against Conflict of Interest

CSBA NOTE: Even when there is not a conflict pursuant to the PRA (Government Code 87100-87505) or
Government Code 1090, the Attorney General has found that special situations may still exist under the common
law doctrine against conflict of interest which, unlike the statutes, extends to noneconomic interests. In 92
Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 19 (2009), the Attorney General opined that a redevelopment board member should abstain from
voting on a loan agreement where the recipient of the loan was a corporation owned by the board member's adult
son. Although the board member was not financially interested in the contract under the PRA or Government Code
1090, the Attorney General determined that abstention was necessary in order to avoid a conflict between the
member's official and personal interests and to avoid the appearance of impropriety.

The County Board is encouraged to consult CSBA's District and County Office of Education Legal Services or COE
legal counsel if situations arise that raise the question as to whether such a conflict exists.
A County Board member shall abstain from any official action in which the County Board member's private or
personal interest may conflict with  official duties. The County Board shall consult legal counsel whenever an actual
or potential conflict of interest arises.

County Board members shall abstain from voting on personnel matters that uniquely affect relatives. Relative means

4



an adult who is related to the County Board member by blood, affinity, or adoptive relationship within the third
degree.

A relationship within the third degree includes an individual's parents, grandparents, great-grandparents, children,
grandchildren, great-grandchildren, brothers, sisters, aunts, uncles, nieces, nephews, and the similar family of the
individual's spouse/registered domestic partner unless the individual is widowed or divorced.

Rule of Necessity or Legally Required Participation

CSBA NOTE: Pursuant to Government Code 87101, when a conflict exists under the PRA, the County Board may
still enter into a contract if the rule of necessity or legally required participation applies. In general, this rule will
permit a County Board to acquire an essential supply or service. The rule also permits a County Board member to
carry out an essential duty of the office in accordance with 2 CCR 18705, where the County Board member is the
only one who may legally act and there is no alternative source of decision-making authority. It is recommended
that CSBA's District and County Office of Education Legal Services or COE legal counsel be consulted when
situations arise involving the rule of necessity.
On a case-by-case basis and upon advice of legal counsel, a County Board member with a financial interest in a
contract may participate in the making of the contract if the rule of necessity or legally required participation applies
pursuant to Government Code 87101 and 2 CCR 18705.

Incompatible Offices and Activities

CSBA NOTE: Government Code 1099 and 1126 prohibit County Board members from engaging in any employment
or activity which is inconsistent, incompatible, in conflict with, or inimical to their duties as a County Board member.

The Attorney General has opinioned  (105 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 69 (2022); 85 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 60 (2002); 68
Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 171 (1985); 65 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 606 (1982)) that it would be incompatible for County Board
members to serve on other elected or appointed boards, councils, or commissions that have interests which may
conflict with the interests of the COE. If a County Board member is sworn into an incompatible office, then the
County Board member's position in the prior office is automatically terminated.

The determination as to whether an activity or office is incompatible is complex and requires a case-by-case
analysis of the particular activities or duties of the office; therefore, it is recommended that CSBA's District and
County Office of Education Legal Services or COE legal counsel be consulted as appropriate.
County Board members shall not engage in any employment or activity or hold any office which is inconsistent with,
incompatible with, in conflict with, or inimical to the County Board member's duties as an officer of the COE.
 (Government Code 1099, 1126)

Gifts

CSBA NOTE: Pursuant to 2 CCR 18730, the gift limitation is currently $520. This amount is adjusted in odd-
numbered years by the FPPC. Pursuant to Government Code 89503, County Board members and candidates are
subject to gift limitation for gifts from all sources except when exempted by law or regulation. For those County
Board members who file a Form 700 based on the disclosure categories specified in the conflict of interest code
pursuant to Government Code 87302 (see the accompanying exhibit), the gift limit is only applicable to those
individuals and entities that are disclosed on the Form 700.

Exceptions exist within Government Codes 82028, 82030, 82033, and 82034 as specified in the definitions of gifts,
income, interest in real property, and investment. If questions arise as to such exceptions, the COE may seek
clarification from the FPPC through email to advice@fppc.ca.gov or consult CSBA's District and County Office of
Education Legal Services or COE legal counsel.
County Board members may accept gifts only under the conditions and limitations specified in Government Code
89503 and 2 CCR 18730.

The limitation on gifts does not apply to wedding gifts and gifts exchanged between individuals on birthdays,
holidays, and other similar occasions, provided that the gifts exchanged are not substantially disproportionate in
value.  (Government Code 89503)

Gifts of travel and related lodging and subsistence shall be subject to the current gift limitation except as described in
Government Code 89506.

5



Policy Reference Disclaimer:Policy Reference Disclaimer:

A gift of travel does not include travel provided by the County Board for its members.  (Government Code 89506)

Honoraria

County Board members shall not accept any honorarium, which is defined as any payment made in consideration for
any speech given, article published, or attendance at any public or private gathering, in accordance with law.
 (Government Code 89501, 89502)

The term honorarium does not include:  (Government Code 89501)

1. Earned income for personal services customarily provided in connection with a bona fide business, trade, or
profession unless the sole or predominant activity of the business, trade, or profession is making speeches
 

2. Any honorarium which is not used and, within 30 days after receipt, is either returned to the donor or
delivered to the COE for donation into the general fund without being claimed as a deduction from income for
tax purposes

These references are not intended to be part of the policy itself, nor do they indicate the basis or authority
for the board to enact this policy. Instead, they are provided as additional resources for those interested in the subject matter of the
policy.

Management Resources ReferencesManagement Resources References DescriptionDescription

Attorney General Opinion 105 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen.69 (2022)

Attorney General Opinion 92 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 26 (2009)

Attorney General Opinion 92 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 19 (2009)

Attorney General Opinion 89 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 217 (2006)

Attorney General Opinion 86 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 138(2003)

Attorney General Opinion 85 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 60 (2002)

Attorney General Opinion 82 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 83 (1999)

Attorney General Opinion 81 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 327 (1998)

Attorney General Opinion 80 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 320 (1997)

Attorney General Opinion 69 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 255 (1986)

Attorney General Opinion 68 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 171 (1985)

Attorney General Opinion 65 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 606 (1982)

Attorney General Opinion 63 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 868 (1980)

Court Decision Thorpe v. Long Beach Community College District (2000) 83 Cal.App.4th
655

Court Decision McGee v. Balfour Beatty Construction, LLC, et al. (2016) 247 Cal.App.4th
235

Court Decision Kunec v. Brea Redevelopment Agency (1997) 55 Cal.App.4th 511

Court Decision Klistoff v. Superior Court (2007) 157 Cal.App.4th 469

Court Decision Davis v. Fresno Unified School District (2015) 237 Cal.App.4th 261

CSBA Publication Conflict of Interest: Overview of Key Issues for Governing Board Members,
Fact Sheet, July 2010

Fair Political Practices Commission Publication Can I Vote? A Basic Overview of Public Officials' Obligations Under the
Conflict-of-Interest Rules, 2005

Institute For Local Government Publication Understanding the Basics of Public Service Ethics: Personal Financial Gain
Laws, 2009

Institute for Local Government Publication Understanding the Basics of Public Service Ethics: Transparency Laws, 2009

6



Website Institute for Local Government

Website Fair Political Practices Commission

Website CSBA

Management Resources ReferencesManagement Resources References DescriptionDescription

State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

2 CCR 18110-18997 Regulations of the Fair Political Practices Commission

2 CCR 18700-18760 Conflicts of Interest

2 CCR 18722-18740 Disclosure of interests

2 CCR 18753-18756 Conflict of interest codes

Ed. Code 1006 Prohibition against school district employees serving on county board of
education

Ed. Code 35107 School district employees

Ed. Code 35230-35240 Corrupt practices

Ed. Code 35233 Prohibitions applicable to members of governing boards

Ed. Code 41000-41003 Moneys received by school districts

Ed. Code 41015 Investments

Fam. Code 297.5 Rights, protections, and benefits of registered domestic partners

Gov. Code 1090-1099 Prohibitions applicable to specified officers

Gov. Code 1125-1129 Incompatible activities

Gov. Code 52334-53235.2 Ethics training

Gov. Code 81000-91014 Political Reform Act of 1974

Gov. Code 82011 Code reviewing body

Gov. Code 82019 Designated employee; definition

Gov. Code 82028 Gift; definition

Gov. Code 82030 Income; definition

Gov. Code 82033 Interest in real property; definition

Gov. Code 82034 Investment; definition

Gov. Code 84308 Campaign disclosure

Gov. Code 87100-87103.6 General prohibitions

Gov. Code 87200-87210 Disclosure

Gov. Code 87300-87313 Conflict of interest code

Gov. Code 87500 Statement of economic interests

Gov. Code 89501-89503 Honoraria and gifts

Gov. Code 89506 Ethics; travel

Gov. Code 91000-91014 Enforcement

Pen. Code 85-88 Bribes

Public Contract Code 6102 Awarding of contracts

Rev. & Tax Code 203 Taxable and exempt property - colleges

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

9222 Resignation

7

http://www.ca-ilg.org
http://www.fppc.ca.gov
http://www.csba.org
https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Browse/Home/California/CaliforniaCodeofRegulations?guid=I48791770D49311DEBC02831C6D6C108E&originationContext=documenttoc&transitionType=Default&contextData=(sc.Default)
https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Browse/Home/California/CaliforniaCodeofRegulations?guid=I9A9FF9B0D49311DEBC02831C6D6C108E&originationContext=documenttoc&transitionType=Default&contextData=(sc.Default)
https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Browse/Home/California/CaliforniaCodeofRegulations?guid=IAC505380D49311DEBC02831C6D6C108E&originationContext=documenttoc&transitionType=Default&contextData=(sc.Default)
https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Browse/Home/California/CaliforniaCodeofRegulations?guid=IB9657A50D49311DEBC02831C6D6C108E&originationContext=documenttoc&transitionType=Default&contextData=(sc.Default)
http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?sectionNum=1006.&lawCode=EDC
http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?sectionNum=82019.&lawCode=GOV
http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?chapter=7.&lawCode=GOV&title=9.&article=3.
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030593&revid=WvBGupRW90EENkAu9NslshgFQ==


9230 Orientation

9321 Closed Session

9323 Meeting Conduct

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

8

https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030593&revid=S7FOOrQbGWEmCslshZIslshkr3Og==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030593&revid=L5yNgmy9iZPplusO4xPp0b51g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030593&revid=iSO6plusfHfTslshZlzqqRSkf2Wg==


APPENDIX

DESIGNATED POSITIONS/DISCLOSURE CATEGORIES

1. Persons occupying the following positions are designated employees (Government Code 87302):

Governing Board Members

Superintendent of Schools

Deputy Superintendent and Chief Business Official

Associate Superintendent

Directors

Designated persons in this category must report:

a. Interests in real property located entirely or partly within the local education agency's boundaries, or
within two miles of agency's boundaries or of any land owned or used by the agency. Such interests
include any leasehold, beneficial or ownership interest or option to acquire such interest in real
property except for those associated with a residence used exclusively as a personal residence.

b. Investments or business positions in or income from sources which:

(1) Are engaged in the acquisition or disposal of real property within the local education agency's
boundaries

(2) Are contractors or subcontractors which are or have been within the past two years engaged in
work or services of the type used by the Napa County Office of Education or

(3) Manufacture or sell supplies, books, machinery or equipment of the type used by the Napa County
Office of Education

2. Consultants are designated employees who must disclose financial interests as determined on a case-
by-case basis by the Superintendent or designee. The Superintendent or designee's written
determination shall include a description of the consultant's duties and a statement of the extent of
disclosure requirements based upon that description. All such determinations are public records and
shall be retained for public inspection along with this conflict of interest code.

3. A consultant is an individual who, pursuant to a contract with the Napa County Office of Education,
makes a governmental decision whether to: (2 CCR 18701)

a. Approve a rate, rule or regulation

b. Adopt or enforce a law

c. Issue, deny, suspend or revoke a permit, license, application, certificate, approval, order or similar
authorization or entitlement

d. Authorize the Napa County Office of Education to enter into, modify or renew a contract that



requires approval of the local education agency

e. Grant Napa County Office of Education approval to a contract or contract specifications which
require agency approval and in which the agency is a party

f. Grant Napa County Office of Education approval to a plan, design, report, study or similar item

g. Adopt or grant Napa County Office of Education approval of agency policies, standards or
guidelines

A consultant is also an individual who, pursuant to a contract with the Napa County Office of
Education, serves in a staff capacity with the agency and in that capacity participates in making a
governmental decision as defined in 2 CCR 18702.2 or performs the same or substantially all the same
duties for the agency that would otherwise be performed by an individual holding a position specified
in the Napa County Office of Education's Conflict of Interest Code. (2 CCR 18701)



Board Bylaw 9270: Conflict Of InterestBoard Bylaw 9270: Conflict Of Interest Status:Status: ADOPTED

Original Adopted Date:Original Adopted Date: 01/13/1998 | Last Revised Date:| Last Revised Date: 01/05/2021 | Last Reviewed Date:| Last Reviewed Date: 01/05/2021

The Governing Board desires to maintain the highest ethical standards and help ensure that decisions are made in the
best interest of the district and the public. In accordance with law, Board members and designated employees shall
disclose any conflict of interest and, as necessary, shall abstain from participating in the decision.

Incompatible Activities

Governing Board members shall not engage in any employment or activity that is inconsistent with, incompatible
with, in conflict with or inimical to the Board member's duties as an officer of the Napa County Office of Education.
(Government Code 1126)

An employee of Napa County Office of Education may not be sworn into office as an elected or appointed member
of that agency's Board unless he/she resigns as an employee. If the employee does not resign, the employment
automatically terminates when he/she is sworn into office. (Education Code 35107)

Board members shall not engage in any employment or activity or hold any office which is inconsistent with,
incompatible with, in conflict with, or inimical to the Board member's duties as an officer of the Napa County Office
of Education. (Government Code 1099, 1126).

Conflict of Interest Code

The Napa County Office of Education's conflict of interest code shall be used to determine whether a conflict of
interest exists in relationship to two separate sets of statutes: (1) the conflict of interest provisions of the Political
Reform Act (PRA) (Government Code 87100-87500.1), detailed in the section below entitled "Conflict of Interest
under the Political Reform Act," and (2) Government Code 1090-1098,

The Board shall review the Napa County Office of Education's conflict of interest code in even-numbered years. If no
change in the code is required, the Napa County Office of Education shall submit by October 1 a written statement
to that effect to the code reviewing body, the County Board of Supervisors. If a change in the code is necessitated by
changed circumstances, the Napa County Office of Education shall submit an amended code to the code reviewing
body. (Government Code 87306.5)

When a change in the Napa County Office of Education's conflict of interest code is necessitated by changed
circumstances such as the creation of new designated positions, amendments or revisions shall be submitted to the
code reviewing body within 90 days. (Government Code 87306)

When reviewing and preparing conflict of interest codes, the Napa County Office of Education shall provide officers,
employees, consultants and members of the community adequate notice and a fair opportunity to present their
views. (Government Code 87311)

If a Board member or designated employee determines that he/she has a financial interest in a decision, as described
in Government Code 87103, this determination shall be disclosed. The member shall be disqualified from voting
unless his/her participation is legally required. (2 CCR 18700)

Statements of economic interests submitted to the Napa County Office of Education by designated employees in
accordance with the conflict of interest code shall be available for public inspection and reproduction. (Government
Code 81008)

Financial Interest

A Board member or designated employee shall not make, participate in making, or in any way use or attempt to use
his/her official position to influence a governmental decision in which he/she knows or has reason to know that
he/she has a disqualifying conflict of interest. A conflict of interest exists if the decision will have a "reasonably
foreseeable material financial effect" on one or more of the Board member's or designated employee's "economic
interests," unless the effect is indistinguishable from the effect on the public generally or the Board member's or
designated employee's participation is legally required. (Government Code 87100, 87101, 87103; 2 CCR
18700-18709)

A Board member or designated employee makes a governmental decision when, acting within the authority of
his/her office or position, he/she votes on a matter, appoints a person, obligates or commits the County Office to

County Policy Manual
Napa County Office of Education



any course of action, or enters into any contractual agreement on behalf of the County Office. (2 CCR 18702.1)

A Board member who has a disqualifying conflict of interest on an agenda item that will be heard in an open meeting
of the Board shall abstain from voting on the matter. He/she may remain on the dais, but his/her presence shall not
be counted towards achieving a quorum for that matter. A Board member with a disqualifying conflict of interest
shall not be present during a closed session meeting of the Board when the decision is considered and shall not
obtain or review a recording or any other nonpublic information regarding the issue. (2 CCR 18702.1)

A Board member shall abstain from any official action in which his/her private or personal financial interest may
conflict with his/her official duties.

A Board member shall not be considered to be financially interested in a contract if his/her interest includes, but is
not limited to, any of the following: (Government Code 1091.5)

1. That of an officer who is being reimbursed for his/her actual and necessary expenses incurred in the
performance of an official duty
 

2. That of a recipient of public services generally provided by the public body or board of which he/she is a
member, on the same terms and conditions as if he or she were not a member of the board
 

3. That of a landlord or tenant of the contracting party if such contracting party is the federal government or any
federal department or agency, this state or an adjoining state, any department or agency of this state or an
adjoining state, any county or city of this state or an adjoining state, or any public corporation or special,
judicial or other public local education agency of this state or an adjoining state unless the subject matter of
such contract is the property in which such officer or employee has such interest as landlord or tenant in which
even his/her interest shall be deemed a remote interest within the meaning of, and subject to, the provisions of
Government Code 1091
 

4. That of a spouse of an officer or employee of the Napa County Office of Education if his/her spouse's
employment or office holding has existed for at least one year prior to his/her election or appointment
 

5. That of a non-salaried member of a nonprofit corporation, provided that such interest is disclosed to the Board
at the time of the first consideration of the contract, and provided further that such interest is noted in its
official records
 

6. That of a non-compensated officer of a nonprofit, tax-exempt corporation which, as one of its primary
purposes, supports the functions of the nonprofit board or to which the school Board has legal obligation to
give particular consideration, and provided further that such interest is noted in its official records
 

7. That of a person receiving salary, per diem, or reimbursement for expenses from a governmental entity, unless
the contract directly involves the department of the government entity that employs the officer or employee,
provided that such interest is disclosed to the Board at the time of consideration of the contract, and provided
further that such interest is noted in its official records
 

8. That of an attorney of the contracting party or that of an owner, officer, employee or agent of a firm which
renders, or has rendered, service to the contracting party in the capacity of stockbroker, insurance agent,
insurance broker, real estate agent, or real estate broker, if these individuals have not received and will not
receive remuneration, consideration, or a commission as a result of the contract and if these individuals have
an ownership interest of less than 10 percent in the law practice or firm, stock brokerage firm, insurance firm
or real estate firm

In addition, a Board member or employee shall not be deemed to be interested in a contract made pursuant to
competitive bidding under a procedure established by law if his/her sole interest is that of an officer, director, or
employee of a bank or savings and loan association with which a party to the contract has the relationship of
borrower or depositor, debtor or creditor. (Government Code 1091.5)

A Board member shall not be deemed to be financially interested in a contract if he/she has only a remote interest in
the contract and if the remote interest is disclosed during a Board meeting and noted in the official Board minutes.
The affected Board member shall not vote or debate on the matter or attempt to influence any other Board member
to enter into the contract. Remote interests are specified in Government Code 1091(b); they include, but are not
limited to, the interest of a parent in the earnings of his/her minor child. (Government Code 1091)

A Board member may enter into a contract if the rule of necessity or legally required participation applies as defined



in Government Code 87101.

Even if there is no prohibited or remote interest, a Board member shall abstain from voting on personnel matters that
uniquely affect a relative of the Board member. A Board member may vote, however, on collective bargaining
agreements and personnel matters that affect a class of employees to which the relative belongs. "Relative" means
an adult who is related to the person by blood or affinity within the third degree, as determined by the common law,
or an individual in an adoptive relationship within the third degree. (Education Code 35107)

A relationship within the third degree includes the individual's parents, grandparents and great-grandparents,
children, grandchildren and great-grandchildren, brothers, sisters, aunts and uncles, nieces and nephews, and the
similar family of the individual's spouse unless the individual is widowed or divorced.

Gifts

Board members and designated employees may accept gifts only under the conditions and limitations specified in
Government Code 89503 and 2 CCR 18730.

The limitations on gifts do not apply to wedding gifts and gifts exchanged between individuals on birthdays, holidays
and other similar occasions, provided that the gifts exchanged are not substantially disproportionate in value.
(Government Code 89503)

Gifts of travel, including public transportation, and related lodging and subsistence shall be subject to the prevailing
gift limitation except as described in Government Code 89506.

A gift of travel does not include travel provided by the Napa County Office of Education for Board members and
designated employees. (Government Code 89506)

Honoraria

Board members and designated employees shall not accept any honorarium, which is defined as any payment made
in consideration for any speech given, article published, or attendance at any public or private gathering, in
accordance with law. (Government Code 89501, 89502)

The term honorarium does not include: (Government Code 89501)

1. Earned income for personal services customarily provided in connection with a bona fide business, trade or
profession unless the sole or predominant activity of the business, trade or profession is making speeches.
 

2. Any honorarium which is not used and, within 30 days after receipt, is either returned to the donor or
delivered to the Napa County Office of Education for donation into the general fund without being claimed as
a deduction from income for tax purposes.


	Board Agenda - August 6, 2024
	Board_Minutes_July 16 2024_draft-jsrev
	Board_Minutes_June18, 2024_approved
	2._A._FCMAT_oversight_MCMS_080624
	Napa COE Board Presentation - Charter Oversight 8.6.24 for Board Packet.pdf
	�Charter School Oversight����
	Fiscal Crisis & Management�Assistance Team 
	Who is responsible for the oversight of charter schools?
	Oversight Responsibilities
	What is the Napa County Board of Education’s role in oversight of Mayacamas Countywide Middle School?
	Oversight Monitoring
	FCMAT Support of Oversight
	FCMAT Support of Oversight, Cont.
	Charter Renewals
	What are the statutory requirements for charter oversight?
	Oversight Requirements – Authorizer
	Oversight Requirements – Authorizer (cont.)
	Oversight Requirements – Authorizer (cont.)
	Financial Reports for Oversight
	Fiscal Oversight Requirements – Charter Schools
	How is fiscal oversight of charter schools best performed?
	Healthy Financial Characteristics
	Healthy Financial Characteristics (cont.)
	Red Flags and Signs of Fiscal Distress
	What tools are available to support effective charter oversight?
	FCMAT Tools for Charter Schools
	Charter School Annual Oversight Checklist
	Charter Oversight Activities �for 2024-25
	Summer Oversight Activities
	Fall Oversight Activities
	Winter Oversight Activities
	Spring Oversight Activities
	Questions?
	Thank you!


	4.A. - Exhibit 4-A 20240806_
	5.A. BP 0410 Second Reading_coversheet
	5.A. - County Board Policy  0410  Nondiscrimination In County Office Programs And Activities_draft14
	5.B. - Board approval  -CASC letter of assurances_coversheet
	Item  5.B.
	Date:  8/6/2024

	5.B. - Napa County Clear Administrative Induction  (CASC) Program Letter of Assurances - 2024
	5.C. November Meeting Date Change_coversheet
	7.A. - Board Report 08-06-24   (1)
	7.B. - Cover Sheet for LCAP Update
	Item  # 7.B
	DATE: August 6, 2024

	7.B. - Napa COE updated 2024-2025 LCAP
	LCFF Budget Overview for Parents
	Budget Overview for the 2024-25 School Year
	Update on Increased or Improved Services for High Needs Students in 2023-24

	NCOE AU.pdf
	2023–24 Local Control and Accountability Plan Annual Update
	Goals and Actions
	Goal
	Measuring and Reporting Results
	Goal Analysis

	Goals and Actions
	Goal
	Measuring and Reporting Results
	Goal Analysis

	Goals and Actions
	Goal
	Measuring and Reporting Results
	Goal Analysis

	Goals and Actions
	Goal
	Measuring and Reporting Results
	Goal Analysis

	Instructions
	Goals and Actions
	Goal(s)
	Measuring and Reporting Results
	Goal Analysis




	NCOE LCAP.pdf
	Local Control and Accountability Plan
	Plan Summary [2024-25]
	General Information
	Reflections: Annual Performance
	Reflections: Technical Assistance
	Comprehensive Support and Improvement
	Schools Identified
	Support for Identified Schools
	Monitoring and Evaluating Effectiveness


	Engaging Educational Partners
	Goals and Actions
	Goal
	Measuring and Reporting Results
	Goal Analysis [2023-24]
	Actions

	Goals and Actions
	Goal
	Measuring and Reporting Results
	Goal Analysis [2023-24]
	Actions

	Goals and Actions
	Goal
	Measuring and Reporting Results
	Goal Analysis [2023-24]
	Actions

	Goals and Actions
	Goal
	Measuring and Reporting Results
	Goal Analysis [2023-24]
	Actions

	Goals and Actions
	Goal
	Measuring and Reporting Results
	Goal Analysis [2023-24]
	Actions

	Goals and Actions
	Goal
	Measuring and Reporting Results
	Goal Analysis [2023-24]
	Actions

	Increased or Improved Services for Foster Youth, English Learners, and Low-Income Students [2024-25]
	Required Descriptions
	LEA-wide and Schoolwide Actions
	Limited Actions
	Additional Concentration Grant Funding


	2024-25 Total Expenditures Table
	2024-25 Contributing Actions Table
	2023-24 Annual Update Table
	2023-24 Contributing Actions Annual Update Table
	2023-24 LCFF Carryover Table

	Local Control and Accountability Plan Instructions
	Introduction and Instructions
	Plan Summary
	Purpose
	Requirements and Instructions
	General Information
	Reflections: Annual Performance
	Reflections: Technical Assistance
	Comprehensive Support and Improvement
	Schools Identified
	Support for Identified Schools
	Monitoring and Evaluating Effectiveness



	Engaging Educational Partners
	Purpose
	Requirements
	Instructions
	Respond to the prompts as follows:
	Complete the table as follows:


	Goals and Actions
	Purpose
	Requirements and Instructions
	Focus Goal(s)
	Required Focus Goal(s) for LEAs Receiving Equity Multiplier Funding
	Broad Goal
	Maintenance of Progress Goal
	Measuring and Reporting Results:
	Goal Analysis:
	Actions:
	Required Actions


	Increased or Improved Services for Foster Youth, English Learners, and Low-Income Students
	Purpose
	Statutory Requirements
	LEA-wide and Schoolwide Actions
	For School Districts Only

	Requirements and Instructions
	Required Descriptions:
	LEA-wide and Schoolwide Actions
	Limited Actions
	Additional Concentration Grant Funding


	Action Tables
	Total Planned Expenditures Table
	Contributing Actions Table
	Annual Update Table
	Contributing Actions Annual Update Table
	LCFF Carryover Table
	Calculations in the Action Tables
	Contributing Actions Table
	Contributing Actions Annual Update Table
	LCFF Carryover Table





	7.C. - Cover Sheet for TAMO data
	Item  7.C.
	DATE: August 6, 2024

	7.C. - TAMO 22-23
	Slide Number 1

	7.C. - Teaching AMO Definitions
	7.D. - BB 9270 Conflict of Interest
	7.D. BB 9270 Conflict of Interest_coversheet 15
	7.D. - Board Bylaw  9270  Conflict Of Interest
	7.D. - Appendix - Conflict of Interest10
	7.D. - OLD Board Bylaw  9270  Conflict Of Interest




